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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

Lori A. Weiver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Interim Commissioner 603-271-9544 I-300-S52-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax: 603-2?i-4332 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Kstja S. Fox
Director

July 10, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Institute for
Community Alliances (VC#301842-B001), Des Moines, lA for the continued operation and
maintenance of the New Hampshire Statewide Homeless Management Information System, by
exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $1,110,206 from
$1,515,526 to $2,625,732 and extending the completion date from September 30, 2024 to July
31, 2027, effective retroactive to July 1, 2023 upon Governor and Council approval. 71% Federal
Funds. 29% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 27, 2019, item
#11, amended on March 24, 2021. item #6, amended on July 14, 2021, item #8, amended on
January 12, 2022, item #20, and most recently amended on February 8, 2023, Item #20.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and
2025, and are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 through 2028, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive to July 1, 2023 to align with the start date of the new grant
agreement received by the Department on June 26, 2023 from the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD).

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
previously approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. Additionally, the Department
is extending the agreement beyond the renewal period to align with grant funding and
requirements. The Contractor is the only known vendor able to provide the necessary services
because HUD provides the Department with a pre-approved list of qualified vendors capable of
performing the required operating and maintenance services for the Homeless Management
Information System (HMIS). There are no New Hampshire-based vendors that are existing HMIS
System Administrators, and the selected vendor is the only vendor offering in-state technical
support.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honoratjle Council
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The purpose of this request is to add funding, and to extend the completion date for the
continued operation and maintenance of the New Hampshire Statewide Homeless Management
Information System.

The Homeless Management Information System will continue to enhance the sharing of
housing service resources, streamline the determination of eligibility for assistance, and establish
connections to mainstream aid programs for individuals and families experiencing homelessness
In New Hampshire. Additionally the Homeless Management Information System improves
coordination of vital services and support systems aimed at addressing and mitigating
homelessness.

The administration of the Homeless Management Information System follows federal
regulations and adheres to the NH Homeless Management Information System Governance
Charter. All shelters and programs fund^ by HUD are required to comply with this charter. .It
outlines the responsibilities of all system users, encompassing areas such as system security,
local system administration, and client confidentiality developed under HUD guidance and
adopted by the New Hampshire Continuums in 2002.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2,
Renewal of the original agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
five (5) additionai years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renevAT services for the one (1) year and nine (9) months remaining. The Department is
requesting to extend the agreement an additional one (1) year and one (1) month.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Contractor will hot have
sufficient funding to support the Homeless Management Information System and the ongoing
reporting requirements. This could impact the operational capacity of many community programs
supporting individuals and families experiencing homelessness.

Area sen/ed: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIN #'s
NH0011L1T(TBD), NH0023L1T(TBD), and NH0035L1T(TBD): Assistance Listing Number
#14.231, FAIN # E-22-DC-33-0001.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

interim Commissioner

The Deportment of Health and Human Seruicea' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05*9M2^23010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,

HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM

100% Federal Funds

Institute for Community Alliances

NH0011 100% FF

Vendor#301842.6001

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title ' Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $76,047.00 $0.00 $76,047.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $76,048.00 $0.00 $76,048.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $76,047.00 $0.00 $76,047.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $6,337.00 $0.00 $6,337.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief •  .TBD $69,710.00 $0.00 $69,710.00

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $6,337.00 $69,710.00 $76,047.00

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $76,047.00 $76,047.00

2026 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $76,047.00 $76,047.00

2027 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $76,047.00 $76,047.00

2028 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $6,337.00 $6,337.00
Sub Total $310,526.00 $304,188.00 $614,714.00

NH0023 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 . Contracts for Proq Svcs ■ TBD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $51,953.00 $0.00 $51,953.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $51,954.00 $0.00 $51,954.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $51,953.00 $0.00 $51,953.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $4,329.00 $0.00 $4,329.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $47,624.00 $0.00 $47,624.00

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $4,329.00 $47,624.00 $51,953.00

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief ' TBD $0.00 $51,953.00 $51,953.00

2026 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $51,953.00 •  $51,953.00

2027 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $51,953.00 $51,953.00

2028 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $4,329.00 $4,329.00

Sub Total $212,142.00 $207,812.00 $419,954.00

NH0035 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $12,474.00 $0.00 $12,474.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD • $12,474.00 $0.00 $12,474.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $12,474.00 $0.00 $12,474.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $1,038.00 $0.00 $1,038.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD ■  $20,836.00 $0.00 $20,836.00

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $1,892.00 $20,834.00 $22,726.00

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $22,728.00 -  $22,728.00

2026 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $22,728.00 $22,728.00

2027 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief - TBD $0.00 $22,728.00 $22,728.00

2028 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $1,894.00 $1,894.00

Sub Total $61,188.00 $90,912.00 $152,100.00

ESG 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $39,570.00 $0.00 $39,570.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $21,000.00 $0.00 $21,000.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $80,615.00 $0.00 $80,615.00

2022 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $81,000.00 $0.00 $81,000.00

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD .$81,000.00 $0.00 $81,000.00

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $92,161.00 $92,161.00

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and.Relief TBD $0.00 $92,161.00 $92,161.00

Sub Total $303,185.00 $184,322.00 $487,507.00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 2
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

SGIA 100% GF

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

increase

(Decrease).
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD SO.OO $0.00 $0,00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $109,802.00 $0.00 $109,802.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $109,802.00 $0.00 $109,802.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $161,486.00 $0.00 $161,486.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $161,486.00 $0.00 $161,486.00

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $0.00 $161,486.00 $161,486.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $0.00 $161,486.00 $161,486.00

Sub Total $542,576.00 $322,972.00 $865,548.00

YHDP 100% FF

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Deaease)
Revised Amount

2023 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $32,218.00 SO.OO $32,216.00

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief- TBD $42,955.00 $0.00 $42,955.00

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $10,738.00 $0.00 $10,738.00

Sub Total $85,909.00 $0.00 $85,909,00

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 2 of 2
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazen Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Goulet

Commissioner

July 11, 2023

Lori Weaver, Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Seryices
State of New Hampshire

95 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 0330!

Dear Commissioner Weaver:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to- enter into a contract amendment with Institute for Community
Alliances, as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2019-026E.

The purpose of this request is for the continued operation of the New Hampshire Statewide
Homeless Management Information System.

The Total Price Limitation will increase by $1,110,206, for a New Total Price Limitation
of $2,625,732, effective upon Governor and Council approval retroactive to July 1, 2023
through July 31, 2027.

A copy of this letter must accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Exeeutive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/jd
DoIT #2019-026E

cc: Mike Williams, IT Manager

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5

This Amendment to the Homeless Management Information System contract is by and between the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Institute for
Community Alliances ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 27, 2019 (Item #11), as amended on March 24, 2021 (Item #6), as amended-on July 14, 2021
(Item #8), as amended on January 12, 2022 (Item #20), and as most recently amended on February 8,
2023 (Item #20), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

July 31. 2027

2. Form Pr37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,625,732

3. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Subsection 1.2,
to read:

1.2. This contract is funded with 34% General Funds and 66% Federal Funds as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Funds

Program Title: State Grant in Aid (SGIA), HMIS

Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total: $865,548;

July 1,.2019-June 30, 2020 not to exceed: $109,802

July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021 not to exceed: $109,802

July 1, 2021 -June 30, 2022 not to exceed: $161,486

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023 not tO'exceed: $161,486

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 not to exceed: $161,489

July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025 not to exceed: $161,489

1.2.2. Federal Funds

Assistance Listing Number#: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant Program (ESG), HMIS

Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total: $487,507; (

Institute for Community Alliances . A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials ̂

SS-2019-BHHS-03-HMIS-01-A05 Page 1 of 5 Date 7/14/2023
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April 1, 2019 - June 30, 2019 not to exceed: $39,570

July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020 not to exceed: $21,000

July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021 not to exceed: $80,615

July 1,2021 - June 30, 2022 not to exceed: $81,000

July 1, 2022-June 30, 2023 not to exceed: $81,000

July 1, 2023-June 30,2024 not to exceed: $92,161

July 1, 2024-June 30,2025 not to exceed: $92,161

1.2.3. Federal Funds

Assistance Listing Number#: 14.267

Federal Agency: HUD

Program Title: Continuum of Care Program (CoC), HMIS

Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total:

July 1,2019-July 31,2019:

August 1, 2019-July 31, 2020

August 1, 2020 - July 31. 2021

August 1,2021 -July 31, 2022

August 1, 2022 -July 31, 2023

August 1, 2023 - July 31. 2024

August 1, 2024 - July 31, 2025

August 1,2025-July 31, 2026

August 1,2026-July 31, 2027

not to exceed $11,706

not to exceed $140,474

not to exceed $140,474

hot to exceed $140,474

not to exceed $150,728

not to exceed $150,728

not to exceed $150,728

not to exceed $150,728

not to exceed $150,728

$1,186,768;

Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMIS, Manchester:

HMIS: $406,770 ■

Administrative costs: $13.184

Total program amount: $419,954

Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMIS, Nashua:

HMIS: $147,634

Administrative costs: 84.466

Total program amount: $152,100

Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMIS, Balance of State:

HMIS:

Administrative costs:

Total program amount:

Institute for Community Alliances

SS-2019-BHHS.03-HMIS-01-A05

$598,951

$15.763

$614,714

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 5

—OS
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Contractor Initials

7/14/2023
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1.2.4. Federal Funds

Assistance Listing Number #: 14:276

Federal Agency: HUD " -

Program Title: Youth Homelessness Demonstration Program (YHDP) HMIS

Total Amount HMIS not to exceed ■ Sub Total: $85,909;

■ October 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023: not to exceed $32,216

.  July 1, 2023-June 30, 2024:, not to exceed $42,955

July 1, 2024-September 30, 2024: nottoexceed $10,738

Funds allocation under this agreement for YHDP, HMIS:

HMIS: $81,818

Administrative costs: $4,091

Total program amount: $85,909

1.2.5. Total amount HMIS not to exceed Grand Total: $2,625,732

4. Modify Exhibit B-1, Amendment 4, Expense Budget Detail and Budget Sheets, in its entirety and
replace with Exhibit B-1, Amendment 5, Expense Budget Detail and Budget Sheets, which is
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

—OS

ne

Institute for Community Alliances A-S-1.2 Contractor Initials

SS-2dl9-BHHS-03.HMlS-01-A05 Page 3 of 5 Date
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by Ihis Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to July 1. 2023, upon Goverrior and
Council approval.

IN .WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

7/14/2023

Date

OocuSlgntd by;

i. fwt
€09000664000*48-

Name: xatja s. fox

Title:

7/14/2023

Date

Institute for Community Alliances
—OocuSigiMd by:

Nime^^avT<^'lberbach
Title:

Executive Director

Institute for Community Alliances

SS-2019-BHHS-03-HMIS-01-A05

A-S-1.2

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSlgnvd by:PDocuSlgnvd by:
-■■r«ara«8<^i«eo.T

Date Name: RWyn Guan no

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Instilute for Community Alliances • A-S-1.2

SS-2019-BHHS-03-HMIS-01 -AOS Page 5 of 5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B-1, Amendment 5

Expense Budget Detail

State Fiscal Year 2019:

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Emergency Solutions Grant
One-time ESG award

4/1/19-6/30/19

$39,570 $0.00 $39,570 $9,893

Sub Total $39,570 $0.00 $39,570 $9,893

State Fiscal Year 2020:

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/19-6/30/20
$0.00 $109,802 $109,802 $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grant
.7/1/19-6/30/20

.  $21,000 ,$0.00 $21,000 $5;250

Continuum of Care

One-time CoC award

7/1/19-7/31/19

$11,706 $0.00 $11,706 - $2,927

Continuum of Care

8/1/19-6/30/20
$128,768 $0.00 $128,768 $32,192

Sub Total $161,474 $109,802 $271,276 $67,820

State Fiscal Year 2021:

Expense Item Federal Funds
.  State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/20 - 6/30/21
$0.00 109,802 $109,802 $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/20 - 6/30/21

$80,615 ■ $0.00 $80,615 $20,154

Continuum of Care

7/1/20-6/30/21
$140,476 " $0.00 $140,476 ■ $36,010

Sub Total $221,091 $109,802 $330,893 $83,615

State Fiscal Year 2022

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/21 -6/30/22
$0.00 $161,486 $161,486 $0.00

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/21-6/30/22

$81,000 $0.00 $81,000 $0.00

Continuum of Care

7/1/21 -6/30/22
$140,474 $0.00 $140,474 $36,090

SS-2019-BHS-03-HMIS-01-A05 Page 1 of 3 Date:
7/14/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B-1, Amendment 5

Sub Total $221,474 $161,486 $382,960 $36,090

State Fiscal Year 2023

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/22-6/30/23
$0.00 $161,486 $161,486 $0.00

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/22 - 6/30/23

$81,000 $0.00 $81,000 $0.00

Continuum of Care

7/1/22 - 6/30/23
$149,872 $0.00 $149,872 $38,532

YHDP Grant

10/1/22- 6/30/23
$32,216 $0.00 $32,216 $0.00

Sub Total $263,088 $161,486 $424,574 $38,532

State Fiscal Year 2024

'

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/23-6/30/24
$0 $161,486 $161,486 $0

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/23-6/30/24

$92,161 $0 $92,161 $0

Continuum of Care

7/1/23 - 6/30/24
$150,728 $0.00 $150,728 $38,754

YHDP Grant

7/1/23-6/30/24
$42,955 $0.00 $42,955 $0.00 .

Sub Total $285,844 $161,486 $447,330 $38,754

State Fiscal Year 2025

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/24-6/30/25
$0 $161,486 $161,486 $0

Emergency Solutions Grant-
7/1/24-6/30/25

$92,161 $0 $92,161 $0

Continuum of Care

7/1/24 - 6/30/25
$150,728 $0.00 $150,728 $38,754

YHDP Grant

7/1/24-9/30/24
$10,738 $0.00 $10,738 $0.00

Sub Total $253,627 $161,486 $415,113 $38,754

State Fiscal Year 2026

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Continuum of Care

7/1/25-6/30/26
$150,728 $0^00 $150,728 $38,754

In

Institute for Community Alliances

SS-2019-BHS-03-HM[S-01-A05

Exhibit BtI , Amendment 5

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B-1, Amendment 5

Sub Total $150,728 $0.00 $150,728 $38,754

State Fiscal Year 2027

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Continuum of Care

7/1/26 - 6/30/i27
$150,728 $0.00 $150,728 $38,754

Sub Total $150,728 $0.00 $150,728 $38,754

State Fiscal Year 2028

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Continuum of Care

7/1/27-7/31/27
$12,560 $0.00 $12,560 $3,229

Sub Total $12,560 $0.00 $12,560 $3,229

Grand Total $1,760,184 $865,548 . $2,625,732 $394,195

Institute for Community Alliances

SS-2019-BHS-03-HMIS-01-A05

Exhibit B-1, Amendment 5

Page 3 of 3

Contractor Initials:

—OS
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Date:

7/14/2023



Budget Sheet, Amendment 0S

ICA HMIS

|CoC Funds • NHW11UT(TB0)

SFY2024 - 8/1/23-6/30/24

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BKSSHARE

Activity Noms BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD (MONTHLY

HMIS S  67.922 s S S S • i S  -67.922 $ ■ $

Administraiian S  1.768 $ i S S - J i  1.788 J ■ S

25% Required Match %  17.874 s S $  17,874 % 6 $ • S

TOTAL KUO FUNDS/BALANCE t  IT.SW t $ 1  17.674 6 • i 9  69.710 6 • J

'SFY2025~7/l'/24:7/31/24-

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS %  6.17S 6 S S $ • 5 5  6.175 5 • 5

Administration S  162 6 %  ■ ■ 6 5 ■ S S  162 $ - $

25% Required Match S  1.62S S $ 6  1.625 S s $ . $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 6  7.962 6 6 6  . 1.825 5 • $ S  6.337 $ - 5

TOTAL - 8/1/23-7/31/24

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD (MONTHLY

HMIS t 74.097 $ J t ' S • S 74.097 S - S

Mminislratlon t 1.950 5 t SI S - $ 1.950 s • s

25% Required Match S 19.499 5 5 S' 18.499 5 - $ ■ $

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 95,548 $ 5 5' 19.499 s • S 76.047 s - s

Total W/0 Match %  76.047

$  304,168

Institute (or Community Alliances

SS-2019-eHS-03HMISK}l-A0S

Homeless Management Information System Page 1 o(4

Contractor Initials

Date:

5
7/14/2023



Budget Sheet, Amefldment BS

ICA HMIS

|CoC funds - NHOOllUTfTBO)

SfY202S - 8/1/24^/30/25

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Nome BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 67,922 8 8 8 8 ■ 8 67.922 8 • 8

Administration 1,768 $ $ 8 8 • 8 1.768 8 • 8

25% Required Match 17,874 % $ 8 17,674 8 8 8 • 8

TOTAL HUO FUNOS/BALAMCE •7,884 i 8 8 17,874 8 - 8 66,710 8 • 8

■SFY2026~7/l/25i7/31/25-
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD I40NTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 8 8.175 8 8 8 8 - 8 8 6.175 8 • 8

Administration 8 162 8 8 8 . 8 • 8 8 162 8 - 8

25% Required Match • 8 1.625 8 8 8 1,625 8 8 8 • ' 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 8 7.962 8 8 8 1.628 8 - 8 6.337 8 - 8

TOTAL-8/1/24-7/31/25
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 74,097 8 8 8 8 • 8 8 74,097 8 - 8

iVlminlstration 8 1.950 8 8 8 8 • 8 8 1,950 8 • 8

25% Required Match 8 19.499 8 8 8 19.499 8 8 . 8 • 8

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE 95.546 8 8  • ; 8 19.499 8 • 8 8 76,047 8 • 8

Total W/0 Match 76,047

Institute for Community Alliances
SS-2019-BHS-03-HMIS^l-A0S

Homeless Management Information System

Contractor Initials:

Page 2 of 4
7/14/202J



ICAHMIS

ICoC Funds • NH0011L1T(TBO}

Budget Sheet, Amendment OS

SFY2026 - 8/1/25-6/30/26

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD htONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 67,922 $ i 6 S ■ S 67.922 S ■ $

Mnslnislretlcn 1,768 i i S . s ■ s 1.786 $ • S

25% RaquIrM Match 17,674 t t S 17,874 s S S - %

TOTAL HUO FUNOS/BALANCE 87.664 % i t 17.874 s • s 69.710 s • $

•SFY2027-^7/l/26i7/31/26-

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Nama BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 6,175 s t s S - S S 6,175 I ■ 5

Administration 162 $ $ $ . S • $ i 162 S • J

25% Raqulrad Match "1.625 i S s .  1,625 s 5 S • S

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE 7.962 % $ 8 1,625 5 • s 5 6,137 J • $

TOTAL-8/1/25-7/31/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Nama BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS t 74,097 % S 8 8 - 8 8 74.097 S • 8

MminisnUon 5 1.950 i  ■ s 8 8 - 8 8 1.950 8 • 8

25% Raqulrad Match 19,499 $ 8 8 19.499 8 8 8 - 8

TOTAL HUO FUNOS/BALANCE 99,648 8 8 8 19,499 8 • 8 8 76,047 8 • 8

Tout W/0 Match 78.047

Institute (or Community Alliances

SS-2019-eHS-03-HMlS-01-AOS

Homeless Management Information System

Contractor Initials:

Page 3 of 4 Date:,
7/14/2023



Budget Sheet, Amendment #S

ICA HMIS

[CoC Funds • NH0011UT(TBO}

SFY2027 - 8/1/26-6/30/27

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Namo BUDGET VTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

KMtS S  67.922 S s $ S ■ i i  67.922 8 - 8

MmlnisirBtion S  1.768 i s $ i ■■ i i  1.788 8 • 8

25% RequIrM Match $  17.874 $ i i  17.874 i 8  • ■ 8 ■ 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S  17,684 $ $ 1  17.874 8 • $ 8  69.710 8 • 8

SI-T2028 - //1/2/-//31/2/ i

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY . BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMlS S  6.I7S S i $ t ■ $ 8  8.176 8 - 8

Admlnistratlan S  162 S i S J - $ 8  162 8 - 8

2S% Raquirad Match S  1.62S i  ■ i S  1.629 S 8 8 - 8  - ■

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S  7,982 S S S  1.829 S ■ $ 8  6.337 8 - 8

TOTAL-8/1/26-7/31/27
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 8  74.097 8 8 8 8 • 8 8  74.097 8 • 8

/yjmintstration 8  1.990 8 8 8 8 - 8 8  1.990 8 • 8

25% Raqu9«0 Match 8  19.496 8 8 8  ' 19.499 8 8 8 - 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 8  99,948 8 8 8  19,499 8 • $ 8  76.047 8 - 8

Tptal W/O Meteh 76,047

Institute (or Community Alliances

SS-2019-eHS-03-HMlS^lA0S

Homeless Management Information System

Contractor Initials:

Page 4 o(4 Date:
7/14/2023



Budget Sheet, Afnendment BS

ICA HMIS

ICoC Funds - NK0023LlTrrB0)

SFY2024 . 8/1/23-6/30/24

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BftSSH ARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS $ 48,t29 S i S 3 - 3 46.129 3 - 3

Administration S 1,495 s S 5 3 ■ 3 1.495 3 ■ 3

25% RequM Match S 12.260 s i i 12.280 3 3 3 - 3

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE S9.904 1 i % 12.280 3 • 3 47.624 3 - 3

r 5FY2025 ■ 7/1/24:7/31/24 i

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BftSSH ARE

Activity Nama BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS $ 4.193 9 $ $- 3 • 3 ■ 3 • 4.193 3 - 3

AdministralJon s 136 3 S $ 3 • 3 3 136 3 • 3

25% Required Match s 1,116 S $ 3 1.118 3 3 3 - 3

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE t S.44S $ s 3 1.118 3 - 3 3 4.329 3 • 3

TOTAL-8/1/23-7/31/24

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE B -IS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 50.322 3 3 3 3 • 3 50.322 3 • 3

Admlnlslration 1.631 3 3 31 3 ■ 3 3 1.631 3 - 3

25% Required Match 13.398 3 3 3 13.396 3 3 3 • 3

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 63.349 3 3 3 13.399 3 • 3 51,953 3 • 3

Total W/0 Match S  S1.9S3

S  207.812

Institute for Community Alliances

SS-2019-BHS-03-HM]S^31-A0S

Homeless Management Information System

Contractor Initials

Page 1 of4 Date:
7/14/202J



Budget Sheet, Amendment SS

ICA HMIS

|CoC Funds • NK0023UT{TBD)

SFY2025 - 8/1/24-6/30/2S

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE 6HS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMtS 46.129 5 5 5 5 • 5 5 46.129 $ ■ 3

Admlnlslretian 1.495 % 5 5 S ■ $ 5 1.495 3 • 3

25% Required Maich 12.280 5 5 S 12.280 S $ 3 ■ 3

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE 69,904 6 i 6 13.260 s • 6 S 47.624 3 • 3

'■
5FY202b • //l/25-//dl/25 !

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 4.193 S 5 5 5 ■ 5 3 4.193 3 - 3

Mminlstration 5 136 5 $ i - S - S 3 136 3 - 3

25% Required Match 1.116 S 5 i 1,116 5 3 $ • 3

TOTAL HUO FUNOSfBALANCE 6,446 6 S 6 1,116 6 ■ 3 3 4:329 $ - 3

TOTAL-8/1/24-7/31/25
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD ll«ONTHLY

HMIS 5 -  50.322 S 5 5 S • 6 3 50.322 3 • 3

MmlnlslraUon 1.631 5 S 5 6 - $ 3 1.631 3 .- 3

25% Reaulrad Match 5 13.396 5 5 5 13.396 S 3 3 • 3

TOTAL HUO FUN05/BALANCE 66,349 6 5 6 13,396 S ■ 5 3 51,953 3 • 3

Total W/O Match 51,953

Institu.te for Community Alliances
SS-2019-8HS-03-HMIS^l-A05

Homeless Management Information System

Contractor Initials: ^

Page 2 of 4
7/14/202J



Budget Sheet, Amendment RS

ICAHMIS

jCoC Funds • NH0023UTfTBD)

SFY2026 - 8/1/25-6/30/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Nam* BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMtS 4S.t29 S S 5 5 ■ 5 48.129 $ - S

MmlnistrBllan 1.495 5 $ 5 5 • 5 1.495 $ - $

25% Requ^ed Match 12.280 S 5 5 12.280 $ S 5 ■ s

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S9.904 S i S 12.280 8 • 5 . 47.624 5 - S

•SFY2027-?*7/l/26i7/31/26'

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

Activity Nam* BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD PiWNTHLY

HMIS 4.193 $ $ 3 3 • 3 3 4.193 3 • 3

/yjminlstration 136 3 S 3 3 • 3 3 136 3 - 3

25% Required Match 1.116 5 3 3 1.116 3 3 3 ■ 3

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S.44S S 3 3 1.116 3 • 3 3 4.329 3 - 3

TOTAL-8/1/25-7/31/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Nam* BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 50.322 3 3 3  . 3 ■ 3 50.322 3 ■ 3

Mmlnlstratlan 3 1.631 3 3 3 3 ■ 3 3 1.631 3 • 3

25% Required Match 3 13.396 3 3 3 13.396 3 . 3 3 ■ 3

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 69.349 3 3" . 3 13.396 3 • 3 51.953 3 ■ 3

Total W/0 Match $1,953

Institute tot Community Alliances

SS-2019-BHS03-HMISK>i-A05

Homeless Management Information System

Contractor Ir^tlals:

Page 3 of 4 Date;
7/14/202J



Budget Sheet, Amendmefit US

ICA HMIS

IcoC Funds • NH0023UT(TB0)

SFY2027 - 8/1/26-6/30/27

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMtS i  ' 40.129 % 9 9 9 • 9 9  46.129 9 • 9

MmlnlstrBtian i  1.495 S 9 9 9 - 9 9  1.495 9 • 9

2S% Required Match 5  12.250 $ 9 9  12.260 9 9 9 • 9

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE S  99.904 t 9 9  12.260 9 • 9 9  47.624 9 - 9

1 1

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 9  4.193 S 9 9 9 • 9 9  4.193 9 - 9

Administration S  136 9 9 9 9 • 9 9  136 9 • 9

25% Required Match $  1.116 9 9 9  1.116 $ $ 9 ■ 9

TOTAL HUO FUNDS/BALANCE S  9.44S 9 9 9  1.116 9 • 9 9  4.329 9 • 9

TOTAL-8/1/26-7/31/27
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 50.322 9 9 9 9 • 9 50.322 9 • 9

Mminislrallon 1.631 9 9 9 9 • 9 1.631 9 - 9

25% Required Match 13.396 9 9 9 13.396 9 9 9 - 9

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 65.349 9 9 9 13.396 9 • 9 51.953 9 - 9

Total W/0 Match 51.9$3

J

Institute (or Community AlUances

SS-2019-BHS^3-HMIS^1-A05

Homeless Management information System

Contractor Initials;

Page 4 of 4 Date:
7/14/202J



Budget Sheet, Amendment S5

ICAHMIS

|CoC Funds • NH003SL1T{TBO)

SPY2024 - 8/1/23-6/30/24

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMtS %  20.t87 $  - 5 S 5 - 5 i  20.167 $ - S

Mmlnistrallcn t  647 5 S s 5 • S 5  647 5 • s

25% Required Match i  5,371 J $ $  5,371 $ $ 5 - s

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE t  26.205 s 3 1  5.371 $ - i S  20,834 S ■ 5

5>-V2U2b • //l/24-//il/24 '

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 5  1,635 3 5 5 5 - S 5  1.835 5 • 3

Administration S  59 J S S 5 - s i  59 S - 3

25% Required Match 5  486 5 $ 5  488 s $ % ■ 3

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 5  . 2.312 % s t  4«8 t - s 5  1.894 i ■ 3

TOTAL'- 8/1/23-7/31/24
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMtS 3  ' 22.022 3 3 3 3 • 3 3 22.022 3 • 3

Admlnistratlcn 3  706 3 3 3 3 • 3 3 706 $ ■ 3

25% Required Match 3  6.869 3 3 3 5.859 3 3 3 • 3

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 3  28.587 3 3 3 5,859 3 • 3 22.728 3 • 3

Totil W/0 Match $  - 22.728

S  90,912

Institute fof Community Alliances

S5-2O19-BHS-O3-HM1SO1A0S

Homeless Management Information System

Contractor Initials:

Page 1 of 4.
7/14/2023



Budget Sheet, Amendment Hi

tCAHMIS

|CoC Funds • NH003SL1T(TBO)

SFY2025 - 8/1/24-6/30/25

TOTAL PROGRAM COST ' CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMtS %  20.187 8 S 8 8 • 8 8  20.187 8 ■ 8

AdmlnistTBllon S  647 $ s 8 8 - 8 8  647 8 ■ 8

25% RaquM Match S  5,371 $ s 8  5.371 8 8 8 - 8

TOTAL HUO FUNDSfBALANCE 8  26.205 $ % 8  5.371 8 ■ 8 8  20.834 8 • 8

5K*2U2b - //1/25-//31/25 1

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS $  1.835 S 5 8 8 • 8 8  1.835 8 - 8

Administration 5  59 s 8 8 8 - 8 8  59 8 • 8

25% Requlrwl Match i  488 s 8 8  488 8 8 8 • 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE t  2.382 s 8 8  488 8 • 8 8  1.894 8 • 8

TOTAL-8/1/24-7/31/25

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

HMlS 8  22.022 8 8 8 8 - 8 8  22.022 8 • 8

AJministrallon 8  706 8 8 8 8 • 8 8  706 8 • 8

25% Required Match 8  5.859 8 8 8  5.859 8 8 8 • 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 8  28,567 8 8 8  5.859 8 • 8 8  22.728 8 • 8

Total W/0 Match 22.728

Institute for Community Alliances

SS-2019-BHS-03-HMIS^l-A0S

Homeless Management information System

Contractor Initials

Page 2 of 4
7/14/202J



BtxJge( Sheet, Amendment SS

ICA HMIS

|CoC Funds • NH003SUT(TBO)

5FY2026 - 8/1/2S-6/30/26

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 20.187 S 8 8 8 . 8 8 20.187 8 • 8

Mmlnlstratlon 647 J 8 8 8 - $ 8 647 8 - 8

25% Required Match s 8.371 J 8 8 5,371 8 8 8 • 8

TOTAL HUD FUNOSfBALANCE 26.268 8 8 8 9.871 8 - 8 8 20.634 8 - 8

SI-V2U2/ • //I/2b-//31/2b 1

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 1.638 8 8 8 8 • 8 8 1.639 8 • 8

Administration 89 8 8 8 8 • 8 8 69 8 - 8

25% Required Match 466 8 8 8 466 8 8 8 - 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDSIBALANCE 2.382 8 8 8 466 8 - 8 8 1,694 8 - 8

>

TOTAL-8/1/2S-7/31/26
TOTAL PROGRAM COST .CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 22.022 8 8 8 8 • 8 8 22.022 8 ■ 8

Mmlnblratlcn 706 8 8 8 8 • 8 8 706 8 - 8

25% Required Match 8.689 8 8 8 S.6S9 8 8 . 8 • 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE 28.887 8 8 8 1  S.6S9 8 • 8 8 22.728 8 - 8

Total W/0 Match 22,726

Institute for CommunltY Alliances

SS-2019-BHS-03-HMIS^1-A05

Homeless Management Information System Page 3 of 4

Contractor Initials

Date:
7/14/202}



Budget Sheet. Amendment es

ICAHMIS

ICoC Funds - NH003SUT{TBD)

SFY2027 • 8/1/26-6/30/27

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD IMONTHLY

HMIS S  20.187 8 8 8 8 • 8 8  20.187 8 • 8

Administrallon 8  947 8 8 8 8 • 8 8  647 8 • 8

25% Ftw]ulrwj Match ' $  5,371 8 8 8  5.371 8 8 8 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S  29.209 t 8 8  5.371 8 • 8 8  20.934 8 • 8

• 1

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS S  1.835 8 8 8 8 ■ 8 8  1.935 8 • 8

Mminlstrallcn 8  59 8 8 8 8 • 8 8  59 8 • 8

25% Required Match 8  488 8 8 8  488 8 8 8 - 8

TOTAL HUD FUNDS/BALANCE S  2.382 8 8 8  488 8 ■ 8 8  1.994 8 - 8

TOTAL-8/1/26-7/31/27

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS 8  22.022 8 8 8 8 • 5 8  22.022 8 • 8

AdminlstraUon 8  706 8 8 8 8 • 8 8  706 8 - 8

25% Required Match 8  5.659 8 8 8  5.959 8 8 8 • 8

TOTAL HUD FUNOSfBALAHCE 8  28.$»7 8 8 8  5.959 8 • 8 8  22.729 8 • 8

Total W/0 Mateh 22.728

Institute for Community Alliances'

SS-2019-BHS-O3-HMIS-O1-AOS

Homeless Management Information System

Contractor Initials:

Page'4 of 4 Date:
7/14/2023



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5A6113D7-7B97-4796^025-86CE260AEE16

State of New Hampshire
I

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY

ALLIANCES is a Iowa Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 26, 2019. 1 filler

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned." 1

Business ID: 813727

Certificate Number: 0005959094

u.

A
•5b

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my harid and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of January A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



OocuSign Envelope ID; 5A6113D7-7B97-4796-8025-86Ce260AEE16

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Mark Phillips, hereby certify that;

1 1 am a duly elected Cierk/Secretary/Officer of Institute for Community Alliances,

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on Aug 17, 2022, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That David Eberbach, CEO and Julie Eberbach, COO is duly authorized on behalf of Institute for
Community Alliances to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its
agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other
instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in conjacts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly slated herein.

Dated:7/10/2023
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Mark Phijlips
Title: Board Chair

Rev. 03/24/20



OocuSign Envelope ID; 5A6113D7-7B97-4796-8025-86CE260AEE16 INSCOMPC

ACORD,. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMrt>0/YYYY)

6/20/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any liahts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement($).

PRODUCER

Holmes Murphy & Associates

2727 Grand Prairie Pkwy

Waukee, lA 50263

CONTACT
NAME:

PHONE „ .
fA/C. No. Ext\: No):

InnRFqq corecertiflcaterequest@holmesmurphy.eom

IN$URER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A: Hartford Underwriters Insurance Company 30104

INSURED

Institute for Community Alliances

1111 9th St. Suite 380

Des Moines, lA 50314

INSURER B: Hartford Insurance Group

INSURER c - Accredited Specialty Insurance Company

INSURER D: United States Liability Insurance Group 25895

INSURER E: Houston Specialty Insurance Company

INSURER F;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO .WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE Of INSURANCE

ADDL
INSR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN-L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

POLICY [H I X I LOC
OTHER;

SUBR
WVD POLICY NUMBER

91SBAAX7YK6 35/15/2023

POLICY EPF POLICY EXP
(MM/DO/YYYYI IMM/DD/YYYY)

05/15/2024

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

..ENTED ,
a occurroncel

MED EXP (Any one peraon)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$1.000.000

$1.000.000

$10.000

$1.000.000

$2.000.000

$2.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 91SBAAX7YK6 05/15/2023 05/15/2024
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea flcddenti t1.000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acddeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddent)

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

91SBAAX7YK6 35/15/2023 05/15/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE $2.000.000

AGGREGATE $2.000.000

DED X RETENTION $10,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE (-—l
OFFICERfl^EMBER EXCLUDED? | N |
(Mandatory In NH)
If yes. des^be under'
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

91WECAX80KH 35/15/2023 05/15/2024 V PER
* STATUTE

OTH-

£B_

NIA
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1.000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

Cyber Liability

Nonprofit D&O

Professional

2CiAlA17S011819000

ND01558514

MEOHS000487800

05/15/2023

35/15/2023

05/15/2023

05/15/2024

05/15/2024

05/15/2024

$2,000,000

$1,000,000

$2.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Addlllonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space Is required)
Proof Of Insurance

CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301

1

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1
#S808629/M807229

of 1 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
IMMT1
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES . . .

1111 9TH ST. #380, DES MOINES, lA 50314

I  z iMM
E: INF0@ICALL1ANCES.ORG UUIJuBIIb■■■■■■■■

Institute for Community Alliances
W: WWW.ICALLIANCES.ORG ^

ALASKA I BOISE CITY / ADA COUNTY I IOWA I MINNESOTA I MISSOURI I NEW
HAMPSHIRE I NORTH DAKOTA I OMAHA/COUNCIL BLUFFS I ROCK RIVER COALITION
SOUTH CAROLINA LOW COUNTRY I VERMONT | WISCONSIN I.WYOMING

MISSION STATEMENT -ICA supports communities with systems, information arid data analysis that empower
decision making to improve the quality of life, particularly with a focus on ending homelessness
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WILSON AND COMPANY, PLLC

Cert{fied Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Institute for Community Alliances
Des Moines, Iowa .

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Institute for Community Alliances (a nonprofit organization), which
comprise the Statements of Financial Position as of June 30.,2022 and 2021, and the related Statements of
Activities and Changes In Net Assets, Functional Expenses, and Cash Flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Institute for Comrhunity Alliances as of June 30, 2022 and -2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the yearis then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

!  '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with auditing slandards'generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAS). Our.responsibilities under those standards are further described, in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Institute for
Community Alliances and to meet our other ethical resporisibilities. in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implemeritation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparatiori and fair presentation of financial staterhents that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise, substantial doubt a^out Institute for Community Alliances' ability to
continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a

J  guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS wijl always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of ngt detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

J  error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a .substantial likelihood that, individually or in the

J  aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

J  ̂ ^ ^ *
WEST DES MOINES: Regency West 5, 4500 Westown Pkwy, Suite 140, West Des Moines, lA 50266 | P. 515-223-0002 j F. 515-223-0430

J  ■ PERRY:,13072ndSt,Perry,IA50220 I P.515-465-3591 | F. 515-465-3593
Members Ameficar\ Institute of Certified Public Accountontc

J
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform,audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to^lhe audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Institute for Community Alliances' internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Institute for Community Alliances' ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with, governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the financial statements. The additional ,supporting schedules are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are also not a required part of the financial statements. Such information Is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financiar statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is
fairly stated, \n alt material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued a report dated November 28, 2022, on
our consideration of Institute for Community Alliances' internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of. internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Institute for
Community Alliances' internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Institute for Community
Alliances' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

MERIWETHER, WILSON AND COMPAt
Certified Public Accountants

November 28, 2022

West Des Moines, Iowa

.WILSON AND COMPANY. PLLC

Ccrt^cd Fubl'ic .\ecounlanl*
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E FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Statements of Financial Position

June 30,

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment

Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles

Accumulated Depreciation

Net Property and Equipment

Other Asset.

Investments - Deferred Compensation Plan

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities

Line of Credit

Accounts Payable
Compensated Absences
Accrued Payroll Taxes and Fringe
Refundable Advances - Grants and Contracts

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities

Deferred Compensation Plan

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Total Net Assets

■ Tola! Liabilities and Net Assets

2022

$  781,067

1,913,630

2,694,697

101,578

28,822

(116,370)

14,030

36,008

$ 2,744,735

459,490

256,020

75,432

422,050

1,212,992

36,008

1,249,000

1,453,856

41,879

1.495,735

$ 2,744,735

2021

940.959

1,445,847

2,386,806

101,959

28,822

(110,606)

20,175

36,321

2,443,302

200,637

226,139

42,813

506,066

975,655

36,321

1,011,976

1,321,801

109.525

1,431,326

2.443.302

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these-financial statements.
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30.

2022 2021

Without With Without With

Donor Donor Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

Support and Revenue

Government Grants and

Contract Reimbursements $ 6.665.654 - 6,665,654 5,445,019 — 5,445.019

Other Grants and

Contracted Services 5.935,352 5,935,352 5.779.167 — 5.779.167

User Fees and Licenses 740,450 — 740.450 836,577 — 836,577

Investment income (Loss) (4.439) (4.439) 8.142 - 8,142

Dean Wrigjit Fund - 3,674 3,674 - 24 24

In-Kind Contributions 20,381 — 20,381 20.381 — 20.381

Other Revenue 10,136 - 10,136 32,439 — 32,439

Net Assets Released

from Restrictions 71.320 (71,320) " 3,153 (3.153) -

Total Support and Revenue 13.438.854 (67,646) 13,371,208 12.124.878 (3,129) 12,121.749

Expenses

Program Services 13.056.995 - 13,056,995 11,570.469 -- 11,570,469

Management and General 244.615 - 244.615 211,955 " 211,955

Fundraisifig 5,189 - 5,189 518 - 518

Total Expenses 13.306,799 ~ :13.306,799 11.782.942 - 11,782,942

increase (Decrease)
in Net Assets 132.055 (67,646) 64,409 341.936 (3,129) 338,807

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 1,321,801 109,525 1.431.326 979,865 112,654 1.092,519

Net Assets at End of Year $ 1,453.856 41.879 1,495,735 1.321,801 109,525 1,431.326

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Functional Expenses

Years Ended June 30,

2022

Program

Services

Management

and General Fundraising Total

In-Kind $  20,381 20,381

Depreciation " 5,765 " 5,765

HMIS Services 1,184,301 " 1,184,301

HMIS Software - Support and Licenses 178,237 - " 178,237

Payroll and Staffing 8,634,013 123,449 " 8,757,462

Space Costs 148,591 1,211 - 149,802

Operations 623,943 31,441 5,035 660,419

Supportive Services 2,069,718 51,815 " 2,121,533

Administrative Costs 185,337 30,934 154 216,425

FEMA Contract 12,474 - " 12,474

Total $ 13,056.995 244,615 5,189 13,306.799
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Statements of Functional Expenses

Years Ended June 30.

2021

Program

Services

In-Kind

Depreciation
HMIS Services

HMIS Software - Support and. Licenses

Payroll and Staffing
Space Costs
Operations
Supportive Services
Other Costs

FEMA Contract

Total

$  20,381

1.245,367

103,295

7.362.120

160,905

343,020

2,091.342

230.334

13.705

$ 11,570,469

Management

and General

6,833

1.783

119.235

1.616

45.975

36,513

211,955

Fundraising

492

26

518

Total

20,381

6,833

1.247.150

103,295

7,481,355

162,521

389,487

2,091,342

266,873

13,705

11,782,942

J

J

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial statements.
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30,

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

Charges to Operations Not Requiring Cash
Depreciation
Book Value of Property and Equipment Disposals

. (Increase) Decrease in
Receivables

Increase (Decrease) in

Payables and Accrued Expenses
Refundable Advances - Grants and Contracts

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Balances - Beginning of Year

Cash Balances - End of Year

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures
Cash Paid During the Years for Interest

2022 2021

$  64,409 338,807

5,765'. 6,833

380 "

(467,783) (478,857)

321,353 192,589

(84,016) 208,145-

(159,892) 267,517

940,959 673,442

$ 781,067. 940,959

$  131 285

the accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30.-2022 and 2021

1. Nature of Activities

Institute for Community Alliances (the Institute) is a nonprofit corporation as defined under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Institute was organized under the laws of the state of Iowa to develop,
implement, and evaluate innovative housing, and related programs targeted to low-income households.
The Institute is not considered a private foundation for income tax reporting purposes.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying financial statements have been-prepared in conformity with the accounting principles
appropriate for nonprofit organizations. The accounting and reporting policies of the Institute conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The following describes the
more significant of those policies.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
During the year ended June 30. 2022, the Institute adopted ASU 2020-07, Not-for-profit Er}tities (Topic 958);
Preser)tation and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed NonTinancial Assets. The ASU
requires the presentation of contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the statement of
activities, apart from contributions of cash and other financial assets and also requires additional
disclosures. The Institute adopted the standard July 1. 2021, using the retrospective method.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements '
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) which requires the recognition of
lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet for all lease obligations and disclosures of key
information about leasing arrangements. ASU 2016-02 requires the recognition of lease assets and lease
liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under previous generally accepted
accounting principles. ASU 2016-02 will be effective for the Institute for Community Alliances for all
annual interim periods beginning after December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fiscal
years. Management is currently evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of this new accounting
guidance will have on its financial statements.

Financial Statement Presentation and Contributions

the Institute reports financial information in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
' which requires the Institute to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to
two classes of net assets and requires classification of contributions received as those without donor
restrictions and those with donor restrictions. Contributions received- and expended in the same fiscal
year are reported as revenue received without donor restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the Statements pf Cash Flows, the Institute considers all cash in checking and savings
accounts and highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to

J  be cash equivalents.

J  Grant or Contract Reimbursements Receivable
Grant or contract receivables have been recorded at net realizable value when eligible expenditures have

J  exceeded contract receipts to date. There have been no bad debts -and, therefore, no allowance for
uncollectible amounts has been recorded. . - . -

Property and Equipment
j  Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Expenses for maintenance, repairs, and minor replacements

are charged to expense, while the cost of major replacements, betterments and acquisitions is capitalized.
J  Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over'the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging

from three to seven years.

J

J  -
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Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are valued at their fair values in the Statements of Financial Position. Unrealized gains and
losses are included in the change in net assets.

Compensated Absences
The Institute allows for the accrual and accumulation of unused vacation time of its employees and the
payment for such absences upon termination of employment or when time off for the absence is
scheduled. The unused vacation leave at the year-end date is accrued as a liability on the financial
statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Institute records financial assets and liabilities using a fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs
used in measuring fair value into three broad levels as follows;

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as
of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Pricing inputs are quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, either, directly or indirectly through market,corroboration, for
substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

Level 3 - Significant inputs to pricing have little or no observability as of the reporting date. The types of
assets or liabilities included in Level 3 are those with inputs requiring significant management judgment
or estimation, such as complex and subjective models and forecasts used to determine fair value.

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest .level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The Institute's assessment of significance to a particular input to
the fair value measurement requires judgment and may affect the valuation of fair value assets and liabilities
and their placement within the fair value hierarchy levels.

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Institute in estimating the fair-value of its financial
instruments;

Investments are measured at fair value based on quoted prices in active markets and as such are
categorized as Level 1.

The carrying amounts of cash, receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued experises, and
other liabilities approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturities of these financial
instruments.

Revenue Recognition
Revenues from grants are recognized to the extent that they are expended in accordance with grantor
conditions. Revenues from contracts, including Other Contracted Services and User Fees and Licenses
as shown on the Statements of Activities and Changes In Net Assets, are recorded over time as earned.
Any grant or contracts proceeds that have been received but not expended or yet earned are shown as
Refundable Advances - Grants and Contracts in the liability section of the accompanying. Statements of
Financial Position.

Contributions are recorded as revenue when received or pledged, by the donor. All contributions are
deemed available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that
are restricted by the donor for future periods or specific purposes are reported as revenue with donor
restrictions, , •

In-Kind Contributions

The Institute recognized cpntributed nonfinancial assets made during the year, none of which contained
donor-imposed restrictions. These contributions consisted of space costs donated for usage throughout the
year and are recorded at the estimated fair value based on similar space and usage. The recorded value of
the donated space amounted to $20,381 for each of the years ended June 30. 2022 and 2021.
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Donated Services

.The Institute receives a substantial amount of donated services from unpaid volunteers. No amounts have
been" recognized in the accompanying Statement of Activities for these services as the criteria for
recognition under FASB ASC 950 have not been satisfied. The estimated value of these unrecognized
donated service hours was $56,360 and $11,797 respectively for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The allocations of expenses shown on the Statement of Functional Expenses were made by direct
assignment of costs to functional categories where a direct relationship exists. Additionally, the Institute
allocates Indirect expenses and joint program direct expenses Individually to programs based on hours
charged by employees, or estimated benefits based upon usage or other methods to the programs for
which the cost was Incurred.

Income Taxes

The Institute is currently exempt from state and federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under
Section 509(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Institute would be subject to federal and state income
tax on any unrelated business income generated from activities not specifically related to Its tax-exempt
purpose. No unrelated activities were conducted during the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and,
accordingly, no provision has been made for Income tax liabilities or expense.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted In the
United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclasslficatlons

Certain reclasslfications to the 2021 financial statements have been made to conform to the 2022
presentation.

3. Principal Programs
The following Is a summary description of the principal programs administered by the Institute;

Homeless Management Information System (HMIjS)
The Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) is a local information technology system
used to collect client-level data and data on the provision of housing and services to homeless
Individuals and families and persons at risk of'homelessness. Each Continuum of Care (CoC) is
responsible for selecting an HMIS software solution that complies with HUD's data collection,
management, and reporting standards. '

Emergency,Solutions Grants (ESG) Program ,
The Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) program is a formula grant program. Eligible recipients
gene.rally consist of metropoiitan cities, urban counties, territories, and states, as defined in 24 CFR
576.2. ESG funds may be used for five program components: street outreach, emergency shelter,
homelessness prevention, rapid re-housing assistance, and HMIS; as well as administrative activities.
The Institute for Community Alliances provides the HMIS services required by the ESG program, under
the ESG regulatory standards,.

Continuum of Care (CoC) Program
The Continuum of Care (CoC) Program is designed to promote communitywide commitment to the goal
of ending .homelessness; provide funding for efforts by -nonprofit providers, and Stale and local
governments to quickly rehouse homeless Individuals and families while minimizing the trauma and
dislocation caused to homeless individuals, families, and communities by homelessness; prpmpte
access to and effect utilization of mainstrearn programs by .homeless Individuals and families; and
optimize self-sufficiency among Individuals and families experiencing homelessness. The Institute for
Community Alliances provides the HMIS services required by the Continuum of Care prograrri, under
the program's regulatory standards.
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4. Support from Governmental Agencies
The Institute received approximately 50% in 2022 (45% in 2021) of its support and revenue from
governmental grants and contracts. A significant reduction in the level of government funding would have a
major affect on the institute's program activities.

5. Concentration of Credit Risk

The institute maintains cash balances at four local banks. The Federal Deposit insurance Corporation
insures their accounts at each institution in an amount up to $250,000. At June 30, 2022, the institute
had $195,338 deposited in excess of federally Insured limits ($308,732 in 2021).

6. Receivables

Amounts earned but, not received under contracts with program funding sources are summarized as
follows at June 30;

Due From Program 2022 2021

Anchorage Coalition to End

Homelessness HMIS&TA $  118,306 32,290

Catholic Charities of St. Paul Minnesota Project 16,928 13,147

City of. Boise Idaho Contract Services 8,811 10,431

Iowa Finance Authority ESG, HMiSi HOPWA, & ERA2 103,864 11,584

Minnesota DHS Contract Services 122,383 337.833

Three Rivers Community Action CoC Planning. 18,106 "

New Hampshire DHHS Contract Services 56,562 85,395

City of St. Louis AHTF Contract Services 15,620 21,648

North Dakota Dept. of Commerce Contract Services 56.585 26,901

University of Nebraska Contract Seri/ices 22i622 3,644

Wisconsin BOS/COC Employment Contract 406.461 162,108

Various Sources Continuum of Care Program 409,935 339,880

Various Sources Emergency Solutions Grant Program 340,751 314,963

Various Sources User Licenses and Training 74.981 66,005

Various'Sources Contract Services 141.715 20,018,

$ 1.913,630 1,445,847

7. Property and Equipment
Equipment owned by the institute is summarized as follows at June 30:

Current Accumulated

Vehicles

Totals

Office Furniture and Equipment

Vehicles

,  Totals

Cost

Book

Value

.  2022

$ 101,578' 101,578

28,822 5,765 ■ 14,792 . 14,030

$ 130,400 5,765 116,370 14,030

2021

$ 101,959 1,068 101,959

■  28,822 5,765 ■  8,647 ,20,175

$ 130,781 6,833 110,606 20,175

The estimated lives used on the:above equipment range from three to seven years.
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Substantially all of the capitalized equipment was funded under various grants with federal, state, or local
governmental entities and may revert back to these funding sources in the event such programs
terminate or the use of the property changes from its original purpose.

In addition, any proceeds from disposal of such properties must be expended with grantor approval.

Investments and Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are presented below based on
value hierarchy levels as of June 30,:

Quoted Significant

Price in Other

Active Observable Unobservable

Markets Inputs Inputs

Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

2022

Equity • Mutual Funds $ 36,008 36.008 —

2021

Equity - Mutual Funds $ 36,321| 36,321 —

>

Investment income is composed of the following cornponents for the years ended June 30:

1 .  .2022. 2021

.  Interest $  861 689

Net Unrealized Gains (5;276) 7,477

Administrative Charges ^ (24) (24)

Total Investment Income
i

$  .(4,439) 8,142

Refundable Advances - Grants and Contracts
Refundable advances are summarized as follows at June 30:

Project 2022 2021

Unearned Grant Advances

lA - COVID-19 RRH Pass Thru $ 10,000

lA-FEMA .. 4,392

MN - ESG Dakota . , 2,730

NH - Manchester ESG ' 1,176 ■  787

. Wl - ESG Madison 18,652 3,254

Wl - ESG Milwaukee ; - 27,133

Wt - ESG Racine 6,167 3,141

Wl-ESG State ■" 24,523
j 25,995 75,960

Unearned Contract Advances

User Fees and Licenses • 259.743 256,576
Purchase of Service Contracts 136,312 173.530

396.055 430.106

Total Refundable Advances $ 422,050 506,066
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User fees and licenses are billed throughout the Institute's fiscal year based upon each respective user's
anniversary dale, but no less than annually. User fees and licenses revenue is recognized as earned on
a pro-rata basis over the twelve-month period to which they apply.

Purchase of service contracts are generally billed quarterly. Advance billings are subsequently recorded
to revenue as the contract services are performed with revenue being recognized as earned during the
contract term.

10. Line of Credit

The Institute has entered into a $350,000 non-recourse line of credit agreement with Freedom Financial
Bank, This renewable loan bears interest at the higher of 1% over prime or 5.75% {5.75% at June 30,
2022) and matures on July 30, 2023. At June 30. 2022, the outstanding balance of this loan was $-0- ($-
0- in 2021). Interest costs incurred and charged to expense during the year ended June 30. 2022 totaled
$131 ($285 in 2021).

This loan is collateralized by the Institute's assets and contains various covenants and requirements as
determined bythe bank.

11. Net Assets

Net Assets Without.Donor Restrictions - Institute for Community Alliances' net assets without donor
restrictions were received without external restrictions and are generally available for ongoing operating
purposes.

Net assets without donor restrictions are summarized as follows at June 30:

2022 2021

Invested in Property and Equipment $
Undesignated Net Assets

14,030

1,439,826

20,175

1,301,626

Total Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions $ 1,453,856 1,321,801

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Institute for iCommunity Alliances has received donations which
under terms of their receipt are to be used for specific purposes and are classified as net assets with
donor restrictions.

Net assets with donor restrictions are summarized as follows at June 30:

2022 . 2021

Subject to Purpose Restrictions
Pohlad Family Foundation - HMIS Infrastructure Improvements

United Way Grant - HMIS Software Upgrade and User Training
Dean Wright Fund

$  27,517

148

14,214

75,952

17,844

. 15,729

$  41,879 ■  109,525

The Dean Wright Fund consists of net proceeds from fundralsing events conducted by the Opening Doors
committee in Des Moines, which is established to help alleviate homelessness for those who have
difficulty locating acceptable housing. The use of these funds is restricted for the benefit of or the
purposes prescribed by Opening Doors.
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12. Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets

institute for Community Alliances' financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of the
b

n

alance sheet date are summarized as follows at June 30:

2022 2021

Financial Assets at Year-End

Cash and Cash Equivalents

I  ' Accounts Receivable

Less Those Unavailable for General Expenditures Within One Year

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Financial Assets Available to f^eet Cash Needs for

General Expenditures Within One Year

$  781,067 .940,959.

1,913,630 1,445,847

2,694,697 2,386,806

(41,879) (109,525)

$  2,652,818 2.277.281

13. Lease Commitments

The Institute leases office space at various locations under non-canceiable agreements expiring through
February 29, 2024. Future minimum payments due under these agreements as of June 30 are as follows:

2022 2021.

2022 , ■  $ ' 90,255

2023 110,106 56,525

2024 .91,009 36,217

2025 56,040 "

2026 5Q,725 "

2027 30,151 "

$ 338,031 182,997

The Institute's rent expense totaled $149,802 for the year ended June 30. 2022 ($162,521 in 2021).

14. Pension and Deferred Compensation Plans
Effective November 1, 2014, the Institute established the Institute for Community Alliances 401 (k) Thrift Plan,
administered by Mutual of America. The plan is furided by employee contributions and employer
contributions equal to 5% of employee wages. The Institute's contributions to this plan totaled $348,725 for
the year ended June 30, 2022, while ernployee.s contributed $415,154 ($276,442 and $333,813,
respectively in 2021).

Effective May 1, 2019, the Institute adopted a 457(b) eligible deferred compensation plan for certain
management employees administered by Mutual of America. This plan is funded by employee and
employer contributions determined on an annual basis. The Institute's contributions to this plan totaled
$4,987 for the year ended June 30. 2022, while employees contributed $-0- ($13,062 and $-0- respectively
in 2021). All current participants in this plan are fuljy vested, however due to the nature of this plan,
investments remain assets of the Institute with a corresponding Deferred Compensation Plan liability in the
amount of $36,008 ($36,321 in 2021) which is equal to the investment value.

(

J  15. .Subsequent Events
.The Institute has evaluated events and transactions' occurring after June 30, 2022 for potential items

J  required to be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements. Subsequent events were evaluated
through November 28. 2022, the date the financial statements were available for issuance.

J  ■ '

1

J  . .

J  ' ^
J"
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Certified Public Accountants

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
. Institute for Community Alliances .
Des Moines, Iowa . t

j. . 1

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the. United States; the financial statements of Institute for Community Alliances (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as of June 30. 2022, and the" related
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. Functional Expenses, and. Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 28,
2022.'

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and" performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Institute for Community Alliances'
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the-purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of institute for Community Alliances' internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Institute for Community Alliances' internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements oh a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal

{■ control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that, a material rnisstatement of the Institute's financial
statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a

j  deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that id less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention.by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose describe'd in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or

J  significant deficiencies'. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not

J  been identified.

]

"WEST DBS MOINES: Regency West 5, 4500 Westown Pkwy, Suite 140, West Des Moines, lA 50266 | P, 515-223-0002 | F. 515-223-0430
J  PERRY! 1307 2nd St. Perry,lA50220 I P,515-465-3591 I F.S 15-465-3593

Members AmtsiKiitt liisliluie of Certified Pijblic Accountants

J



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5A6113D7-7897-4796^025-86CE260AEE16

1  '

1  16

^  Compliance and Other Matters

^  As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Institute for Community Alliances' financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with , certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct.and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under

' Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

■  Standards in considering the Institute's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

j

j

3

J

J

J

MERIWETHER, WILSON AND COMPW
Certified Public Accountants

November 28, 2022
West Des Moines, Iowa

WILSON AND COMPANY. PLl.C

Ctrli/xtd Publls Anountanit
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WILSON AND COMPANY, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Institute for Community Alliances
Des' Moines, Iowa

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Institute for Community Alliances's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
Institute for Community Alliances's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2022. Institute for
Community Alliances's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Institute for Community Alliances complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the
year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standardsy, and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of FederaTRegulations Part 200. Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be Independent of Institute for Conrimunity Alliances and to rneet our other ethical
resporisibiiities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal prograrn. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Institute for Comniunity Alliances's
compliaince with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Institute for Community
Alliances's federal programs.

J  Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
I  Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material honcompliance with the compliance

requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error; and express an opinion on Institute for
Community Alliances's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not absolute assurance and therefore is not .a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS.
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it
exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud Is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, If there is' a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable

J  user of the report on compliance about Institute for Community Alliances's compliance with the requirements of
J  each major federal oroaram as a whole. ^ '

WEST DES MOINES: Regency West 5, 4500 Wesiowri Pkwy. Suite 140, West Des Moines. lA 50266 | P. S15-223-0002 | F. 515-223-0430
J  PERRY: 1307 2nd St. PerryJA 50220 I P. 515-465-3591 j F. 515-465-3593

Members Amorian Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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Page Two

•] In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance,
we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit'.

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,

I  evidence regarding Institute for Community Alliances's compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

I  . circumstances.

I  • Obtain an understanding of Institute for Community Alliances's internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and

i  report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Institute for Community Alliances's internal

"1 control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

1  We are required to communicate with those charged withi governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control

I  over compliance that we identified during the audit.

I  Report on (nternal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
I  does not allow management or employees, in the normal jcourse of performing their assigned functions, to

prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of [compliance requirement of a federal program on a
.  1 timely basis. A material weakness in internal control overi compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of

deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
1  noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and

corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in inte!rhal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
1  combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, with a type of compliance requirement of a federal

program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
j  merit attention by those charged with governance.

j  Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In

]  - internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these lirhitations. during our audit we,did not identify any deficiencies in internal control

J  over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.ias defined above. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
j  compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

I  The purpose of this report oh internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform

J  Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

J

J
MERIWETHER, WILSON AND COMP>
Certified Public Accountants

West Des Moines, Iowa

_J November 28. 2022

j~

J

J

WILSOM AND COMPANY. PLL.C

Ctrlf/tcil Fubll< Accmi'Kan'*
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n INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2022

Summary of Auditor's Results

1. The auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Institute for Community
Alliances.

2. Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
•  No material weaknesses were Identified.

•  No significant deficiencies were reported.

3. No Instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Institute for Community Alliances were
noted during the audit.

4. Internal Control Over Major Programs
•  No material weaknesses were identified. -

• • No significant deficiencies were reported. •

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Institute for Community Alliances
expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. The results of our audit disclosed no audit findings, which we are required to report in accordance with 2 CFR
200.516(a).

7. The following program was audited as a major federal program;

Program. Title CFDA No. Expenses^
Continuum of Care Program 14.267 $4,153,286

j  8. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A.and Type B programs was $750,000.
j  9. Institute for Community Alliances qualified as a low-risk auditee.

..] Findings Related to the Financial Statements

J  None •

-] Findings and Questioned Costs Related to Federal Awards

J  None

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

None
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

July 1. 2021 Through June 30. 2022

Grantor/Pass-Through Agency Grant Number

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Awards

Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program.
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program

Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Prograrn,
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program

Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program

Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program

Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Prograrn

Continuum of Care Program

AK0014LOC012013

IL0615L5T012005
IL0615L5T011904

IA0005L7D002013,

iA0005L7D001912

IA0083L7D002005

IA0083L7D001904

IA0014L7D012114

IA0014L7D012013

IA0121L7D012002

IA0121L7D011901

IA0140L7D01200P
MN0012L5K0020i3
MN0012L5K001912

MN0043L5K012013

MN0043L5K011912

MN0058L5K022013

MN0058L5K021912

MN0072L5K032013

MN0078L5K042013

MN0078L5K041912

MN0088L5K052013

MN0088L5K051912

MN0096L5K062013

MN0096L5K061912

MN0115L5K092013

MN0115L5K091912

MN0145L5K112013

MN0145L5K111912

MN0290L5K082007

MN0290L5K081906'

MN0441L5K062001

M00039L7P032114

M00039L7P032013

M00090L7P062114

M00090L7P062013

M00294L7P001900

M00294L7P002001

NE0011L7D012013

VT0005L1T002013
VT0052L1T012005

VT0052L1T011904
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

July 1. 2021 Through June 30, 2022

CFDA- Award Pass-Through

Grant Period Number Amount to Subrecipients

06/01/21 -05/31/22 14.267 30,206

12/01/21 - 11/30/22' ■ 14.267 83.670 ••

12/01/20 - 11/30/21 •  14.267 83,670 ••

12/01/21 -11/30/22 14.267 43,156

'12/01/20 - 11/30/21 , 14.267 43,156 ,

12/01/21 -11/30/22 14,267 186,608 ••

12/01/20- 11/30/21 14.267 186,608 ,
"

06/01/22 -.05/31/23 14:267 346,578
"

06/01/21 -05/31/22 14.267 346.578
"

12/01/21 - 11/30/22 14.267 100,000
"

12/01/20- 11/30/21 14.267 100,000 • ■

04/01/22-03/31/23 14.267 274,400
"

12/01/21 -11/30/22 14.267 298,733
"

12/01/20- 11/30/21 14.267 • 298,733
"

11/01/21 - 10/31/22 14.267 144,758

11/01/20-10/31/21 14.627 •144,758 , ••

11/01/21 -10/31/22 14.267 62,480

11/01/20-10/31/21 14.267 62,480
"

09/01/21 -08/31/22, 14.267 140,872

09/01/21 -08/31/22 14.267 19,999

09/01/20-08/31/21 14.267 19,999

09/01/21 -08/31/22 14.267 41,099

09/01/20-08/31/21- 14.267 41.099

09/01/21 -08/31/22 14.267 ■  10.658 ..

09/01/20-08/31/21 14.267 10,658
""

09/01/21 -08/31/22 14.267 61,071 '■
09/01/20-08/31/21 14.267 61.071

'■

09/01/21 -08/31/22 14.267 26.500
09/01/20-08/31/21 14.267 26,500 ,
09/01/21 -08/31/22 14.267 33.359

"

09/01/20-08/31/21 14.267 33.359
"

10/01/21 -09/30/22 14.267 13,629 ;
"

06/01/22-05/31/23, 14.267 , 42,254
■

06/01/21 -05/31/22 14.267 42,254 •
05/01/22 -04/30/23 14.267 239,947 ••

. 05/01/21 -04/30/22 14.267 239.947
"

11/01/20-10/31/21 14.267 32,000

11/01/21 -10/31/22 14.267 32,000
"

07/01/21 -06/30/22 14.267 179;660
07/01/21 -06/30/22 14.267 59,382 ;

09/01/21 -08/31/22 14.267 65.000
09/01/20-08/31/21 '  14.267 65,000

Federal
Expenses

30.206.
51-.346
50.240
22,873
19.054

116.048
85,409
22,098

•316,493
49,259
43,299
75.390

173.847
113,709
95,096
51.084
50,759
21,440

127.872
19,553

1,136
37,596

1,133
7,076

153
50,732

6.875
25,925

3,141
29,212

4,200
8,471

535
40.184
36.999

216,160
16,204
25,352

179,660
59,382
59,434
23.433
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1, 2021 Through June 30. 2022

Grantor/Pass-Through Agency Grant Number

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct Awards - Continuum of Care Program (Continued)
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program.
Continuum of Care Program
Conllriuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program '
Continuum of Care Program ' ;
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program )
Continuum of Care Program

Passed Through City of Des Moines ' ,
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program • ,

Assumed From Home Forward Iowa |
Continuum of Care Program

Assumed From Iowa Finance Authority
Continuum of Care Program

Assumed From Waypoinl Services for Women. Children and Farhilies
Continuum of Care Program . '

Passed Through Three Rivers Community Action Inc.
Continuum of Care Program . .
Continuum of Care Program'
Continuum of Care Program

Passed Through the City of St. Louis
Contihuurh of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program

Passed Through St. Louis County
Continuum of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program

Passed Through State of New Hampshire
Continuum of Care Program

Total CFDA #14.267

Direct Award

Youth Homelessness Demonstration Program
Passed,Through City of Des Moines

Youth Homelessness Demonstration Program
Total CFDA #14.276

Passed Through North Dakota'Coalition for Homeless People
Homeless Management Information Systems Technical Assistance

WI0035L5I002114

WI0035L5I002013

WI0051L51012013

. WI0051L5I011912

WI0180L5I032005

WI0180L5I031904

WI0192L5I022104

WI0206L5I022104

W10206L5I022003

WI0211L5I032104

WI0211L5I032003

WY0023L8T002001

WY0023LBT001900

IA0041L7D022013

IA0041L7D021912

IA0122L7D012002

IA0130L7D011900

1A012PL7D012002

MN0366L5K022005

MN0464D5K022001

MN0481L5K022000

M00203L7E012005

M00203L7E011904

M00305L7E002001

M00305L7E001900

2019-026

MN044.1Y5K0617Q0

IA0134Y7D021800

ND00051H8T001800
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Grant Period

06/01/22

06/01/21

.10/01/21

10/01/20

10/01/21

10/01/20

10/01/21

05/01/22

05/01/21

05/01/22

05/01/21

11/01/21

11/01/20

11/01/21

11/01/20

05/31/23

05/31/22

09/30/22

09/30/21

09/30/22

09/30/21

09/30/22

04/30/23

04/30/22

04/30/23

04/30/22

10/31/22

10/31/21

10/31/22

10/31/21

01/01/22-12/31/22

04/01/21 -03/31/22

01/01/22 --12/31/22

09/01/21

09/01/21

07/01/21

10/01/21

10/01/20

10/01/21

10/01/20

08/31/22

08/31/22

06/30/22

09/30/22

09/30/21

09/30/22

09/30/21

07/01/19-07/31/22

10/01/19-09/30/21

09/15/20-09/30/22

06/16/20 - 09/30/21.

INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1, 2021 Through June 30, 2022

CFDA*

Number

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.267

14.276

14.276

14.261

Award

Amount

371,429

371,429

144,112
144,112

44,500
44,500

15,000

37,525

37.525

544.011

267,611

11.0,440
110,440

104,873
104,873

91,380

243,718

116,368

203,310

25,000
67,396

100,000
100,000

75,000

75,000

433,128

27,258

74,940

99,435

Pass-Through
to Subrecipients

21,113

231,703

44,520

Federal

Expenses

•42,417

347.636
•91,177

35.289

36,161
214

9,295
2,240

22,617
21,113

231,703

73,815
65,894

82,070
57,737

14,398

176,219

44,520

73,824

14,993

31,106

56,543

31,364

39,205

30,790

153,478
4,153,286

2,046

17,208
19,254

32,680
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1, 2021 Through June 30, 2022

Grantor/Pass-Through Agency Grant Number •

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed Through Iowa Finance Authority

Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS

Total CFDA #14.241

Passed Through City of Rockford
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through State of Illinois
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through Iowa Finance Authority
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Progranh
C0\/ID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Des Moines
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Sioux City
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through Dakota County
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Duluth
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Minneapolis
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Saint Paul
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program •
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through Hennepin County
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through St. Louis County. MN
Emergency Solutions Grant- Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

FCSAH05745

ESG-SAF-HMIS-2022

N/A

ESG-CV-HMIS-20

N/A

N/A

"N/A
N/A

E-21-MC-19-0002

E-20-MW-19-0006

N/A

N/A

21-ES-09

CV-2-ES-06

C-43781

COM0003783

N/A

N/A

N/A

PR00001764

■  PR00003714

N/A

N/A

N/A
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1. 2021 Through June 30, 2022

Grant Period

CFDA'

Number

Award

Amount

Pass-Through
to Subrecipients

Federal

Expenses

01/01/22 -'12/31/22 14.241 21,594 10,648

01/01/21-01/31/22 14.241 22,116 ~
15,232
25,880

11/17/19 - 11/16/21 14.231 30,000 — 557

11/01/21 - 10/31/22 14.231 30,000 8,463

07/01/21 -06/30/22 14.231 35,125 - 35,125

01/01/22-01/31/23 14.231 55,000 t — 37,740

01/01/21-01/31/22 14.231 55,000 -
26,919

03/01/20- 11/30/23 14.231 193,613 "
67.873

01/01/21 - 12/31/21 14.231 9,704 — 8.761

01/01/22-12/31/22 14.231 9,805 — 7,072

07/01/20-05/26/22 14.231 33,250 "
30,046

02/01/21 -06/30/23- 14.231 62,442 "
2,992

10/01/21 -09/30/22 14.231 10.000 — 2.464

01/15/21 -06/30/22 14.231 .  24,754 "
12,777

09/01/20-08/31/21 14.231 3,289 " 2,730

09/01/21 -08/31/22 14.231 19,127 --
19,127

04/01/21 -06/30/22 14.231 4,000 — 4,000

01/01/21 -08/31/22 14:231 20,656 --
20,656

08/31/18 - 05/31/23 14.231 94,700 27,744

06/30/20 - 10/30/22 14.231 115,477 --
99,518

01/01/22 -12/31/22 .14.231 11,757 " 1,898

07/01/21-12/31/21 14.231 11,888 — 11,888

07/01/21 -09/30/22 14.231 70,717 •  -- 70,043

04/01/20-08/31/21 14.231 27,811 — 1,890

10/01/21 -06/30/23 14.231 22,730 "
20,056

09/01/21 - 10/31/22 14.231 .  3,378 -- 3.335

09/01/20- 10/31/21 14.231 3,357 —
85

03/27/20 - 09/30/22 14.231 16,320 — 1,150
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1, 2021 Through June 30. 2022

Grantor/Pass-Through Agency Grant Number

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Emergency Solutions Grant Program (Continued)
Passed Through Missouri Housing Development Commission
COViD-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 • Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

■ COVlD-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
•Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of St. Louis
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Omaha
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through the University of Nebraska
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through State of New Hampshire
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Manchester
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
.COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through North Dakota Department of Commerce
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through Vermont Department of Children and Families
Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through City of Madison
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Prograrh

Passed Through City of Racine
Emergency Solutions Grant Program
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Passed Through State of Wisconsin i
Emergency Solutions Grant Program i
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program

CV-829

CV-830

CV-831

CV-832

CV-833

CV-834

22-717-E

22-718-E

22-719-E

22-720-E

22-721-E

22-722-E

21-726-E

•21-727-E

21-729-E

21-730-E

21-731-E

21-735-E

E120-MC-29-0006

55WZ0

55W20

N/A

N/A

26-0520-0342-030

2019-026

N/A

N/A

N/A

4956-ESG21

4894-ESG20-CV

03440-44054-22-ICA

N/A

N/A

N/A

EHH 21-25

N/A
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1. 2021 Through June 30, 2022

CFDA' Award Pass-Through
r^ranf Pfihori Number Amount to Subrecipients

03/13/20 - 08/31/22 14,231 94,615

03/13/20 - 08/31/22 14.231 127.118 ••

03/13/20-08/31/22 14.231 127,917 ••

03/13/20 .08/31/22 14.231 96,420 ••

03/13/20 -08/31/22 14.231 92,526 * —

03/13/20 - 08/31/22 14.231 '250,000

11/01/21 - 10/31/22 14.231 19,950 —

11/01/21 - 10/31/22 14.231' 87.150

11/01/21 -10/31/22 14.231 22.914 , ••

11/01/21 -10/31/22 14.231 25,705 ' ••

11/01/21 -10/31/22 14.231 25,200 -•

11/01/21 -10/31/22 14,231 . 23,794

11/01/20-10/31/21 14.231 87,150 —

11/01/20-10/31/21 14.231 22,050 ••

11/01/20-10/31/21 14.231 18,950 ••

11/01/20 - 10/31/21 14.231 22,914 . ..

11/01/20-10/31/21 14.231 21.525 •. ■"

11/01/20 - 10/31/21 14.231 25,705

10/01/21 -09/30/22 14.231 88,000 "

11/01/20-10/31/21 • 14.231 .  180,000 —

11/01/21 -08/31/22 14.231 131,925

07/01/21 - 06/30/22 14.231 13,-000 "

03/06/20 - 12/31/21 14.231 . 114,000

07/01/21 -06/30/22 14.231 19.119 -

07/01/21 -06/30/22 14.231 81,000 "

07/01/21 -06/30/22 14.231 4,000 "

07/01/20 - 06/30/21 14.231 3,146 T-.

10/01/20 -09/30/22 14.231 14,158

07/01/21 -06/30/22 14.231 15.000 -

03/01/21 -08/31/22 . 14.231 102.851

07/01/21 -06/30/22 1'4.231 177,234

01/01/21 -12/31/21 14.231
. 1

15,000 '

.01/01/19-12/31/1.9 14.231 4,836 "

10/01/20 -09/30/22 14.231 18,750 ;

.0701/21 - 09/30/22 14.231 200.000
07/01/20 - 09/30/22 14.231 . 127,500

Federal
Expenses

56.140
46,029
59.274
46,427
46.719

123,770
13,383
70.991
15.591
13,369
16,322
12,842
39,539
11,316
8,240

11,621
11,509
15.734

22,433
48.408

m.425

11,686
60,346

19,119

37,168

2,824
787

9,125

15,000
94.369

177.234

7.167

3,141
10,546

200.000
60,340
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1. 2021 Through June 30. 2022

Grantor/Pass-Through Agency ^ Grant Number

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Emergency Solutions Grant Program (Continued)
Passed Through Wyoming Department of Family Services

Emergency Solutions Grant Program N/A
COVID-19 - Emergency Solutions Grant Program N/A

Total CFDA #14.231

Total U.S. Departrhent of Housing and Urban Development

Department of the Treasury •
•  Passed Through Iowa Finance Authority

COVID-19 - Emergency Rental Assistance Program RRH-ERA2-01

Department of Homeland Security
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program Various

U.S. Department of Health and. Human Services
Passed Through Iowa Department of Human Services

Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness MH.DS 22-008

Total Federal Awards

• Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
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Grant Period

02/02/22 - 09/30/25

01/01/21 • 10/31/22

07/01/21 -06/30/23

E FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

July 1. 2021 Through June 30. 2022

CFDA*

Number

01/01/21 - 12/31/21

01/01/21 -12/31/23

14.231

14.231

21.023

97.024

93.150

Award

Amount

133,545
122,000

1,635,000

17,035

41,318

Pass-Through
to Subrecipients

$  297,336

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

29

Federal

Expenses

92,335
4,712

2,134,890

6,365,990

89,567

12,474

13,259

$6,481,290
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n  INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

***] Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

.~| Year Ended June 30, 2022

~i

'  Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

j  The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
•  I award activity of Institute for Community Alliances under programs of the federal government for the year
'  ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements

•  I of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal -Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
'  Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule

presents only a selected portion of the operations of Institute for Community Alliances, it is not intended to
1  and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Institute for

.  I Community Alliances.

I  Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

I  Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported 'on thd accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein

I  certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to

I  amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Institute for Community Alliances has elected not to use
the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

j

.]

j

j

j

J
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities

July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

HUD HUD HUD HUD

Continuum Continuum Continuum of Continuum of

of Care - of Care - Care - BOS Care - BOS

Total BOS Alaska BOS Iowa CE Iowa Planning Iowa

Support and Revenue
Government Grants and Contract

Reimbursements , $ 6,665,654 450,198 338,590 92,558 251,609

Other Grants and Contracted Services 5.935,352 " "

User Fees and Licenses 740.450 - " " -

Investment Income (Loss) (4.439) " - "

In-Kind- 76,741. " ~

Other Revenue 13,810 - - -

.  Total Support and Revenue 13,427,568 450,198 338,590 92,558 251,609

Expenses

In-Kind 76.741 " — " —

Depreciation 5,765 " " --

...

HMIS Services 1,184,301 74,000 45.078 346 "

HMIS Software - Support and Licenses 178,237 " 8.667 66 "

Payroll and Staffing 8,757.462 345,567 257,108 81,430 217,725

Space Costs 149;802 266 8,279 792 11,963

Operations 660.419 25.468 19,156 9,958 19,281

Supportive Services 2.121.533 " -

... 156

Administrative Costs 216,425 4.925 307 " 2,484

FEMA Contract 12,474 -- " - "

Total Expenses 13,363,159 450,226 338.595 92,592 251,609

Excess (Deficiency) of Support and
Revenue to Expenses 64.409 (28) (5). (34) "

Fund Transfers

Program Funds Considered Unrestricted — 28 5 34 --

Fund Balances • Beginning of Year 1,431,326 — — — "

Fund Balances - End of Year $ 1.495.735
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities

July 1. 2021 through June 30. 2022

Program Funds

HUD HUD HUD HUD HUD HUD HUD HUD

Continuum Continuum' Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum

of Care - of Care • of Care - of Care - of Care - of Care ■ of Care - of Care -

Des Moines YHDP Polk Waypoint SSO Home Forward Sioux City Siouxland CE Illinois Minnesota

139,807 17,208 44,520 14,398 43,935- 201,456- 101,587 831,058

139,807 17,208 44,520 14,398 43,935 201,456 101,587 83.1,058

7,663

~ -

--

870 6,859 11,283

-

101 ■ —
— -- 59 -- " "

120,854 16,721 — 21 37,034 163,996 84,898 776,093

3,543 535 — — 1,489 14,659 927 29,113-

7,470 894 —
" 2,435 8,357 4,448 25,820

— - 44,520 14,377 2,008 7.372 " --

183 35 -- — 40 213 .  33 375

139,814 . 18,165 . 44.520 14,396 43,935 201,456 ■  -101,589 831,401.

(7) (977) " - -- - (2) (343)

7 977 ~ - -- -- 2 343

j

j

j
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities (Continued)

July 1,2021 through June 30, 2022

HUD HUD HUD HUD HUD

Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum

of Care - of Care - of Care - of Care - of Care -

River Valley Missouri St. Louis STL County St. Joe

Support and Revenue
Government Grants and Contract

Reimbursements $ 119,924 ■ 253,159 87,907 69,995 40,720

Other Grants and Contracted Services " " -r

User Fees and Licenses - " - "

Investment Income (Loss) " " - - "

In-Kind - - " - "

Other Revenue -

• — — -

...

Total Support and Revenue -  119,924- . 253,159 87,907 69,995 40,720

Expenses
-

In-Kind - -

" "

-

■ Depreciation " " "

HMIS Services 35;983 " 16,347 2,807

HMIS Software - Support and Licenses 2,050 - - " -

- Payroll and Staffing 97,151 207,576 ■ . 83,349 ■  51,383 36,107

Space Costs 48 . 833 676 445 120

Operations 3,827 8,062 3,289 1,566 1,446

Supportive Services 16,735 " "

..

Administrative Costs 113 707 947 275 247

FEMA Contract' " " " "

Total Expenses 119,924. .  253,161 88,261 70,016 40,727

Excess (Deficiency) of Support and
-  .

Revenue to Expenses -- (2) (354) (21) (7)

Fund Transfers

Program Funds Considered Unrestricted - 2 • 354 21 7

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year — — -- ...
—

Fund Balances - End of Year
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities (Continued)

July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

• Program Funds

HUD HUD • HUD HUD HUD HUD HUD. HUD

Continuum Continuum Continuum of Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum Continuum

of Care - of Care - Care - New of Care - of Care - of Care - of Care - of Care -

Springfield " Omaha Hampshire Vermont Wisconsin Madison Milwaukee Racine

41,556 179,660 .  153,477 .  142,249 389,452 289,191 126,466 34,151

- ~

- - -- "

9,381

41,556 179,660 153,477 142,249 389,452 289,191 126,466 43,532

.. -- — -9,381

6,641 18,837 5,987 101,213 1,996 .. --

20,894 .18,933 " 1,732 -- " --

33,719 , 140,921 109,513 131,640 271,314 159,703 120,298 . 31,033

91 6,736 544 841 1,915 4,041 288 334

.1,127 11,413 ■5,307, 3,809 6,835 6,005 5,028 3,200
— — -- 1 — 117,939 —

..

52 273 88 266 6,553 410 876 34

41,630 180,237 153,222 142,544 ■389,562 ■  290,094 126,492 43,982

(74) (577) 255 (295) (110) ■ (903) (26) (450)

74 577 69 295 110 903 26 450

(324)
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities (Continued)

July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

Program Funds

HUD

Continuum

of Care -

Wisconsin EMP

HUD

Continuum

of Care -

Wyoming

Emergency
Solutions

Grants

Program

Emergency
Food and

.  Shelter

(FEMA)

Support and Revenue
Government Grants and Contract

Reimbursements

Other Grants and Contracted Services

User Fees and Licenses

Investment Income (Loss)

.  In-Kind

Other Revenue

$
2,296,832

139,709 1,870,231 .

104,846 .

9,498

Total Support and Revenue 2,296,832 139,709 1,975,077 9,498

Expenses

In-Kind

Depreciation

HMIS Services

HMIS Software T Support and Licenses
Payroll and Staffing
Space Costs
Operations
Supportive Services

Administrative Costs

FEMA Contract

342,0*26
380

77,322

1,820,217

50,112

637

128,693

296

9,974

121

s

145,714

10,067

1,646,695

20,012

78,915

20,072

12;474

Total Expenses 2,290,057 139.723 1,921,475 12.474

Excess (Deficiency) of Support and

Revenue to Expenses 6.775 (14) 53,602 , (2,976)

Fund Transfers

Program Funds Considered Unrestricted (6,775) 14 (53,602) 2,976

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year — -- —

Fund Balances - End of Year $ ...
--
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E FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Combining Statement of Activities (Continued)

July 1. 2021 through June 30. 2022

Institute Funds

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Housing IFA Projects for

Opportunities ESGP/BOS Assistance in Dean Property

for Persons Match Transition from Contracted Wright and Institute

with AIDS Iowa Homelessness Services Fund Equipment Administrative

25,880 131,934 33,571

2,810 - - .  3,530,864 -- • -

— — 740,450 -- -- -

— — •T . -- - .  (4,439)
— —• .  .. 67,360 - "

— — .. — 3,674 - 10,136

28,690 131,934 . 33,571 4,338.674 3,674 " 5,697

67,360
-- -- — -- -- 5,765 -

3,013 28,488 14.735 655,804 - --

-  71 341 ' 268 114,988 - -- r-

21,522 94,256 15,865. ■2.809,802 -- 123,449
788 3,031 412 ■ 35,192 —  • - 1.211
932 4,860 2,426 265,313 5,035 380 31,061

.. .. — 46,393 — 51,815
188 987 247 94,172 154 30,934

26,514 "131,963 33,953 ■ 4,089,024 5,189 6,145 238,470

2.176 (29) (382) 249.650- (1.515) (6.145) .  (232,773)

(2,176) 29 382 " (315,781) -- - 370,649

93,796 15,729 20,175. 1,301,950

— — — 27,665 14,214 . 14,030 1,439,826
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INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES

Schedule of Expenses

Years Ended June 30,

j

j

j

J

1

J

J

J

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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2022 2021

Expenses
In-Kind $  76,741 32,178

Depreciation 5,765 6,833

Homeless Management Information System
.  Hosting 1,131,523 1,151,690

Custom Programming 52,778 94,740

Other -- 720

Software - Support and Licenses
Support • . 7,920 22,759

Supporting Software 4,192 ' 50,411

User Licenses 166,125 30,125

Payroll and Staffing
$alary 7,075,065 5,967,232

Taxes and Benefits 1,682,397 1,514,123

Space Costs 149,802 162,521

Operations
Utilities 1,410 1,594

Telecommunications 75,896 78,122

Office Supplies 66,849 26,201

Software Licenses 108,737 79,372

Website Design and Maintenance 3,803 5,454

Computer 47,196 55,282

Equipment and Furniture 37,398 13,878

IT Services 44,546 37,966

Printing . . 5,641 .  5,171

Postage and Delivery 6,357- 4,328

Insurance 40,312 44.047-

Meetings and Travel 190,754 46,910

Training and Professional Development 29,939 17,116

All Staff Summit 18,858 .

Other Operations 1,581 2,098

Supportive Service Operations
Consultants 22,500 84,581'

Subrecipient Agencies 13,095 19,489

Coordinated Entry Case Management 183,149 176,537

WlBoSCoC Costs 1,820,217 1,743,467

Other 82,572 " 160,248

Administrative Costs

Strategic Planning --- 2,500

Contracted Staff 111,342 38,463 -

Professional Fees 99,780 83,531

Bank Charges 1,681 , 1,624

Dues and Subscriptions ^  664 505

Interest 131 285

Miscellaneous 2,827 75.

FEMA Contract 12,474 13,705

Total Expenses $ 13,363,159 . 11,794,739
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Community AQlAnoes

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIR I Mark Phillips
DOMAIN Financial

OCCUPATION Bank Iowa/Vice President, Treasury Management Service

VICE CHAIR jKristy VanDerWiel
DOMAIN Human Resources

OCCUPATION Vice President of Staffing and Mission - Wesley Life

CEO/CORPORATE SECRETARY David Discher

DOMAIN NonProfit/Funder

OCCUPATION State Homeless Programs Coordinator - Retired

TREASURER|MikeDeKock
DOMAIN Finance/Cyber Security

OCCUPATION MJD Advisors

DIRECTORjjanice Lane Schroeder
DOMAIN Direct Client Services

OCCUPATION CEO - Children & Families of Iowa

DIRECTOR|TonyTimm
DOMAIN Direct Client Services

OCCUPATION Chief Exexutive Officer - Central Iowa Shelter & Services

DIREaOR|Christal Starr
DOMAIN Lived Experience/Domestic Violence/Substance Abuse

OCCUPATION Outpatient Counselor - UCS Healthcare

DIRECTOR|Abbilyn Miller
DOMAIN Policy

OCCUPATION Systems Design Consultant
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Jesse Dirkman

OBJECTIVE Seeking to use data to help homeless services providers and community organizations drive
decision-making, inspire positive change, and end homelessness

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

Data Analyst, Institute for Community Alliances March 2014 — present
•  Produced annual reports and data dashboards on homelessness in and presented results to 100+

homelessness service providers throughout 2013 - 2015
•  Queried, analyzed^ and evaluated data from the ' Homeless Management Information System

(HMIS) database

•  Created report templates for a variety of audiences: funders, HMIS system administrators, CoC boards and
directors, agency administrators, etc.

•  Collaborated with the Department of Children and Families in'researchingjink between aging
out of foster care and homelessness j

•  Provided quality assurance assistance to HMIS software vendor: submitted errors found in HUD-reqiiired
reports and worked directly with vendor programmer to assist in creation of vendor reports

•  Presented at National Human Services Data Consortium conferences

National Homeless Data Fellow, Fall 2015 — 2016
•  Completed advanced training in software (data| visualization and data dashboard software)
•  Collaborated with 9 other HMIS data analysts and system administrators in an effort to create useful system

performance dashboards for all Conlinua of Care ! . ^
Research Analyst, ' . November 2013 - March 2014
•  Developed electronic, printed and graphic portrayals of statistical data to convey the status of homelessness

in

• Worked to maintain data quality and completeness

Student Researcher, Research Experience for Undergraduates in lylathematics, Summer 2012
•  Determined data necessary for analysis and gathered relevant data from a variety of sources
•  Analyzed residential water usage In - and explored the feasibility of predicting future usage as a

for-profit venture or a supplement to conseK'ation efforts.
•  Created multiple linear regression forecasting models utilizing atabase software

•  • Communicated findings to peers and super\'isors via a technical report, poster presentation, PowerPoint
presentation, and blog post

Intern, Homicide Review Commission, . January-May 2012
•  Maintained Access database cataloguing non-fatal domestic violence incidents in

•  Conducted preliminary cross-tabluations on select variables using
• Worked to initiate database logging all Homicide Review recommendations and their statuses

domestic violence reviews witH police and community leaders

•  Experience with database and reporting software including ServicePoint, Business Objects and Web
Intelligence, Access, FileMaker Pro, MySQL, and Qlikj

•  Experience with MatLab, R, SPSS and'SAS statistical software

EDUCATION

Honors Bachelor of Science Degree in Mathematics and | May 2013
Sociology 1 .
•  University Honors Program, magna cum laude '
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DACK KUKUK

HMIS SKILLS

CLARITY HUMAN SERVICES

CLARITY REPORT BUILDER

CERTIFICATION

LOOKER (EMBEDDED, STAND

ALONE, & API)

SERVICEPOINT

BUSINESSOBJECTS

CLIENTTRACK

QUERY DESIGNER

TABLEAU

SQL SERVER MANAGEMENT

STUDIO

•> IN-DEPTH KNOWLEDGE OF HMIS

DATA STANDARDS

PROGRAMMING SKILLS

^  MYSQL

^  TRANSACT-SQL

'  R/SHINY

^  PYTHON

■» PHP

JAVASCRIPT

^  HTML

'  VB

>  VBA

EXPERIENCE

Data Analyst
Institute for Community Alliances, 2016 - Present

Analyzing and comparing outside data to HMIS data utilizing exact and fuzzy
matching strategies to compare datasets.

Designing queries and visualizations and providing analysis from numerous
sources (Including Clarity Human Services, ServicePoint, and ClientTrack) for
stakeholders across the U.S. and Canada.

Utilizing knowledge of SQL and R to transform data for four HMIS database
migrations from ServicePoint to Clarity Human Services.

Presenting on various topics employing Tableau and R to process data and
create impactful visualizations for communities.

Executing solutions in Python taking advantage of the Looker API to build
procedures that are difficult to implement through the user interface.

Data Specialist
Pathfinders Milwaukee, Inc., 2009-2016

Administer and evaluate our internal SQL Server database as well as six other
external databases that we are required to use for reporting purposes.

Built and managed a front-end for our internal SQL Server database to allow
direct user input as well as data warehousing capabilities from other external
databases.

Established training programs on data entry and basic computer skills for staff
with diverse skillsets and levels of computer experience.

Freelance Media Designer
Jack Kukuk Design, 2005 - Present

Creating HTMLS and WordPress websites, custom billing software, print
materials, logo designs, and banner ads for a variety of clients.

Interpreting data into graphic form to provide a clear understanding of clients'

EDUCATION

Data Analyst

Savannah College of Art & Design
1999 - 2003

Bachelor of Computer Arts Degree
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Robyn D. Malchanoff

SUMMARY OF QUAUFICATIONS

Highly motivated professional with organizational and problem-solving skills. Proficient manager routinely
overseeing and supervising staff. Skilled communicator adept at presenting complex information with
clarity, with regular highly positive performance evaluations. Leadership certified.

•AREAS OF STRENGTH

•  Policy analysis •  Organized •  MS Office

•  Interpersonal Skills •  Self-Motivated •  Team Leadership

•  Flexible and Adaptable •  Collaborative •  Intelligent and passionate
\

WORK EXPERIENCE

Institute for Community Alliances

System Administrator

•June 2019-Present

Provide training and technical support to partner agencies and end users to ensure proper use of the
HMIS.

Assist partner agencies with HMIS-related federal regulations and data standards.

Review system data quality regularly and conduct related training as needed.

Act as a liaison between ICA, partner agencies, municipality and borough staff, and other community

stakeholders.

Coordinate and monitor all changes to the database resulting from revisions to HMIS Data Standards
and other HUD rules and regulations.

Maintain current knowledge of homeless assistance programs and related initiatives.

Department of Health and Human Services, Family Service
Specialist II April 2016- June 2019

Interview clients in person and on the phone using interactive interviewing techniques.
Evaluate complex case information to make an accurate determination of eligibility across all
programs and services of applications in a timely and accurate manner.

Assist staff with workload assignments, including locating resources, interpretation of policy, and
answering client questions.

Apply complex and changing federal and state policy to all cases to ensure consistent processing of
eligibility.

Act in the capacity of the District Office Supervisor in their absence.
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Big Brothers Big Sisters, Match
Support/Volunteer Coordinator February 2015-March 2016

•  Provide support for volunteers, children and families through monthly meetings.

•  Thoroughly document the progress of matches and address questions and concerns.
•  Foster and maintain relationships with community partners and programs.

•  Coordinate several aspects of programs such as organizing events, scheduling, interviewing, and

reference checking.

•  Establish and conduct volunteer training.

EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Bachelor ofSdence in Sign Language Interpretation- May 2010

Minor in Psychology GPA: 3.7

December 2018
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CHERTINA N. WALKER

EDUCATION: Bachelor of Science in Sociology TRAINING/SKILLS
Minor: Criminal Justice Motivational Interviewing
Overall G.P.A 3.0/4.0 Mental Health First Aid

Electronic Health Records

Microsoft Office

RELATED EXPERIENCE

Institute for. Community
Alliances December 2019-Present

HMIS System Administrator
•  Provide training and technical support to partner agencies and end users to ensure proper use of the HMIS
•  Support the Continua of Care Coordinated Entiy process.
' • Create and revise forms and other tools to ensure compliance with U.S. Department of Housing and Urban

Development (HUD) regulations.

•  Act as a liaison between ICA, partner agencies, municipality and borough staff, and other community
stakeholders.

•  Maintain current knowledge of homeless assistance programs and related initiatives.'
•  Coordinate and monitor all changes to the database resulting from revisions to HMIS Data Standards and

other HUD rules and regulations.

•  Monitor participation agreements, client consent forms, interagency sharing agreements, system-user agreements, and
user code of ethics policy.
Mental Health Center

February 2018-December 2019

Outreach Specialist/Case Manager , ^
•  Coordinating services and providing direct support, advocacy and assertive outreach to adults with mental illness.
•  Assess the case management needs for clients while completing an assessment of needs and connections to services in

the community including, but not limited to housing, department of health and human services and social security
administration.

•  Experience working with systems, behavior management strategies, and work well with a treatment team.
•  Provide timely documentation on each service delivered in an electronic health records system.
•  Provide individual care plan development using SMART goals, crisis management planning, crisis intervention,

assessments, referrals and monitors service delivery.
•  Provides outreach, advocacy, resource identification, referral, mobilization, linkage, monitoring and coordination of

services activities.

Workplace Success
July 2017-February 2018

Program Specialist
•  Teach/facilitate classes in job readiness, job search, job skills training directly related to employment.
•  Facilitating participants' engagement with the use of other community resources, while assisting participants in

resolving obstacles to participation that may arise during his/her attendance in the
•  Communication with the Employment Counselor to address any client barriers to employment requiring

support services and/or to address any remedial action or sanctions needed to cure client behavior or performance
issues in the WPS.

•  Adhere to the Division of Family Assistance & Community Action Code of Ethics.
Big Brothers Big Sisters of

April 2015-March 2017

Special Programs Coordinator
•  Provide support for volunteers, children and families through monthly meetings.
•  Thoroughly document the progress of matches including updates and safety.
•  Address questions or concerns and provide follow up with matches and their families.
•  Foster and maintain relationships with community partners and programs such as Comcast Cable, CCA Global Inc.,

21 St Century and various elementary and middle schools.
• Work as a liaison between community partners, Big Brothers Big Sisters and school system.
•  Coordinate several aspects of programs such as organizing special events, training, scheduling, interviewing, reference

checking, and pairing matches.
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Meghan Morrow Raftery

Experience

Institute for Community Alliances • HMIS Manager 11.2015-Present

Manages and updates the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS)

Act as a liaison between ICA, partner agencies, state and local funders, Continuums of Care, and software
vendor to facilitate effective collaboration and resolve Issues affecting the HMIS

Actively participates in the HUD recognized Continuums of Care and subcommittees

Supports the Continuum of Care Coordinated Entry process

Monitor the usage of agency partnership agreements, data sharing agreements, and other HMIS governance documents

Submits Continuum of Care data for required HUD reporting - PIT, HIC, SPM and LSA

Provides training and technical support to partner agencies and end users to ensure proper user of the HMIS

Supports grant application process as appropriate

Maintains current knowledge of homeless assistant programs and related initiatives

Oversees statewide and local level reporting

Create and revise tools to ensure compliance with US Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

regulations ,

Assist with outreach and professional relationship development with agencies, businesses, and individuals to
expand the use and effectiveness of the HMIS
Facilitate coordination between System Adrnjnistratlon and Reporting Evaluation Teams
Analyzes data for internal reporting and monitoring purposes

Coach, mentor, and supervise System Administrators

Participates in the development of position descriptions and creates employment ads

Interviews and effectivelyparticipates in the hiring of staff

Developed training for new staff

Vete an Services at Assistant

Monitor data entered in HMIS and correct data errors

Train staff and subcontractors to enSure proper use of HMIS

Collaborate with HMIS Administrator ta quality repository reports

Participate in program outreach meetings and collection of outreach date using Quickbase

Run HMIS reports for internal reporting and VA repository upload

Pre-screen potential applicant for preliminary eligibility, document initial client needs and record screening in

HMIS

Refer ineligible applicants to non-SSVF services ' '

Communicate with program partners. Department of Veterans Affairs, shelters and other community programs

Collect and record veteran and referral information in HMIS

Track and report monthly-screening and referral numbers from HMIS

Work closely with program management to create program policy and procedures

■ Monitor all program communications, data quality and program document revisions

Stay up to date on current SSVF program policies and procedures

Coordinate and organize outreach events, meetings, and trainings with subjects that benefit the VVS target

audience and staff. Act as liaison for all event, meeting and training attendees

PointofcontactforallstafflT,HR, office questions and concerns •
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Education

5.2006

Page 2

Trainings and Certifications
Family Support, Culture and Disability

Housing First Training

Veteran Informed

ServicePoint HMIS Training

Quickbase Webinars

Making Systems Talk: HMIS and Data Tracking- NCHVConference Washington D.C.

Bowman Systems: Bootcamp 2016

National Alliance to End Homelessness Conference ■

Mediware Customer Conference 2017

HMIS Lead and System Administrator HUD Webinars

PATH HMIS Learning Sessions Webinars

Community Solutions Buiit for Zero ■

12.2013

7.2013

7.2013

2013-2019

2015

5.2015

4.2016

7.2016

8.2017

2017- 2019

. 2017- 2019

2018, 2019

Skills

Proficient with ServicePoint HMIS, MS Word, Power Point, Excel, Publisher and Outlook, Datatrak, Filemaker, Quickbase,

Mac user, ACT! Program, RDP (Resort Data Program), HUD Data Exchange, SAGE

Skiing, Equestrian, Travel, Tennis, Art, Literature, Music
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Adam L Smith

EMPLOYMENT

July 2006-Present HMIS Director, /Institute for Community Alliances
■  Responsible for administration and oversight of statewide Homeless

Management Information System for

August 2002-July 2006 Certified Part-time Instructor,

■  Responsible for teaching of Social Science degree credit class at

May 2002-July 2006 Development and Public Relations Director,

■  Responsible for media relations, including education of the public about housing

and homelessness issues, agency programs and services, and related activities.

■  Responsible for research and writing of grants, both public and private, as well as

development of strategies for maintaining and increasing agency donor base.
■  Responsible for oversight and implementation of

through role as Provider Group

Administrator.

■  Responsible for internal program evaluation.

February 2002- March 2005 Trainer, Center for Career Development and Employability

■ Wrote and developed housing training curriculum for use by the Department of

Workforce Development, Division of Workforce Solutions.

■  Conducted Enhanced Case Management housing trainings for Human Services

and W-2 Agency staff throughout the as part of a contract

agreement with the Department of Workforce Development, Division of

Workforce Solutions.

September 2001-February 2002 Homeless intervention and Prevention Unit Supervisor,

■  Provided oversight to State, Federal, and Local grants and programs, such as

HUD Continuum of Care, State Community Reinvestment, and local United Way

Grants.

■  Supervised staff in five counties, including

■  Prepared reports,, budgets, and contracts for agency programs.

March 2001-May 2002 Agency Planner, Community Action

Council, Inc.
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Responsibilities included research and development of grants and programs

to serve low-income persons in the fields of housing and homelessness,

employment and training, and family development. Examples included

April 1999-September 2001 Homeless Program Case Manager

■  Provided case management for homeless individuals and families via the state

sponsored HUD Continuum of Care Program and Community Reinvestment

case management for labor force participation in

EDUCATION

BA, Political Science and Sociology, University of
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Address: Thu T. Le Cell: Email:

EDUCATION

Master In Analytics (Data Science Track), Georgia Institute ofTechnoiog)', Atlanta, OA (CPA 3.8/4.0) 2022- present
Relevant Coursework: Machine Learning I. Computing for Data Analysis. Data Analysis for Continuous Improvement, Analytics
Modeling, Regression Analysis, Data Analytics for Business

M.B.A. with Distinction In Research, University of Massachusetts. Boston, MA (GPA 3.87/4.0) 2013
Master Thesis Title: I'Does Directors' Experience Affect Firm's Acquisition Performance?"

BSc. in Chemistry (Minor: Financial Maths), National University of Singapore, Singapore 2009

WORK EXPERIENCE
Data Analyst, Institute for Community Alliances, Remote 2022-2023
•  Technical Skills: Looker, SQL, Tableau, VBA

•  Conduct data analysis to support local, statewide, or regional planning, and perfonnance and program evaluation
•  Create and maintain front-end development of advanced report templates, custom reports, and data visualizations for use by ICA and HMIS

stakeholders, including participating agencies. Continuums of Care, state and local funders, and other partners
•  Collaborate with project teams and external stakeholders on product design, build, and delivery

Finance & Analytics Manager, Connect Travel, Remote. Vietnam 2020-2022
•  Technical Skills: Microsoft Excel, Python
•  Co-founded and oversaw the business operation of Connect Study, a subsidiary of Connect Travel headquartered in Hue, Vietnam
•  . Conducted pricing analysis including analyzing competitor pricing and market, and developed pricing strategies across various services
•  Identified and cultivated strategic partnerships with current and potential colleges and high schools in USA and Canada
•  Analyzed past performance datasets to prioritize leads offer the most revenue potential and improve the lead conversion rates
•  Led the website team to build, test and improve the design and content of the website

Associate. Cipolla Financial Advisors LLC, New York. New York ' 2018-2019
•  Technical Skills: Microsoft Excel, Vardi, QuickBooks, Proseries

•  Specialized in Forensic Accounting, including matrimonial dissolution (business valuation, asset tracing, lifestyle analysis, etc.), valuation,
fraud investigations, business divorce and fair-value and intra-family disputes

•  Prepared tax return packages for high net-worth individuals and their own businesses in multiple states
•  . Performed client bookkeeping in QuickBooks including recording transactions, bank reconciliations, payrolls and monthly reports

Tax Counselor (Volunteer), AARP, Greenville, TX 2016-2017
■  Technical Skills: VITA (Tax Preparation Software)
■  Prepared tax returns for residents in Texas, mostly dealing with retirement, all incomes including self-employment income, stock and bond

sale, interest and dividend income, royalty
.  ■ Conducted effective interviews with clients to obtain accurate tax information

Finance Analyst (Intern). Language International, Cambridge, MA • ' 2014
■  Technical Skills: Microsoft Excel, CRM, QuickBooks
■  Oversaw the entire finance and accounting functions for Language International, a global language travel agency with over 15,000

customers and 1.500 suppliers worldwide
■  Designed the analysis model to investigate the cfTect of 5% discount promotion over sales, leading to the management's confidence to

launch the promotion program over all schools
■  Analyzed and optimized Google ads campaigns to increase Return on Investment, and prepared monthly reports to CFO
■  Managed accounts payable process and optimized various payment methods to reduce transaction fees by 20%
■  Managed accounts receivable processes, including tracking 300+ incoming student payments and credit notes monthly

Graduate Research Assistant, UMass Boston - Finance and Management Department, Boston, MA 2012-2013
■  Technical Skills: STATA,SAS, MS Excel
■  Analysed and extracted the target and acquirer banks' data in Mergers & Acquisitions into dilTerent role categories
•  Designed and implemented the.system to collect annual reports from SEC EDGAR repositoiy and extract tax avoidance information
■  Examined the influence of shareholder activism negative media coverage, and CEO power on executive compensation between the fall of

Enron and the implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act

HONOR AWARD
•  Chartered Financial Analyst Institution Access Scholarship 2013
, ■ Member of the academic honor society Beta Gamma Sigma 2013-preseni

■  UMass-Boston Graduate Assisiantship 2012 -2013

CERTIFICATES

IBM Data Science Professional Certificate , Jul202l

TECHNICAL SKILLS
Microsoft Office Suite (Word, Excel, Access, PowerPoint), Python, STATA, SQL, R, Tableau, Looker
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Hassan A1 Nemrawi

Portfolio

https://hasanporfolio.herokuapp.coni/

Education

POST-GRADUATE PROGRAM IN DATA ANALYTICS | SIMPLILEARN | REMOTE
December 2021-Present

M.S. IN HEALTHCARE INFORMATICS | ADELPHI UNIVERSITY | GARDEN CITY, NY
January 2017- May 2019

B.S. IN RADIOLOGIC TECHNOLOGY | UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY |
AR-RAMTHA, JORDAN

October 2005-December 2009

t

Professional Experience

DATA ANALYST INTERN | CATHOLIC HEALTH SERVICES | GARDEN CITY, NY
November 2018-April 2019

• Analyzed data from DSRIP program (Delivery System Reform Incentive Payment)
• Worked within a team to create metrics reports informing quality improvement

•  Collaborated with internal teams to implement and evaluate necessary improvements
•  Created dashboards and presentations on data results

TEACHER ASSISTANT | ADELPHI UNIVERSITY | GARDEN CITY, NY

August 2017-December 2018

■ Worked as teacher assistant for graduate level course entitled Information Technology and
Applications

• Assisted students with all course subjects including:

o" Analytical modeling with spreadsheets (data analysis, optimization, and simulation)
o Technical foundations of database management, structures, planning and design
o Database development using Microsoft Access

• Was responsible for grading student assignments, projects, and exams

•  Served as proctor for quizzes and exams

PACS ADMINISTRATOR INTERN | SBH HEALTH SYSTEM | BRONX, NY
January 2018-April 2018
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•  Implemented the Q-path system

•  Supported the efficiency of healthcare operations within radiology department

•  Conducted daily monitoring of Radiology IT systems
)

IMAGING & RADIOLOGY APPLICATIONS SPECIALIST | ELECTRONIC HEALTH
SOLUTIONS I AMMAN. JORDAN

February 2014-]uly 2015

•  Contributed to the implementation planning phases including planning, design, configuration, testing,

training, support

•  Provided individual and group trainings to hospital employees from interdisciplinary departments

•  Responsible for the identification, prioritization and resolution of issues

• Allocated workload and resources within the assigned team

•  Implemented RIS/PACS in hospitals^ clinics and health centers in various cities within Jordan

• Trained doctors and technicians in electronic workflow and the use of RIS/PACS within various

departments

•  Supported users during the "Go-live" phase of the EHR (Electronic Health Records) implementation

•  Completed daily monitoring of RIS/PACS systenv providing support, troubleshooting and issues

handling '

•  Provided support for semce issues and requests

RADIOLOGY TECHNOLOGIST | AL ISTISHARI HOSPITAL | AMMAN, JORDAN

November 2011-june 2015

Conducted general radiography and intervenfional radiology procedures

Conducted Fiuoroscopy procedures

Conducted CT and MRl scans

Utilized Radiology Information Systems (RIS) and Picture Archiving Communications Systems (PACS)

Provided patient care to patients across the lifespan

RADIOLOGY TECHNOLOGIST | MEDICAL SURGICAL CENTER | AMMAN, JORDAN

August 2010-December 2011

•  Conducted general radiology procedures for geriatric population

• Worked within a team of doctors and technicians to collaborate on patient conditions
•  Communicated with patients' families regarding any concerns and patient updates

Skills

Advanced in Excel and DAX

SQL

Python

NumPy

Pandas -

Matplotlib

Seaborn

Power Bl

ETL

Page 2
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Data cleaning and modeling

Statistical Analysis

Data basis and processing

Bilingual (English/Arabic)

Page 3
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David Eberbach

Skill Summary:

Successful management of growing multi-state non-profit organization.

Partnering with a variety of stakeholders, including agencies, state and local

governments and federal partners. Knowledgeable of key concepts, rules,
regulations and fundamentals of both HMIS implementation and operation.

Experience includes report design/ development and group facilitation as .

well as client, agency and community partner engagement.

Professional Experience:

Institute for Community Alliances

Executive Director 2014-Present

Primary duties include oversight of growing 501(c)3 non-profit

organization, managing 19 staff members and operations across four
states. Successfully partnering 'with various stakeholders to meet the
organization's goals. Experience applying for and managing federal ahd
state funding streams.

Institute for Community Alliances

Associate Director 2004-2014

Primary duties include oversight of two successful HMIS implementations,

management of a staff of eight and partnering with four Continue of Care.

Human Service Planning Data

Warehouse Manager/Researcher 2000-2004

Primary duties included development of a community data warehouse

system, negotiating data sharing agreements and production of varied

reports and geo-mapped projects for community partners.

Institute for Community

Alliances Project Director 1994-2000

Primary duties included state/federal grant management and grant
compliance monitoring for approximately 120 homeless and housing

agencies. Additional duties included management a small loan program
in partnership with CAP agencies and oversight of Homeless and housing
agency data collection efforts for the State of
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Home Opportunities Made

Housing Counselor/Case Manager 1989 - 1994

Primary Duties included providing information to landlords and tenants to

. avoid evictions, case management for select home ownership clients, and

homeless prevention/shelter diversion services for imminently homeless
clients. Other duties included advocacy for Fair Housing issues at the city

and state level.

Education Summary:

College "
BA degree In Sociology 1985 - 1989
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JULIE A.EBERBACH

EXPERIENCE

Institute for Community Alliances
Associate Exec/i/tpe Director 2000 — Present

■ Oversees and manages all fiscal and administrative staff of ICA.
■ Oversees and manages aU matters related to Human Resources for the agency.
■ Ser\'es as one of two direct reports for six agency implementation Directors.
■ Provides direct supporfand senses as communication liasion to the ICA Board of

Directors

■ Responsible for monitoring and commenting on all applicable federal and state
administrative rules and regulations related to homeless and housing policy and local
agency compliance.

■ Contributing author for the Continuum of Care (Supportive Housing Program) grant
application for the

■ Contributing author for the Continuum of Care (Supportive Housing Program) grant
application for the

I

I  ' '

■ Contributing author of the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report of
Housing Opportunities for People With AIDS/HIV projects.

■ Directed data collection implementation efforts and on-going performance reporting on
behalf of the State of Runaway and Homeless Youth Programs (RHY),
Supportive Sendees for Veterans Families (SSVF), and Programs to Assist with the
Transition from Homelessness (PATH).

■ Directed all grant administration for the Homeless Assistance Programs for the State of
Iowa on behalf of the

■ Directed the creation and implementation of the Homeless Management Information
System for the State of ncompassing 140 homeless and supportive sendee

,  agencies and utilized by over 450 end users.
■ Performed agency monitoring to ensure progress towards Federal and State program

performance outcomes for agency compliance with the Data and Technical Standards
for Homeless Management Information System networks.

United Church

Snpennsit!^ Church Administrator 1997 — 2000
■ Lead staff liaison to the church's Board of Trustees; supendsed all facilit)' management,

physical plant needs and budget concerns.
■ Directed administrative support to the church's clergy staff and Christian education staff,

including correspondence, data base management, composition and production of
program materials.

Alzheimer's Association

Public Polity Coordinator 199-4 — 1997
■ Executed set-up of the Chapter's first "branch office" in a 24 county

ser\dce area. Coordinated all local ser\dces including family support groups, community-
based volunteer respite care program, in-sendce training and community education
programs.
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JULIE A. EBERBACH - PAGE 2

Directed the public policy planning and programming for the Coalition of '
Chapters. This project was part of a public policy demonstration project funded the
Alzheimer's Association's Public Policy Division in Washington DC.

ACHIEVEMENTS/ACCOMPLISHMENTS

United • nteragency Council on Homelessness
■ 2016 — Achieved the "Effective End of Veterans' Homelessness" for

— sen'-ed as work team Lead Facililatator

National U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Acheivement Awards
■ 2006 "Effective Strategies Award" for HMIS Administration
■ 2006 - 2009 "Annual Homeless Assessment Report Qualit)' Participation Recognition"
■ 2008 "Annual Homeless Assessment Report All-Stars Award"

Conference Presentations

■ National Human Service Data Consortium — annual national training conference
■ Council Of State Communit)' Development Agencies — annual homeless programs

training
■ National Alliance to End Homelessness — national annual meeting
■ Housing Annual Conference of the Finance Autliority

Relevant Leadership
■ Board of Directors, National Human Sendees Data Consortium 2004 — 2017
■ Vice-Chair/Treasurer, National Human Sendees Data Consortium 2007 — 2017

EDUCATION

Conference United of Christ

■ Certification for Licensed h'linistr)' — Conferred June 2001

Universit)' of | .
■ Major field of study — Journalism, Political Science

Communit)'.High School
■ Foreign Exchange (1975) Aarhus, Denmark

1999-2001

1976-1978

1973- 1976

INTERESTS

Hiking, camping, skiing, bicycling, sailing, gardening
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Kimberly S. Grandstaff

Education:
2006

Degree: Associates of Arts
Major: Business Management

1991 usiness College
Degree: Certificate
Major: Secretarial Specialist

Computer Skills:

Proficient in the use of Mas90. Quickb'ooks. Microsoft Word, Excel. Access. PowerPoint,
Outlook, and Internet, Also, basic knowledge of Seryjcepoint.

Exoerio'rtcd'i'

Institute for Community Alliances. Administrative Assistant/Grant Administrator,
•2005 - present

•  Instrumental in the daily functioning of the office: answer phones, filing, mailing
and assists office staff with various duties.

•  G/anl a^minislration for various grants; such as SHP, HPRP. HOPWA,
E SG fsA F ,• D i sa s te r.

•  • Bookkeeping for all grants; includes payroll. A/P, A/R and budget reports
•  Provides support to providers; such as password resets, basic Servicepoint

questions. Grant regulations, etc. .

Electrical Manufacturing Company, Office Administrator.'l991 - 2005
Instrumental in the daily functioning of the office: answering 6 phone tines,
preparing documentation for shipments, verifying time-clock data, opening and
distributing mail, and filing.
Provide support to the accounting, quoting, engineering, and purchasing
departments.

Professionally interact with other team members, customers, and vendors,
Compile weekly production reports and distribute to senior staff.
Process Payroll for 45 employees.
Document various job processes for training purposes.
Reconcile payroll bank statements monthly.
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Prepare all company quarterly tax reports.
Professionally assist Controller and external auditors during year-end audit.
Provide assistance to Controller in monthly closing process.
Maintain accurate employee records.

Instrumental in provide basic accounting backup in the areas of AR, AP, Payroll.
Job Costing, and General Ledger while the controller was on maternity leave.



DocuSign Envelope 10: 5A6113D7-7B97-4796-8025-86CE260AEE16

MOLLIE LYON

Grants Administrator with 10+ years of experience looking for further career growth at an organization

that is Impactful to the community. Collaborative team player with a strong track record of meeting
deadlines and being highly organized while maintaining multiple projects.

EXPEMENCE

NOVEMBER 2021 TO PRESENT

GRANTS MANAGER

INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNITY ALLIANCES, DES MOINES, lA

Serves as the primary person responsible for oversight and administration of ICA's state and

federal grants and provides redundancy for overall fiscal operations. Works closely with HMIS

directors on pre- and post-award grant activities.

•  Reviews grant documents and obtains signatures for execution. Communicates with

funds on agreement execution

Maintains files for each grant and corresponding grant number and grant year

Track all grant "life cycles" from submission to close out including preparing reports

as needed for funders

Provide all required support documents for each grant (i.e., Certificate of Insurance,

Board List, Organizational Charts, ICA Policy Manuals, HUD forms, and other

documents per funder request)

Tracks income and expenses for each ICA funding source; monitors'budget line items

for each grant

Prepares monthly grant progress reports for review by Implementation

Directors/Managers

Communicates with subawardees to obtain all required documentation and prepares

and executes subaward agreements.

Serves as supervisor of independent contractor working on FEMA program and

reviews invoices. Attend programs meetings as needed

Prepares staff time allocations in collaboration with Implementation Directors.

Serves as Authorized User in eLOCCS to draw down federal HUD funds on a monthly

basis.

Creates grant specific policies for organization use

MAY 2013 TO NOVEMBER 2021

GRANTS AND CONTRACTS MANAGER

DES MOINES UNIVERSITY, DES MOINES, lA
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Serves as the Authorized Organization Representative (AOR) to submit all sponsored project

proposals to funding agency and the main contact for all research and non-research grants and

contracts, including all post-award activities.

•  Manages the grant and contract submission process inclusive of review of proposals to

meet university and agency fiscal policies/procedures. Ensures grant applications are in
accordance with the requirements of the sponsor including all supporting

documentation.

•  Maintains and manages electronic registration with federal and private agencies.

•  Manages preparation and submission of all deliverables and reports regarding sponsored

programs for funding agencies.

•  Serves as a central negotiator and liaison between the university, funding agencies, and

contract entities; researches, drafts and approves formal responses to request for

proposals, contracts, and agreements.

•  Leads development of training of policies, procedures, and grantsmanship to campus,

community.

•  Ensures university compliance of awarding agencies' regulations for post-award activities

of sponsored programs; prepares required acceptance documentations; develops and

implements policies and procedures to coincide with requirements.

Success Examples:
■" I' • ' • '

•  Submitted 567 grant proposals and contracts totaling more than $66 million since 2013.
•  Managed 172 external grant awards totaling over $13.5 million since 2013.
•  Secured a $2 million grant from the Department of Commerce for the new campus .

Human Simulation Center equipped with telehealth capabilities.
•  Grant award dollars rose from ~$50,000 in 2012 to $4.8 million in 2021.

I

•  Prepared grants in collaboration with almost 100 faculty and staff project leaders.

SEPTEMBER 2011 - MAY 2013

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

DES MOINES UNIVERSITY, DES MOINES, lAJ
Managed all office operations for the Office of Research and served as the assistant for the Vice
President for Research.

Was responsible for assisting in development of $1.1 million Office of Research budget as
well as monitoring expenditures and revenue throughout the fiscal year.
Was responsible for assisting in development of $190,000 lOER grant budget. Monitored,
tracked, and projected salary and supply spending throughout the fiscal year.
Managed and submitted grants to multiple external funding agencies.
Served as payroll supervisor for over 50 student researchers for the Mentored Student
Research Program.
Managed scheduling rneetings, creating agendas, taking minutes of research committees
including and IRB, lACUC, Research and Grants committees.
Oversaw the submission and maintenance of the controlled substances licenses on
campus.

Managed research laboratory equipment as well as maintenance contracts.
Collected and disseminated research outcomes to research community and beyond by
creating, developing, and authoring various articles and posts on the external university
website and blog.
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Performed analysis of campus publications and presentations and developed reports

based on the data.

JANUARY 2008 - SEPTEMBER 2011

RESEARCH SPECIALIST

IOWA ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOL BOARDS, DES MOINES, lA

Member of Iowa School Boards Foundation team that conducted research for Improved student

achievement, high quality early childhood education and parental involvement, Served as the
sole contact for completing, submitting, and tracking documents and reporting for federal and
state grant applications.

•  Managed and planned details for multiple day training meeting including travel

arrangements for out-out-state attendees.

•  Tracked all communication for the Igrowth program for student achievement.

•  Created and edited content on ISBF website.

•  Analyzed rigor of Iowa Core Curriculum.

•  Conducted site visits at school districts around the state of Iowa including classroom .

observations and staff interviews.

•  Analyzed data from school site visits using Bloom's Taxonomy.

EDUCATION

APRIL 2011 I
BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN NUTRITIONAL SCIENCE

KAPLAN UNIVERISTY ONLINE

!  '

NOVEMBER 2005

ASSOCIATE DEGREE IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION AND TRAVEL & TOURISM

AIB COLLEGE OF BUSINESS, DES MOINES, lA

SKILLS

•  Grant management

•  Grant reviewer

•  Experience with and understanding of federal
Uniform Guidance

Extensive experience working with state,

federal, and foundation funders

Budget creation and monitoring

AWARDS

•  2015 DMU President's Recognition Award •  2019 DMU President's Team Award
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•  2016 OMU Staff Organization Community
Service Award

•  2018 OMU President's Recognition Award

2019 DMU Spotlight 360 Award

VOLUNTEERISM

Waukee Schools Foundation Scholarship
Committee

Waukee Schools Foundation Grants Committee

Volunteer at various church events

Past member of state team-Action for Healthy
Kids

Volunteer at multiple homeless shelters

Youth soccer coach 2016-2021

Youth Softball coach 2014-2019

.Youth volleyball coach 2016-2019

Grant reviewer for state and foundations
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Kim A. Lamb

Summary An experienced office manager with experience working in team environments and strong
organizational and leadership skills. Seeking to support an organization's goals with my
15+ years of experience in office administration, payroll, and accounting.

Education American Institute of Business, Des Moines, lA

Associate of Business Degree: Business Administration and Accounting

Professional St. John^s Lutheran Church, Des Moines, lA, 2007 - 2023 (fulltime, part-time)
Experience Front Office Manager 2007 - April 2020; Office Coordinator April 2020 - February 2021;

Office Manager February 202] - February 2022

•  Trained, supervised, and scheduled the Office Assistant and office volunteers.
•  Acted as the main point of contact for the office. Responded to inquiries, answered

the phones, and greeted guests.
•  Scheduled and coordinated church events, including baptisms, weddings, and

funerals.

• Managed church facilities by scheduling building use for church activities and
outside parties; Ensured security staff were scheduled and available for worship
services and other church activities.

• Managed office supplies and inventories and maintained vendor relationships.
• Maintained membership records for the congregation for daily ministry and

reporting, and input membership information into the database.

•  Responded to senior leadership, member, and ministry requests.

Lutheran Church of Hope, Des Moines, lA, 2015-2021 (part-time)
Hospitality Assistant; September 2015 -August 2016; Ministry Assistant: August 2016 -
March 2021

•  On-site presenee for Sunday mornings and classes/nursery registration, providing
beverages and support for a friendly, hospitable welcome to all guests

•  Offering processing oversight and leadership following weekend worship services
•  Administrative/ministry support providing oversight of baptisms, worship

connection cards, prayer requests and maintaining supplies (office, food service
needs, weekend volunteers and communion)

PorticoHR/Accoutemps Employment Agency, West Des Moines, lA, 2006-2007
Accounting & Administrative Assistant
•  Processed accounts payable, accounts receivable and petty cash.
• Maintained office inventories.

•  Performed miscellaneous administrative office duties.

McAnlnch Corporation, Des Moines, lA, 2003-2005
Payroll Administrator

•  Responsible for applications, new employee processing and maintenance
•  Assisted with employee benefit administration (nonunion).
•  Processed weekly payroll (550 employees, 24 unions, non-union), taxes, and

deductions.
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Kim A. Lamb

Merit Resources, Inc., Urbandale, lA, 1995-2003

Payroll & Accounting Supervisor/Administrator, 1995-1999; Payroll & Accounting
Manager. 1999-2002; Accounting Manager: 2002 - 2003
•  Responsible for hiring, training, evaluating and supervising employees.

•  • Managed accounting, payroll/tax, cash functions and issued financial statements.
•  Administrator of payroll software
•  New client implementation, assisted with prospective client sales calls.

Competencies
•  Proven Leadership Skills
•  Strong Organizational Skills
•  Excellent Time Management

Soft>vare

•Microsoft Outlook, Word, Excel

ACS (church database software)
RDS (church database software)

Realm (church database software)
ServiceU (facility calendar software)
Milestone Security (camera software)
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Zac Henderson

Summary of Qualifications
IT/Sales and Marketing professional with 16 years of experience building, maintaining, and selling IT systems (9+ years specific to
financial systems). Strong ability to work on deadlines, solve problems, but above all else, help others succeed by being passionate

and always learning and progressing. Detail-oriented, adjusts immediately to changing priorities, works well in team environments,

strong communication and leadership skills.

Skills

MS Office, Adobe Suite, HTML/CSS/JS, Cff, PHP, Delphi/Pascal, SQL and SSRS, Sales, Marketing, and Management.

Experience

2015-2022 • Real Asset Maniagement/MRI Software • Des Moines, lA

Account Executive

Solution based sales ranging from Accounting to Maintenance Management Software.

Write specifications for new development according to client needs.

Work directly with MS SQL Server writing SQL statements to repair, modify, or create client databases.

Project Plan/Statement of Work and User Acceptance Test creation.
2020 NA Top Performer

2012-2015 ♦ Real Asset Management • Des Moines, lA

Support and Implementation
Provide technical support to clients for proprietary software by use of remote desktop/Citrix.

Train users on various modules within the software suite.

Work directly with MS SQL Server writing SQL statements to repair, modify, or create client databases.
Creation of SQL reports via SSRS. I
Project management with new clients for installation, configuration, data conversion, and training.

QA software prior to release and test new hardware.

2004-2007, 2008-2012 • Des Moines Radio Group • Des Moines, lA

Account Executive, Sales Manager, National Sales Manager
•  Built relationships with local business owners as well as large agencies.

•  Achieved RMP (Radio Marketing Professional), CRMC (Certified Radio Marketing Consultant) and CMDC (Certified Digital
Marketing Consultant) through the Radio Advertising Bureau.

•  Promoted to Sales Manager after 1 year of returning (2009) and National Sales Manager after 2 years overseeing the sales

operations for 3 radio stations (Star 102.5, Lazer 103.3, HITS 99.9)

2002-2010 • MC Squared • Des Moines, lA

IT Specialist, Manager
•  operated and opened multiple new entertainment-oriented businesses

•  Built and maintained IT systems between 5 separate businesses

•  Interviewed, hired, trained and managed dozens of employees

1999-2002 • Strategic Marketing • Lincoln, NE

Manager

•  Promoted to Manager within 6 rhonths

•  Always exceeded quota and corporate expectations

Education

2012-2013 • Kaplan University • Des Moines, lA

Associate of Applied Science in Information Technology
•  Focus on Software and Web Development

•  Courses in C#, Microsoft Access, SQL, HTML/CSS, PHP

•  President's List three consecutive terms. Dean's List all other terms
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KIMBERLY LONG, SPHR

Certified human resources professional with a broad range of experience including recruiting,

employee relations management, employee development, policy development, benefits and

compensation administration, as well as employment law and compliance. Adept at building

consensus and creating an involved workforce, utilizing strategic thinking and strong

communication skills.

EXPERIENCE

03/2021 TO 01/2022

EMPLOYMENT LAW SPECIALIST, DICKINSON LAW FIRM

Worked closely with clients to solve complex employment challenges through people-

^  related solutions. Provided legal research and legal technical content to produce
products showcasing firm expertise. Assessed cases for probable outcomes by
researching case law and other legal authority, comparing fact patterns to those of

precedential cases.

12/2017 TO 02/2021

DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES & EMPLOYEE HEALTH, STORY COUNTY

MEDICAL CENTER

Led human resources and employee health activities including recruitment and

retention, orientation and onboarding efforts, performance management programs,

benefit administration and plan design, worker's compensation and leaves

administration. Created, interpreted, and administered company policies and

procedures. Performed departmental audits to ensure Department of Inspection and

Appeals' (DIA) requirements met. Consulted with management on employee personnel

matters including reorganizations, disciplinary actions and terminations.

06/2012 TO 12/2017

DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES, DICKINSON LAW FIRM

Responsible for the management of the human resource and employee relations

functions of the firrn. This included, but was not limited to, recruiting, supervision,

performance management, compensation, benefits, employee relations, non-attorney

training and development, human resource record management, and employee

communications. Responsible for ensuring cornpliance with all federal, state, and local

laws and regulations as they relate to the personnel function.

02/2010 TO 02/2012

HR GENERALIST, DICKINSON LAW FIRM
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Responsibilities included assistance with benefits management, payroll processing,
applicant screening, new hire orientation, employee evaluation preparation, employee

records management, and secretarial coverage coordination. Point-person for employee

inquiries regarding firm policies and procedures. Responsible for adequate staffing of

firm.projects, events, and day-to-day activities.

08/2006 TO 02/2010

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT, DICKINSON LAW FIRM

Served as the point person to the human resources, finance, and marketing departments
of a mid-size downtown law firm. All-encompassing position included responsibilities for
payroll processing, accounts payable, client billing, personnel filing compliance,
prospective client and recruiting materials preparation, special event coordination for

both internal and external events, and special projects as assigned.

08/2004 TO 08/2006

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT, GOLD STANDARD BAKING

Involved in all aspects of the business, from production to sales to customer service to

human resources. Duties included maintaining and coordinating calendars and travel

plans, creating and updating written works (such as plant manuals, company

nevysletters, surveys, etc.), sales reporting^ processing payroll, invoicing, coordinating

sample shipments, managing customer databases and mailing lists, special event
planning and other various office duties as needed or assigned.

EDUCATION

2021

SENIOR PROFESSIONAL IN HUMAN RESOURCES (SPHR) CERTIFICATION

2012

PROFESSIONAL IN HUMAN RESOURCES (PHR) CERTIFICATION

2004 ;

BACHELOR OF ARTS - MAJOR; ENGLISH MINORS: WRITING AND HISTORY, BRIAR

CLIFF UNIVERSITY

Graduated magna cum laude. Awarded "Student of the Year - English Department", Activities:

Member of the Briar Cliff women's cross country team; Resident Assistant during junior and

senior years; President of the English & Writing Club; English Department secretary

MEMBERSHIPS

Member, Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM)

Member Central Iowa Society for Human Resource Management (CI-SHRM)

Treasurer, Iowa Association of Legal Administrators (2015-2017)
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MOHAMMAD

ABUGHAZALEH

Recently.relocated to Iowa and authorized to work. Bilingual accountant seeking employment with a
reputable company that will allow for career growth and opportunity. Interesting and challenging
position where skill set can be utilized to achieve company goals.

EXPERIENCE

AUGUST 2020 - MAY 2022

GENERAL ACCOUNTANT, WAFIR INDUSTRIAL DETERGENTS COMPANY (SAUDI
ARABIA)

Utilized ALPHA documentation system

Prepared accounting registries for numerous journals, logs, and registers
Performed monthly bank reconciliations .
Provided detailed analysis and explanation of all transactions

Performed quarterly inventory counting

AUGUST 2017 - JULY 2020

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, AQUAT FOOD INDUSTRIES (SAUDI ARABIA)
Utilized SAP-ERP documentation system

Prepared accounting registries for numerous journals, logs, and registers
Supported accounts payable activities to ensure accuracy and timeliness
Managing supplier payments and reconciling monthly statements of accounts

Provided detailed analysis and explanation of all transactions

Performed quarterly inventory counting

EDUCATION

FEBRUARY 2017 ;

BACHELORS OF ACCOUNTING, PETRA UNIVERSITY (JORDAN)
3.68 CPA, Honorary Degree for Excellence

SKILLS

•  Strong attention to detail

•  Commitment to excellent service

•  Ability to prioritize and multitask

•  Strong team worker

•  Fluent in both Arabic and English language

Excellent communication and presentation
skills

Eagerness to learn new skills

Ability to work well under pressure and

meet deadlines
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institute for Community Alliances
Key Personnel

Last Name First Name Title Salary

Dirkman Jesse Senior Analyst $ 77,570.00

Kukuk Jack Data Analyst $ 66,150.00

Machanoff Robyn System Administrator $ 60,200.00

Walker Chertina System Administrator $ 60,200.00

Morrow Meghan HMIS Manager $ 72,500.00

Smith Adam HMIS Director $ 94,018.00

Le Thu Data Analyst $ 60,000.00

Al Nemrwi Hassan Data Analyst $ 60,000.00

Eberbach David Executive Director $ 147,486.00

Eberbach -Julie Corporate Operations Officer $ 126,195.00

Grandstaff Kimberly Fiscal Operations Manager $ 85,000.00

Lyon MoHie Grant Manager $ 78,000.00

Lamb Kirn Office Administrator $ 47,840.00

Henderson Zac Information Technology Manager $ 75,000.00

Long Kimberly Manager of People & Culture $ 78,000.00

Abughazaleh Mohammad Accounting Specialist $ 54,600.00

% paid from

the contract

30%

30%

100%

100%

50%

10%

25%

25%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

1%

Amount paid from

this contract

$  23,271.00

$  19,845.00 .

$  60,200.00

$  60,200:00

$  36,250.00

$  9,401.80

$  15,000.00

$  15,000.00

$  1,474.86

$  1,261.95

$  850.00

$  780.00

$  478.40

$  ■ 750.00

$  - 780.00

$  546.00

Salary with

benefits

87,846.00

76,429.00

69,903.00

69,192.00

82,944.00

$ 107,459.00

$ 67,590.00

$ 73,911.00

$ 166,059.00

$ 147,943.00

99,112.00

99,687.00

68,395.00

85,677.00

88,906.00

67,773.00

Total Amount

paid to this

contract with

benefits

.$ 26,353.80

$  22,928.70

$  69,903.00

$  69,192.00

$  41,472.00

$. 10,745.90

$  16,897.50

$  18,477.75

$  1,660.59

$  1,479.43

$  991.12

$  996.87

$  683.95

$  856.77

$  889.06

$  677.73
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSH[RE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474. I-600-8SZ-334S Ext 9474

Ftx: 603-271-4230 TOD Aceeis: I-800-735-2964 www.<nilu.ob4ey

December 29, 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl

State House
Cpncoid, New Hampshire 0^01

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Deparbhent of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into a Reti^r^e, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with
Insthute for Commu^ Alliances (VC#301842-B001), Des Motnes, lA to expand the operation
and mainteriance of the New Hampshire Statewide Hometew Management Information Systenri
to Include Youth Homelessness'Demonstration Program, by exercising a renewal option by
increasing the price limitation by $96,163 from $1,419,3^ to $|.515,526, and exter>dirig;the
completion, date from July 31, 2023 to September 30, 2024 effective retroactive to October 1.
2022 upon Governor and Cburicil.approval. 100% Federal Furids.

The. o^lnai contract was. approved Gdvemor and Council on March 27,. 2019, Item
#11. amended on Msrth 24. 2021, item #6. amended on July 14, 2021, item #8 and most
Recently amended bri January i2,:2p22, Item #20.

Funds are available tri the followirig accounts for . State Fiscal Year .2023, and are
anticipated to to bvailable in State Fiscal. Years ̂2024 arid 2025, upon the ayailability'ar^
continued; appropriation of funds in the future, .pperatirig budget, with the authority to adjust
budget line items wiUiiri the price limitation and .'encumbrances t)etvyeen. state fiscal years
through .the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole. Source because .the original Agreement was labeled as sole
source and MOP 150 requires subsequent actions to.be labeled as such. The Contmctpr is the
only known veridpr ' able to prpyjde the necessary services, because the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Oeyelopmerit (HUD) provided the Department 'MXh a pre-apprpyed
list of qualifted vendors .capable of performing the. required operating arid maintenance.
services for. the Homeless fiflariagement Information System (HMIS). There are no New
Hampshire-based yeridprs that are existing HMjS System Administratbrs. and the ..selected
vendor is the only vendor .offering Instate techriicai isupport.

This request .is. Relrpactiye to October-1; 2022 tb/aiigri'with the start date of the
new,grant agreement received-by the. Depataerit on Septeriitfer .3;b, .2022 jfrprii' HUp;
The Department, as the Collabbfative ^plicarit, is required to issue a Request for
Proposals, through the Cbntinuum, based the HUD Continuum of Care (CoC) Program Notice
■of Funding Opportunity (NOFO). HUD, reviews, and scores vendor applications; based .on
federal rank and. review , ppllcy, arid scoring tools; created to rnafeh the federal NOFO: HU.D
subsequently-,awards;

The'Depdrimenl of Heoith w^'HumM 'St'rvica'Mission is to communities and fomilia
in'p'rouUiingopporluhUies'fiir cUiitnstoachieve htalthond.independene^
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His Excellency. Governor Chrrstcpher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundl
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funding based on strict federal criteria specifying eligible activities, populations to be served,
expected performance outcomes, and time frames for the application competition and
subsequent Department agreements. The Department receives notification of the awards and
signed grant agreements from HUD several months later, at which time agreements, such
as those contained in this request, can be executed.

The purpose of this request is to add funding provided by HUD, to extend the completion
date, and to expand current services to include repo^rig in the HMIS, on the youth and young
adult (under age 25} population who are homeless and/or at risk of becoming homeless.

The web-based HMIS provides value to the Department with improved capacity to
measure the aspects of homelessness in New Hampshire, and improves the ability for local
programs that assist people who are homeless to maintain eligibility for continued federal funding.
Collateral project goals are to use the HMIS software to improve housing service resource
sharing, automated eligitxilty determinations, and linkages to mainstream assistance programs
for New Hampshire homeless individuals and families. An additional benefit is the improved
coordination of essential services arxJ supports that address arxJ help alleviate homelessness.

The web-based HMIS is administered thrbugh federal regulations and a NH HMIS
Governance Charter, which all participating shelters and HUD funded programs are required to
follow. The Governance Charter defines responsibilities by all system users in actions that include
system security, local system admiriistration, and dient confidentiality. The Institute for
Community Allianoes is the only verxlor furrded for HMIS activities in New Hampshire and is
structured consistent with the centralized, statewide architecture developed under HUD guidance
and adopted by the New Hampshire Continuums in 2002.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Section 2, Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up to five (5) years, contingent upon ̂ tisfactory delivery of
senrices, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Coundl approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) year and two (2) months of
the two (2) years and 11 months available.

Should the Governor arid Coundl not authorize this request the Contractor will not have
suffident funding to support the HMIS and the additional Balance of State Continuum of Care
Youth Homeless Demonstration Program reporting requirements, which could result In the loss
of funding. This could impact the operational capacity of many community programs supporting
individuals and families experiehdng horrtelessness.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267, FAIn #
NH0035L1T022114, NH0139Y1T002000.

In the event that the Federal Funds become noi longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

. Weaver

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-85-42-423010-79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS; HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM
100% Federal Funds

Vendor #301842-8001
instnine tor ̂

State Fiscal

Year '
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs T8D $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $76,047.00 SO.OO $76,047.00

2021 102-500731. Contracts lor Proa Svcs TBD S76.048.00 $0.00 $76,048.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svcs TBO 576.047.00 SO.OO $76,047.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD S6.337.00 SO.OO S6.337.00

2023 074-500589

n74..S00589

Grants for Pub i^st and Raliel
Grants for F>ub Asst and Heliel

TBO

TBD

S69.710.00

S6337.00

SO.OO

SO.OO

$69,710.00
ie!357.00

Sub Total 5310.526.00 SO.OO S310.526.(X)

Stale Fiscal
Class f Account Class Title Job Numt>er Current AmounI

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD 50.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs •  TBD 551.953.00 $0.00 S51.953.00

2021 ■ 102-500731 Contracts lor Proo Svcs TBD 551.954.00 $0.00 $51,954.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svcs TBD ■ $51,953.00 SO.OO

SO 00

$51,953:00

$4,329.00
.  2023

2023

102-500731

074-500589 Grants for Pub Assi and Relief TBD S47.624.00 50.00 $47,624.00

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBO . 54.329.00 SO.OO $4,329.00

Sub Total
! S212.142.00 50.00 $212,142.00

State Fiscal
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current AmounI

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD SO.OO SO.OO SO.OO

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD . S12.474.00 SO.OO $12,474.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD i S12.474.00 $0.00 $12,474.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svcs TBD ' S12.474.00 $0.00 $12,474.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD $1,036.00 SO.OO $1,038.00

2023 074-500569 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD ; S11.436.00 $9,400.00 $20,636.00

2024 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD SI.038.00 S854.00 $1,692.00

Sub Total S50.934.00 $10,254.00 $61,188.00

i;

State Fiscal
Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Increase

(Deaease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svcs TBD . . S39.570.00 •SO.OO $39,570.00

2020 • 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD ' S21.000.00 SO.OO $21,000.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD S80.815.0D SO.OO $80,615.00

2022 074-500589 Contracts for Proa Svcs TBD S81.000.00 SO.OO $81,000.00

2023 074-500589 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD S81.000.00 SO.OO $61,000.00

Sub Total S303.185.00 SO.OO $303,185.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title

1

Job Nurhber Current AmounI
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD SO.OO SO.OO $0.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts lor Proq Svcs TBD i $109,802.00 $0.00 $109,802.00

2021 102-500731 Contracis for Proo Svcs TBD S109.802.00 1  SO.OO $109,602.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBO ' $161,486.00 $0.00 $161,486.00

2023 102-500731 Contracis for Proa Svcs TBD 5161.466.00 $0.00 $161,468.00

Sub Total S&42.576.00 $0.00 S542.576.00

Slate Fiscal
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount

Inaease

(Decrease)
Revised AmounI

2023 074-500569 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD SO.OO $32,216.00 $32,-216.00

2024 074-500569 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBO SO.OO $42,955.00 $42,955.00

2025 074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $10,738.00 $10,738.00

Sub Total SO.OO $85,909.00 S85.909.00

Overall Total! Sl.419.363.00l $96.t63.00l S1.515,526"0^

Governor and Council Letter Attachment

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1'
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazcn Dr., Concord, NH 03301

Fax: 603-271-1516 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.nh.gov/doil

Denis Goulct

Commissioner

Lori Weaver, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
Slate of New Hampshire
29 Hazen Drive
Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Wwver:

January 6, 2023

This leuer represents formal nolincation that the Department of infonnation Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source, retroactive amendment with Institute for
Community Alliances, as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2019-026D.

The purpose of this request is for maintenance and continued operation of the New
Hampshire Statewide Homeless Management Infonnation Sysiem.

The Price Limitation will increase by $96,163 for a total new Price Limitation of
$1,515,526 effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval retroactive from
October 1, 2022 through September 30,2024.

A copy of this letter must accompany the Depanment of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely, .

Denis Goulet

DG/jd .
DolT#2019-026D

cc: Mike Williams, IT Manager

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4

This Amendment to the Homeless Management Information System contract is by and between the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Institute for
Community Alliances ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 27, 2019. (Item #11), as amended on March 24. 2021. (Item #6). as amended July 14. 2021.
(Item #8) and most recently amended on January 12, 2022, (Item #20). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions' specified In the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified;.and

Whereas, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the. Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the"agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, BIdck 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30. 2024

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$1,515,526

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read;

Robert W. Moore, Director. •

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services. Subsection 2.1. to read:

2.1. The Contractor.shall provide data base management services for the HMIS that Is used to
collect client-level data and data on the provision of housing and services to Individuals, youth,
and families who are homeless and/or at risk of becoming homeless.

5. Modify Exhibit 8. Amendment 1. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by replacing in
its entirety with Exhibit 8. Amendment 4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which
is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.'

I

6." Modify Exhibit B-1. Amendment 3. Expense Budget Detail and Budget Sheets, in its entirety and
■  replace with Exhibit B-1, Amendment 4. Expense Budget Detail and Budget'Sheets, which is

attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

.

Institute for Community Alliances A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.

SS-2019.BHHS.03-HMIS.01-A04 Page.1of3
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective retroactive to October 1, 2022, upon Governor
and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/19/2023

Date

OMuSlgMd by:

Title: Division Director

1/3/2023

Date

Institute for^Community Alliances
.  i

—OoeuSlgrMd ̂

NSS'g^Wfa'^Eberbach
Title: Executive Director

Institute for Community Alliances

SS-20l9-BHHS-O3-HMIS-0i-A04

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. ^

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■OoeuSIgn*^ br:

1/20/2023 '
Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: {date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Institule for Community Alliances A-S-1,2

SS-2019-BHHS-03-HMIS-01 -AO^ Page 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B, Amendment 4

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS):

1.1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price
Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

1.2. This contract is funded with 34% General Funds and 66% Federal Funds as follows;

1.2.1. NH General Funds

Program Title: State Grant In Aid (SGIA), HMIS
Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total:

July 1, 2019 - June 30. 2020 not to exce^: $109,802
July 1. 2020-June-30. 2021 not to exceed: $109,802
July 1. 2021 -June 30, 2022 not to exceed: $161,486
July 1. 2022 - June 30, 2023 not to exceed: $161,486

$542,576;

1.2.2. Federal Funds

CFDA#: 14.231

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)
Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant Program (ESG), HMIS
Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total:

April 1, 2019 - June 30. 2019 not to exceed: $39,570

$303,185;

■July 1, 2019-June .30, 2020 not to exceed:
July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021 , not to exceed:
July 1, 2021 -June 30. 2022 not to exceed:
July 1. 2022-June 30. 2023 not to exceed:

$21,000
$80,615
$81,000
$81,000

$583,856;

1.2.3. Federal Funds

CFDA#: 14.267

Federal Agency: HUD
Program Title: Continuum of Care Program (CpC), HMIS

■  Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total:

July 1. 2019-July 31. 2019: nottoexceed $11,706
August 1. 2019 - July 31,. 2020: not to exceed $140,474
August 1. 2020-July-31. 2021: nottoexceed $140,474 ■
August 1. 2021 - July 31. 2022: not to exceed $140,474
August 1, 2022 - July 31. 2023: not to exceed $150,728
Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMIS, Manchester:
HMIS: $205,482
Administrative costs: $6.660
Total program amount: $212,142
Funds allocation under .this agreement for CoCi HMIS, Nashua:
HMIS: $59,546
Administrative costs: . $1.642
Total program.amount: $61,188

Instilule for Community Alllancei

SS-2019-BHS-03-HMIS-01-A04

Exhibit 8. Amendment 4

Page 1 o( 4

Contractor Inliieis

D6

Date
1/3/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B, Amendment 4

Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMIS, Balance of State:

HMIS: $302,563

Administrative costs: $7.963

Total program amount: $310,526

1.2.4. Federal Funds

Assistance Listing Number #: 14.276
Federal Agency: HUD
Program Title: Youth Homelessness Demonstration Program (YHDP) HMIS
Total Amount HMIS not to exceed . Sub Total: $85,909;
October 1, 2022-June 30, 2023: not to exceed $32,216

July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024: not to exceed $42,955
July 1. 2024 - September 30, 2024: ' not to exceed $10,738

Funds allocation under this agreement for YHDP. HMIS:
.  HMIS: $81,818

• Administrative costs: $4,091

Totaj program amount: $85,909

1.2.5. Total amount HMIS not to exceed Grand Total:- $1,515,526

1.3.. ■ The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded
Contractor's current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance with
2,CFR part 200. j

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address: - ■

NH DHHS ;

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301 . ^ '

2.2. Conformance to.2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in 'Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions,' within ninety (90) days after contract
completion date. v

3. Project Costs; Payment of Project Costs; Review by the State:

. 3.1. Project Costs:' As used in this Agreement, the term-"Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor jn the performance of the Project Actiwties, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200..a^y]sed from time to

.  Idf
Inslilute for Community Alliances ' Exhibit 8. Amendments Contractor Initials^"-

.  ̂ 1/3/2023
SS-2019-BH$.03-HMIS-01-A04 Page 2 Of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B, Amendment 4

time and- with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in .
consideration of the satisfactory completion of'the services to be performed under this
Agreement in accordance with the Continuum of Care Program Regulations, published at 24
CFR Part 578. the State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual,
eligible expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this agreement. Eligible expenditures shall be
in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an amount'as specified in this Exhibit,
and defined by HUD under the provisions of P.L. 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.3. Match Funds: . ^

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements must be documented with each payment request.'

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the
match requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the yalues of third
party in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records Include, to the e)rtent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods-used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Schedule of Payments: Reimbursement requests for all Project.Costs shall be submitted by the
fifteenth (15) of each month for the previous month and accompanied by an invoice from the
Contractor for the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
or required source documentation as designated by the State, which shall be completed and
signed by the Contractor. Invoices shall be submitted promptly to the address listed above in
section 2.1.2. Exhibit B..

3.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic-sjgnature and emailed to:

housinQSuoDortslnvoices@dhhs.nh.aov

3.6. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department programs and
services, and shall provide such records and'any additional financial information if.requested by
the State to verify expenses.

3.7. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice; and if sufHcient funds are available.

3.8. The Contractor agrees to keep records of their.|activities related to Department programs and
services, and shall provide additional financial information if requested by the State to verify
expenses. r,

3.9. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the Services,
and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report. Termination Report |Sr7?&dited Financial

Institute for Community Alliances Extilbii B. Amendments Conlfactorinitials . Pfc

SS-2019-BHS-03-HMtS-Ot-A04 Page 3 of 4 Dale
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Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments
made to date. Upon such review, the Stale shall disallow any Items of expenses that are not
determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall,
by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, informing the Contractor of any such
disallowance. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall
refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement
are subject to recapture. The funds'authorized to be expended under this Agreement shall be
used only for services of the Homeless Management Information System Project and
administration provided by the Contractor for the project period and operating years of the
Continuum of Care Program as approved by HUD and in accordance with" the Continuum of
Care Program Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part 578.

3.10. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in
Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

3.11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any Federal
or State law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services or
products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of
this agreement.

4. Use of Grant Funds:

4.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the
Governor and Executive Council if needed and'justified.

I

4.2 Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant-funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFFt part 200;

4.3 Conformance to 24 CFR 576.107: Emergency Solutions Grant funds are to be used only .in
accordance with HMIS Component Eligible Costs.

4.4 • Conformance to 24 CFR 578.57: Continuum;of Care Grant funds are to be used only in
accordance with HMIS Component Eligible Costs. • * ■

5. Contractor Financial Management System:

5.1 Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
. which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required

nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor. '

5.2 The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.

5Institute for Communily Alliances Exhibit B. Amendment 4 Contractor Initials.
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Expense.Budget Detail

QtatA Ficr;)! Year 2019:

Expense Iteni Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Emergency Solutions Grant •
One-time ESG award
4/1/19-6/30/19

$39,570 $0.00 $39,570 $9,893

Sub Total $39,570 $0.00 $39,570 $9,693

SfatA Fiscal Year 2020:

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant In Aid
7/1/19-6/30/20

$0.00 $109,802 $109,802 $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/19-6/30/20

$21,000 $0.00 . $21,000 $5,250

Continuum of Care

One-time CoC award
7/1/19-7/31/19

$11,706 . $0.00 $11,708 $2,927

Continuum of Care

8/1/19-6/30/20
$128,768 $0.00 $128,768 $32,192

Sub Total $161,474 $109,802 $271,276 $67,820

State Fiscal Year 2021: >

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid
7/1/20-6/30/21

$0.00 ■109,802 $109,802 ■  $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/20-6/30/21

$80,615 i$0.00 $80,615 $20,154

Continuum of Care
7/1/20-6/30/21

$140,476 $0.00 $140,476 $36,010

Sub Total $221,091 $109,802 $330,893 $83,615

Ficral Yaat 2n77

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant
in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal
Year Budget

Vendor Match

StMe Grant in Aid
7/1/21 - 6/30/22

$0.00 $161,486- $161,486 $0.00

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/21-6/30/22

$81,000 $0.00 $81,000 $0.00

Continuum of Care
7/1/21-6/30/22

$140,474 ;$o.oo $140,474 $36,090

Sub Total $221,474 $161,486 $382,960 $38,090 .

Inslitule for Communily Alliances

SS-2019-BHS-03-HMIS-01-A04

Exhibit B-1. Amendment 4

Page 1 of 2
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State Fiscal Year 2023
•

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget.
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/22-6/30/23 ' . ,
$0.00 $161,486 '■ $161,486 $0.00

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/22-6/30/23

$81,000 $0.00 $81,000 . $0.00

Continuum of Care
7/1/22-6/30/23

$149,872 $0.00 $149,872 $38,532

YHDP Grant
10/1/22-6/30/23

$32,216 $0.00 $32,216' $0.00

Sub.Total $263,088 $161,486 $424,574 -$38,532

State Fiscal Year 2024

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds
Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Continuum of Care
7/1/23- 7/31/23

$12;560 $0.00 $12,560 $3,229

YHDP Grant
7/1/23-6/30/23

$42,955 $0.00 $42,955 $0.00

Sub Total $55,515 $0 $55,515 $3,229

State Fiscal Year 2025
t

1
1

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds
Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

YHDP Grant
7/1/24-9/30/24

$10,738 $0.00 $10,738 $0.00

Sub Total $10,738 ; $0 $10,738 $0

1

Grand Total $917,435 $542,576 $1,515,526 $239,179

•
;  « •

Institute for Community Alliances

SS-2019-8HS-03-HMIS-01-A04

Exhibit 8-1. Amendment 4
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(ud^ct ShMi Am«ftdm«Ai M

ICA KMtS Progrmm - BaUnc* of Stata

|CoC Funds • NH0011UTD0211*

SnrZ023 - 8/1/22-6/30/23
TOTAI. PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Activity Nam* BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Equipment tr i.iOO . ft ft .- ft - * S. ft 1.100 ft - •-*..

SotSvar* 1  22.1*0 ft ■- ft " . ft ". ft r Iv ft 22.100 *-

Setvices I  «W ft * ft , • ft • 4i.' 1  4W ft - ft .

Pcraonnal 1  X.S7S ft 1  • -ft > 4. 1  X.S79 ft -!. 1.

Space end Operaaona 7A2* ft ■ * • I.- . S.- >.. ft 7A2« ft-. ft

Aowirwi/aticn 'I.70 >••• , :>r;' ft ft ". . 4 - i---* • ft - I.7U ft . • j. r

2S« ReqtAad Match t  I7.(7t »■. - c- ft * t- ft 17.S74 .» * "5 f;. ft •. ft . -.T- ...

TOTAL HUB FUUBSSALAHCE i  *7A*4 t » 1 17374 ft • 1  ./. * ft aa.'ie * .' <• * "

• «
-:-v '  -v ""SFY2024 7/1/23-7/31/23 -

TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SH ARE

Activity Nam* BUDGET •VTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Eqummenl >00 ft '-- ft ..'.'- -  *•;- * »- ft v »:. - *• ft ; ice ft

Seftwwt I:; l«l« »• • *• ' ft . ft .. . . ft 2314 ft ...

Sarvie** t; <2 *• '  - ft  - . • ft - - • ft - ft ft ; 42 ft . ft -

Persormal ).)2S »■- - • ft ... •V . »'•• ft ft -. ft .. >324 - ft .

Space and Oparaoona i  «»« ft : ... »- ft .* ft ft .-. ft : e»4 »• ft

Adrntrestration ft 182 ft r ft - . »•< »'• *••1 ft 162

2S» Requirad Matcn i.- ft ; I.B2S ft ; ft ; .:L«» ft * ft :' -* >'• ft - " >.-•
TOTAL HUB PUHOSAAUMCE •  r.aaz »  1. ft - ft 1.<2ft ft ft -.*- . • ft U>7 ft ft t'

TOTAL - 8/1/22-7/31/23*
* . TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE - - - BHS SHARE- -

Actlvtiy Nam* BUDGET TTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY -BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
EqUpmem ft IJOO •ft^ ft • ft : ft ^ $■ ft 1300 ft . •

Software ft 24,174 ft ft I  r. -. • ft .-- ft . * *.- • ft 24.174 1 .* ft ' •

Sorvicee I'l soo .»• •  • -t I'- ft •; -•.••• ft .-..- •■* ft - see ft .. * ft ".

Penonnal ft X.800 »: ft ■ ft 4'-, * ft X.ftOO S- ft

Space and Opcraiiena t; *.123 ft V J"r t  'r .• ft ft '. ft ! •: ft 4.124 I*- ft

Aominbiration *• i.eso ft »-* ft .' -• * 1.. . ft  ". . ft i.ftse ft " ' '

2S%RaqiimdMaKn ft lft.4» ft ■ft;, ft 1l.4*ft »- ft • ft

TOTAL HUB PUMBSAALAHCE 1  tft.S«ft ft ; • ft -/. ft ft .--'. ft . - * • ft 7«.M7 ft . ft

Total VWO Hatch

listhutc [or Community AOtncei
SS-20l9-eKS^-HMIS-01-AO«

Homeleu Manatement Infomation System

Contractorlnhlab:.

Fat* >0(4
l/J/Wl
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SFY20Z3 • 8/1/22-6/30/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST ■  CONTRACTOR SHAR^ ' BHSSHARE

AetMty Nama BUDGET YTD MONTNLY BUOGET YTO MONTHLY BUOGET YTO MONTHLY

Softumra S; 1M* *  I* »■- » • s S  >JS4 3

Pcrsoawai 3a.sr» 1 s  son 3

Spoc* and Opamerti 2joe »• a- S'J • t  2joa t - .3'*

AiSnH'kU'ttion »• t.aas 1. a. ' "" I.' 1- • • . • $  l.tTS 3 - • 3  •

26% R«qi.MM«tcf) S s2^ ». " : » S  I2.3» •  . *-• 3"

TOTAL Hits FUU0SAIA1JU40E SS.S04 »:• j. S  11.2M 1.- 1 47424 3  •

- V
•

SFY2024 • Vi/23-7/31/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

ActMiy Kama •- BUOGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Softwara »• aw . »•; »'.■ - • » V wa » 3

Peraorvtei iJUi s f • • ».'r S  }J2S 3

Spaca ana Oparaaom 200 » — ».*• . - s • ■ 2oe S i I.* . "■

AOmMsvatien t- ISO $ t • »• «  IM 3  -

2S« RaquirM Maicn 1.110 s  i.iia • - » *' 3 - 3.

TOTAL HUB FUUBisMALANCf: ».*4» s S  l.llt S-- ♦' r--- t  4J» 3

TOTAL - 8/1/22-7/31/23
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHS SHARE

Actlvftv Nama BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

Softwara. I apa ». i'" •Tr> »-• t i %  tjaa 3 -t 3

Personnel' % 20JCD S.r-- • «. yi- *: t  n.MO 3 3  - -

Spoeo one OperaOerts I 2.400 s>- - - »•-- t. - t. ■ It • • 1 --2,400 S ■ A- 3 -

AOminbsation S 1AJ1 »— %  lAli »-•

2S% Requraa Maxn s I3J90 t>. .  ■— t  - t  11.2W jr f. 3-- —

TOTAL HUD FUNOS/BAUNCE s tSwOaa » • -  '-Ctv I-.- •■f,' s  t>,m «_• »v' I  SI .*33 */- * 3  .5-.

TM»I WTO Mstch SI.IU

innltuie for Community AHUncet
SS-}0194HS<D-KMIS41-AfM

Homeless Manacemcm tnTormotlon SyUtm

Contractor tnWsIs: (5
Pate 2 o'4 l/)/202)
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0.ii»Uigr

•udgii Sheet Amendment W

tCA HMIS Program • Naahua

|cec Funds - NHOOJSlirooUl 14

1/oVaL Irb&iftAM cosV
SfY2023 ' e/l/22-6/?0/23

CONTRACTORSHARd BHS SHAkd'
MONTHLYYTO

ActMtyN«tn4 BUDGET

Eflufmert
SoRvwa

Penormal

BpaeaandOpfiBone

MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY eUOGET

• H

e.tl)

AdmMtlralion I -

2S« RaoukM
TOTAL HUOPUMBUBALANCe

S.J7I

IL.' Ajn

AcilvltY Namt
Equtomem

TOTAL PROGRAM COST

.  SfY2024 • 7/1/23-7/31/23
CONTRACTOR CHARE

BUDGET MONTHLY BUDGET MONTHLY

BHS SHARE

BUDGET

M»

l.4»

YTO MONTHLY

Paraonnal

Space and OperaMnt

AOminbtraden

2i% Reqtjirad Match
TOTAL HUB PUNBSfiALANCB t,l*>

'  TOTAL . 8/1/22-7/31/23
V6tal PROGRAM COST' CONTftACTCRSHARE .BffS SHARE

AclMty Nama BUDGET

1  144

YTO

»;•

MONTHLY

t

BUDGET

1

YTO

f •

MONTHLY

*  •

BUDGET

»".• tao

YTO

t •

MONTHLY

»

Sofhrare S  4.S74

t  17.100

t

S

t

,

t;

» :•

t'-

I-

S

t

1 ' 4.174

t  tr.toe I  •

i

1

S  IW • t. IM
•-

1  700 s • I  n'. 1. t • t 1  TOO t »

2$%Raakara4UaKh

TOTAL HUB PUUBWALAnce
»  yu»

I  U.U7

»

t

I' 1-- i.

$• •

t  S.tM

t  AIM

I

1 t  2>.ra

1 •' »

t

TeulwfOUauh 22.T3I

Imitiiite for Community Ailiincct

SS-20i9-eHS-03HMIS-01-A04

Homtlcu M*n*|emcnt Information Syuem

Ceniracior Inltialt:

Date
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Budjet Sheet Amerxlment M

ICA.HMtS

|yHDP Funds - NH0139Y1TD02000

SFY2023 - 10/1/22-6/30/23
e6HTH3CY5 Ŝ SHARK'

Activity Name BUDGET YTD .MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS ' S  M.682 5 * Sr- s  - . S  30.682 s .3 7' '

Administmtton S  1.514 s. r < S  1.534 ■f.'i 3.
25% Required Match S s  - 5 5 » S .3 - $  •
TOTAL HUD PUNOS/BALAMCE S  32.216 S  " • 5 S y- ■ s 5  32.216 3~- - -3

SFY2024 - 7/1/23-6/30/24
Y6YAL C6SY CoHTrtACYC RSHAR£ &HS SHARE

Activity Name BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY

HMIS S  40.909 5  ♦ " 5 5 $ - %  *.rr-r y  40.909 3*. S

Admintstrstion S  2.046 5" " " ■ >; j- ... . y  -■ *•: • • $  Z046 •3 • $•

25% Required Match _ $ 5, •• » ■■ •• 5 •- S  • •- .V y-: $  '

TOTAL HUD >-UND3/UALANCb $  42.9$S %  : $ S » i y • ■ y  42.955 % • • 3.

•  SFY2025 - 7/1/24-9/30/24
YOYAl COSY CONTILACTOR SHARE .Bi- S SHARE .

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

HMIS S  10.227 !»- ..;v -• . •• J_,. .$• * " S  10.227 3 »• • ■I" •

Administration 5  511 5 -j- 5 •* • y  • 5  511 5 S  ' '
25% Required Match . » y:--'. T . >• • $■ 5 ' . 5;. S.'r ■ * •

TOTAL HUO FUNOS/SALANCk S  lO.TM^ .1. V- s. $ y' - j- • S  10.738 .5 -

• TOTAL -10/1/22-9/30/24
YOYAl COSY CONTRACYCm SHARE bl- S SHARK

Activity Name BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
HMIS %  8iAie 5  ■ ■ "r $ • i ' - • V'' 5  ■ - S  81.816 s  ' 3  . -
Administnton .$ • 4.091 j " . - .• 5  -i- s  •' - 5 .5 5  4.091 3 • 3  • —

25% Required Match s 5  ; y  • • »: 'v-. '3 V ' -- • yv. •. 3

TOTAL HUD PUNDS/DALANCE S  <5.909. $  C-: s .5 • s  • S  85.909 .3 -... 3

Total W/0 Match 89,909

Institute fof Centmunity Alliances
SS-2019-BHHS-03-HMIS-01-A04

Homeless Manasement Information System

Contractor Initials

Page 4 of 4 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5A6113D7-7B97-4796-8025-86CE260AEE16

DocuSign Envelope ID: 700&8BF5-1C3M8PO-BCEC-65E622003810

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HDIVMJM SERVICES

DiVmON OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABIUTY

I» PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03J0I ^ ,
603-271.9474 }48^SS1034S EiL 9474

Ctriitlne L SaataoMIe Fai: 603-27MD0 TOO AcecJi: 1-S00-73M964 www.dbhs.nb.gev
AcseeUtcCenmUsloDcr ^

Decembers. 2021

Hie Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to amend an existing contract with Institute for Community Alliances (VC#301fl42-B001). .
Des Moines. lA, for the continued operation and maintenance of the New Hampshire Statewide
Homeless Management Information System, by exercising a renewal option by increasing the price
limitation by $625,446 from $793,917 to $1,419,363, and extendirig the completion date from July 31.
2022 to July 31, 2023 effective upon Govemor and ̂ Council approval. 50% Federal Funds. 50%-
General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 27, 2019, item #11,
amended on March 24, 2021, item #6. and most recently amended on July 14, 2021. item #8.

■  ' I

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds in the future operating budget, with the author^ to adjust budget line ltems within the price
limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,"if rweded and
Justified. .. .

; - See attached fl.sca! details.

EXPUNATION

The purpose of this request is -to continue operating the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (HMIS) through July 31. 2023. The U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD) provides the Department with a pre-approved list of qualified vendors
capable of performing the required operating and maintenance services for the Homeless
Management Information System (HMIS). Accordingly, the Department chose from one of HUD's pre-
screened vendors rather than attempt to create the system internally. There are no New Hampshire-
based vendors that are existing HMIS System Administrators, and the chosen Lead Agency is the"
only vendor offering irvstate technical support.

The web-based Hf^fllS is administered through federal regulations and a NH HMIS
Governance Charter thai all participating shelters and HUD funded prograrns are required to follow.
The Governance Charter defines responsibilities by all system users in actions that Include system
security, local system administration, and client confidentiality. The Institute for Community Alliances
la the only vendor funded for HMIS activities in New Hampshire and is structured consistent with the
centralized, statewide architecture developed under HUD guidance and adopted by the New
Hampshire Continuums in 2002.

Alternatives to contracting these services included utilizing funds from local community
organizations such as emergency homeless shelters to support this system. This type of approach
would result in a decentralized data system that could only be supported In regions able to accrue

77k DiporUtienlof Htclth ond Wumon Srwc«i'M«Mion u tojoifl ecmmunilut ond/ontUits
'inpnvidingopporluniliuforciiiunilOQChieit heoUho/uiiiultpendtnct. ■-
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His Excellency. Governor ChHtlopher T. Sununu
end the Honorabto Council

Pe0e 2 of 2

the necessary local funds for software and services. A second option was to build an in-house system
using New Hampshire Departmeht of Information Technology staff which, when considered, was
determined to require resources well beyond those available to the New Hampshire Department of
Information Techriology.

The web-based HMIS provides value to the Department through improved capacity to
measure the aspects of homelessness in New Hampshire, and improving the ability for local programs
that assist people who are homeless to maintain eligibility for continued federal funding. CollaterdI
project goals are to use HMIS software to improve housing service resource sharing, aulomated
eligibitrty determinations, and linkages to mainstream assistance programs for New Hampshire
homeless clients. An additional benefit Is the improved coordination of essential services and
supports that address and help alievidte homelessness.

/

Approximately eleven thousand (11.000) individuals will be served annually.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Section 2. Renewal, of the original contract, the parties have the
option to extend the agreement for up. to five (5) years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services,. available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services,for one (1) year of the thrw (3) years and 11
months available.

\  •

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request New Hampshire homeless
shelters, permanent and supportive housing, and outreach programs, which currently receive federal
funding, may not be able to utilize the federally mandated HMIS and,, therefore, may no longer be
eligible to receive that federal funding. This could impact the operational capacity of many community
programs supporting the homeless as well as possibly eliminating many fulMime jobs.

Area served; Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #14.267. FAIN # NH0011L1T002013,
NH0023L1T012013. NH0035L1T022013, Assistance Listing Numt)er #14.231 E-21-DC-33-0001

In the event that the Federal Funds becorne no longer available, additional General Funds will
not be requested to support this program. ' '

Res^ctfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05-9M2-423019.79270000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HH8: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING - SHELTER PROGRAM
100% Federal Funds

Stale Fiscal

Year
.Qasa / Account Class Title Job Numt>er Current Amount

increase

fOacraaso)
Revised Arrrount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for ProQ Svcs TBD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts lor Proo Svcs . TBD. $76,047.00 $0.00 $76,047.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Proo Svcs ... TBO $76,048.00 $0.00 $76,048.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs TBD $76,047.00 $0.00 $76,047.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD $6,337.00 $0.00 . $6,337.00

2023 074.500569 Grants (or Pub Assi orxt Rallsf TBO SC.OO $69,710.00 $86,710.00

2024 074-500589 Grants (or Pub Asst end Reiler TBD $0.00 $6,337.00 $8,337.00

Sub Total $234,479.00 $76,047.00 $310,526.00

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

1

Currant Amount
Increase

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019 10?-500731 Contracts for'Proo Svcs TBO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD $51,953.00 $0.00 $51,953.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD $51,954.00 10.00 $51,954.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts (or Proo Svcs TBO $51,953.00 $0.00 $51,953.00

2023 102-500731 • Contracts (or Proo Svcs TBO $4,329.00 $0.00 $4,329.00

2023 074-500569 Grants for Pub Asst and Reltaf TBO •  $0,00 $47,624.00 $47,624.00

2024 -  074-500589 Grants for Pub Asst and Reiiei . TBO $0.00 $4,329.00 $4,329.00

Sub Total $160,189.00 $51,953.00 $212,142.00

State Fiscal
Year ,

Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount
Increese -

(Decrease)
Revised Amount

2019. 102-500731 Contracts for Ptog Svcs TBO $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

2020 •  102-500731 Contracts (or Proo Svcs TBO - $12,474.00 SO.OO $12,474.00

2021 . 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs • TBO $12,474.00 $0.00 $12,474.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD $12,474.00 •  SO.OO $12,474.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBO $1,033.00 SO.OO $1,036.00

2023 074-500569 Grants for Pub Asst end Relief TBO $0.00 $11,436.00 $11,438.00

2024 074-500569 Grants for Pub Assi arxi Relief TBD $0.00 $1,038.00 $1,038.00

• Sub Toiai $38,460.00 $12,474.00 $50,034.00

State Rscal

Year
Oass / Account Class Title Job Numtwr

(

Current Amount
Increase

fOecrease)
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBO $39,570.00 SO.OO $39,570.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD $21,000.00 SO.OO $21,000.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs TBO $80,615.00 SO.OO $80,615.00

2022 074-500589 Grants (or Pub Assi and Relief TBO SO.OO $81,000.00 $61,000.00

2023 074-500589 • Grants (or Pub Asst and Relief TBD $0.00 $81,000.00 $81,000.00

Sub Total $141,185.00 $162,000.00 $303,185.00

Stale Fiscal
Year

Class / Account Class Title Jc^ Number Current Amount
Increase

fOoaeasel
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 • Contracts (or Prog Svcs TBD $0.00 SO.OO $0.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svcs TBD $109,802.00 SO.OO $109,602.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Proo Svcs TBD $109,802.00 SO.OO $109,802.00

2022- 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svcs TBD SO.OO $161,486.00 $161,466.00

2023 102-500731 • Contracts for Prog Svcs TBD $0.00 $161,466.00 $161,468.00

Sub Total $219,604.00 $322.972.W $542,576.00

Ovoroll Totol $793,917.00 $625,446.00 S1.419.363.M

SS-20l9-BHHS-03-HM)$-01-A03

Governor and Council Letter Atlachmenl

Financial Detail

Page i of 1
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Hazcn Dr.. Concord. NH 03301

Fax: 603-271.1516 TOD Access: 1-800.735.2964

www.nh.gov/doil

Denis Coulet

Commissioner

December 8,2021 ■

Lori A. Shibincttc, CommiesioncT

Department of Healih and Human Services
State of New Hampshire r,.
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibinclle:

t  ̂

This letter represents formal notification that the^ Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to amend an existing'coniract with Institute for Community Alliances
of, Dcs Moincs, LA as described below and referenced as DoU No. 2019-026C. .

The purpose of this request is to extend the contract with the Institute for Community
Alliances to continue contracted services requiredjfor the maintenance and o^raiion of the
New Hampshire Homeless Information System (HMIS) through July 31, 2023.

This amendment increases the Price Limitation bytS625,446, from $793,917 to $1,419,363,
and extends the completion date from July 31, 2022 to July.3l, 2023 upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. . .

, A copy of thisjetler should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval. : ' '

Sincerely,

Denis Goulet

DG/ik

DolT#20r9-026C

cc: Michael Williarns, IT Manager, DdIT

"InnovoUve Technologies Todayfor New Hampshire's Tomorrow"
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Homeless Management Information System contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("Stale" or "Department") and
Institute for Community Alliances ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on March 27.2019. (Item #11). as amended on March 24, 2021. (Item #6). and most recently
amended on July 14. 2021, (item #8) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums

"  specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Section 2.
Renewal the Contract may be amended upon'written agreement of the parlies and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or
' " modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parlies hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

July 31. 2023

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.0, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,419,363
t  •*

3. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment 2. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment,
Subsectionl.2.. Paragraph 1.2.1., to read: ^

1,2.1.. NH General Funds

Program Title: Slate Gant In Aid (SGIA). HMIS

-Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total: $542,576;

July 1. 2019-June 30. 2020: not lb exceed $109,602

July 1. 2020-June 30. 2021: nolloexc^d $109,802
July 1. 2021 -June 30. 2022: not to exceed $161,486

July 1,2022-June 30. 2023: nol to exceed $161,486

4. Modify Exhibit B. Amendment 2, Methods and Conditions Precedent lo Payment.
Subsection 1.2., Paragraph i.2.2.. to read: ■

1.2.2. Federal Funds

Assistance Listing Number 14.267

Federal Agency: HUD

Program Title: Continuum of Care Program (CoC), HMIS

Total Amount HMIS nol to exceed Sub Total: $573,602;

Julyl, 2019-July 31, 2019

August 1. 2019-July 31. 2020

August 1.2020-July31, 2021

August 1,2021 -July 31, 2022

August 1. 2022-July 31. 2023

not to exceed $11,706

not to exceed $140,474

not to exceed $140,474

not to exceed $140,474

not to exceed $140,474

eSS-2019-BHHS-03-HMIS-01-A03 Inslilute for Com/nunily AlliatKOS • Coniraclor lf\ltials
„  ■ ^ 12/10/2021

A-S-1.0 Page 1 of 4 Date
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Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMIS. Manchester:

HMIS: $205,482'

Administrative costs: $6.660

Total program amount: $212,142

Funds allocation'under this agreerhenl for CoC. HMIS. Nashua:

HMIS: $49,694

Administrative costs: $1.240

Total program amount: $50,934

Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC. HMIS. Balance of State:

HMIS: $302,563

»  * ■ Administrative costs: • $7.963

Total program amount: $310,526

5- Modify Exhibit B. Amendment 2, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.
Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.3.. to read: :

1.2.3. Federal Funds

Assistance Listing Number #: 14.231

FederalAgency: HUD

Program Title: Emergency Solutions Grant Program

Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total: $303,185;

July 1,2018-June 30, 2019

July 1. 2019-June 30,2020

July 1,2020- June 30, 2021

July 1.2021 -June 30. 2022

July 1,2022-June 30, 2023

not to exceed $39,750

not to exceed $21,000

not to exceed $80,615

not to exceed $81,000

not to exceed $81,000

6. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment 1. Methods and! Conditions Precedent to Payment,
■ Subseclion;1.2.4. to read:

1.2.4. Total amount HMIS not to exceed Grand Total: $1,419,363

7. Modify Exhibit B-l, Amendment 2, Expense Budget Detail, in its entirety and replace-with
■ Exhibit B-1. Amendment 3. Expense Budget Detail, which is attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein. .<. >

5SS-2019-BHHS-03-HM1S-01-A03 Instilule for Commuftily Alliances Contraclor Inliials
12/10/2021

A-S-1.0 Page 2 of 4 Dale
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written.below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/14/2021

Date Name'''^^i'^^"® santameiio
Title: Associate coiwBissioner

12/10/2021

Date

Institute for Community Alliar>ces

r75'^S?WVfa"Eberbach
Title: Executive"oi rector

SS-2019-BHHS-03-HMIS-01-A03

A-S-1.0

Institute (or Community Alliances

Pago 3 o( 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
.execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

12/16/2021 .1 J. /Ws(u(fL
Diti v-

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stele of New Harripshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

SS-26i9-0HHS-63-HMIS-O1-AO3 Institute for Community Alliances

A-S-1.0 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B-1, Amendment 3

Expense Budget Detail

State Fiscal Year 2019:

Experise Item Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Emergency Solutions Gran!
One-time ESG award

4/1/19-6/30/19 ■

$39,570 $0.00 $39,570 $9,893

Sub Total $39,570 $0,00 $39,570 $9,893

State Fiscal Year 2020:

Expense Mem Federal Funds
State Grant

In /Md Furids
Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant In Aid

7/1/19-6/30/20 $6.00 $109,802 $109,802 $27,451.

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/19-6/30/20

$21,000 ■ $0.00 $21,000 $5,250

Continuum of Care

Cne-time CoC award

7/1/19-7/31/19
$11,706 $0.00 ■ $11,706 $2,927

Contlnuum.ofCare

8/1/19-6/30/20
$128,768 $0.00 $128,768- $32,192

Sub Total $161,474 $109,802 $271,276 ■ $67,820

State Fiscal Year 2021:

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State'Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant-in Aid

7/1/20-6/30/21
$0.00 109,802 $109,802 $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/20-6/30/21

$80,615 $0.00 $80,615 $20,154

Conlinuum of Care

7/1/20-6/30/21
$140.'476 $0.00 $140,476 $36,010

Sub Total $221,091 $109,802 $330,893 * $83,615

State Fiscal Year 2022
y

•'

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/21 -6/30/22
$0.00 $161,486 $161,486 $0.00

Emergency Solutions Grant '
7/1/21 -6/30/22 ■ ^ ■

$81,000 $0;00 $81,000 - $0.00

Conlinuum of Care

7/1/21-6/30/22
$140,474 $0.00 $140,474 $36,090

Sub Total $221,474 $161,486 $382,960 r~ $56,090

Instltuto for Community AlHancos ExNbit B-1. Amendment 3 Conlrsctor Ir^liab:

S$-2019-eHS-03-MMIS-dl-A03 Pago 1 of \
12/10/2021 ■

Dale:'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B>1, Amendment 3

State Fiscal Year 2023

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid

7/1/22-6/30/23
$0.00 .  $161,486 $161,486 $0.00

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/22-6/30/23

$81,000 $0.00 .  $81,000 $0.00

Continuum of Care
7/1/22-7/31/22

$140,474 . $0.00 ; $140,474 $36,090

Sub Total $221,474 $161,486 $382,960 $36,090

State Fiscal Year 2024

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant'

in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Continuum of Care

7/1/23-7/31/23
$11,704 .  $0.00 $11,704 $3,007

Sub Total $11,704 $0 $11,704 $3,007

1

Grand Total. $876,787 .$W2.576 $1,419,363 $236,515

Insblute (or Community Aflianccs'

SS-2019-BHS^03-HMlS-Ol -AOa

Eihlbit B-l. Amendment 3

Pego 1 of 1

JT—Oi

Cont/Bdor Inlllals:^

Dale:
12/10/2021
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CTATE OP raw HAMPSHIRE

DEP^TMBNT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiON OF ECONOMIC A HOUSING STABILITY
Lflri ASMMocfto

Ceeaistoetr IH PL£ASAKTFTR£ET, CONCORD. NH 03)01
«Q3-ni'Ml4 l.eOO«SMMSCstM?4

ChrtidwL&aCisMW Fei:«a)')7t4U0 TDD Acctu: l^7)5-2M w««4)bkah.Mv
AnecUti Ceeotokwr

June 10. 2021

Hre ExceOency, Oovemof Cruletbpher T. Sununu
an4 the Honorable Council

Slete House

Conoord, New Hempshlre 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of He^h and Humar) Services, Division of Ecortomfc end
Houalno Stability, to amend an exrstiho contract wt^ Institute for Community Alliances
(VC0301842-6001). Des Molnes, (A for the operation and malntenanoe of the New Hampshire
Statewide Homeless Managemerrt Information Systelm, by exercising e contract renewal option
by Increasing the price limitation by $140,474 from ̂ 53.443 to-$7e3,917 and by extending the
completion date bom July 31. 2021 to July 31. 2022 effdctive August 1, 2021 or upon Oovemof
and CouncQ approval, whichever is later. 100% Federal Funds.

The oTiginal contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 27,2019. Hem 011
and most recently enr»cnded with Governor and Council approval on March 24.2021. Item" 06.

Funds ere anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Years 2022 end 2023 upon the
availabiitty end continued appropriation of funds in tha future operatirig budget, with the authority,
to adjust budget line Hams wHhin the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Offioe, If needed artd Justified.

See .attached fiscal detslla.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is to continue to secure contracted eervtoes requlred for tl^
operation of the New Hampshire Homeless Information System (HMIS) through July 31, 2022.
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) provides the Department with
e pre-epproved |i$t of qualified vendors capabte of performing the required operating end
maintenance services for the Homelesa Management -Irrformation System (HMIS) system.
' Accordingly, the Department chose from one of HUD'e pre-screened vendors rather than attempt

to create the system Internally. There are.no New Hampshire based vendors that are existing
HMIS System Administrators'. .

The web-basod HMIS Is reguleted through federal regulations and a NH HMIS
Govemence Charter that all participating shelters and HUD funded programs ere required to
follow. The Governance Charter defines responsibilities by all system users in actions that include
system security, local system administration, and dtsm oonftdenUality. The Bureau of Housing
Supports Is the HMjS lead for NH, and the Institute for Community Alliances Is the only vendor
funM for HMIS activities in New Hampshire and Is consistent with the cerrtralzed. .statewide
architecture developed under HUD guidance and adopted by the New Hampshire Continuums In
2002.

D*p6rimtnitlUio\th oaIT//umot Srrvua'Aficsi^n cem/hunifus oAd/enUin
.iA preiHding ep^/lujiilio for dtittm to aefuno htoUh end intUfitntUntt
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Kit EioeOency. Oovemor CMttophsr T. Sunwu
end the Honorable ComcS

Po0e3of2 .

Them *wre llmitod options for this servlco, which were vetted to dctcnmfne If they would
meet the needs of New Hampshlfe.The first was a, decentraliied approach, each shatter and
program would!»responsible for their own data system th^ would meet HUD requiremonts. This
W88 determlrwd to not be on option becauM of the cost to develop and manage multiple eystisms.
The second was developing this system In-house using New Hampshire Dorr staff, which when
considered it was determined that OolT dW not have the resources to create such a system.
The third option, which was chosen was to 90 with a HUD approved vendor and use their system.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Section 2. Reriawal. of the original contract, the parties have
the option to extend the agreement for up to five (S) years, contingent upon satisfectory delivery
of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and Courwii approval. The
Department, to exerctolng Its option to renew servloes for one (1) year of the four (4) years and
eleven (11 )Vnomh8 evallabto.

Should the Governor and Coundl not authortre this request New Hampshire homeless
Shelters, permartont and supportive housing, and outreach programs, which currently receive
federal funding, may not be able to utilize the federally mandated HMIS and. therefore, may no
longer be eligible to receive that federal funding. This could impact the operational .capadty of
many, community programs supporting the homeless as well es possibly elirninaling many full-
•timejobs.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: '

CFDA/M4.267 FAIN: NH0011L-1T002013

CFDA«14.267 FAIN; NH0023L1T012013

CFDA«14.267 FAIN: NH0035L1T022013

In the event that the Federal Funds become no tonger available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully subrnltted.

Lori A. Shiblnette
Commissioner
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department OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

. FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

05.95-<2-42)QtO.79270b00 HEALTH ANO.SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS 6 HOUSING. HOUSING • SHELTER PROGRAM
100% Federel Funds

SWd Fcscol Ctass/Acoouni Class TUa Job Number Current Amount
trvcrease

fOecreesal
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts lot Proa Swcs TBD $0.00 $0.00 SO.OO

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs •TBO $76,047.00 $0.00 $76,047.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Sncs TBD $76 04B.00 $0.00 $76,048.00

2022 102.500731 Conlrecis for ProQ S««S TBD $6,337.00 $69 710.00 $76,046.00

7020 in7.M)0731 Ceniracit for PrtM Sncs TBO $0.00 S6.337.00 $6 337.00

Sub Total $158432.00 $76,047.00 $234,479.00

Slate Fbcel

Yesr
Class 1 Account Class TWO Job Number Cunani Amount

bcreaaa'

(Oocreasal ■
Ravfoad Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo S>cs . TBO -  $0.00 •  $0.00 SO.OO

2020- 102-500731 Conlrocts for Proo Svca TBO $51 953.00 .  $0.00 $51,953.00

2021 102-500731 Coniraas for Proo Sncs TBO $51,954.00 $0.00 $51,954.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs T60 X $4,329.00 $47,624.00 $51,953.00

2023 102-500731 Contracts tor Proo Svcs* TBD $0.00 $4,329.00 $4,329.00

Sub Total $108,236.00 551.953.00 $160,169.00

.. ..

SiAte Flscoi
Yftfir

Ctus / Account Class TUle Job Number Current Amount
'  inaeasa

(Decraasal
Revised Amouni

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD $0.00 $0.00 10.00

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBO $12,474.00 $0.00 $12,474.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBD $12,474.00 $0.00 $12,474.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svca *  TBO $1,038.00 $11,436.00 $12,474.00

2023 102-500731 Corliracis for Proo Svcs TBO • $0.00 $1,038.00 $1,038.00

Sub Total 1 $25986.00 512.474.00 $36,460.00

1  . • •

Stale Fbca)

Yesr
Cl»i/Accounl Class TiUe • Job Number Current Amount

iTKreaso,
-fOecreasei'

Revised Amouni

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBO S39.S70.00 so.oo $39,570.00

2020 .102-500731 Contracts tor Proo Svcs TBO $21,000.00 so.oo $21,000.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBO •  $80,615.00 so.oo $80,615.00

2022 102-500731 Contracts (or Prtxi Svcs TBD $0.00 so.oo .  SO.OO

2023 102-500731 CcrtUBCts for Proo Svcs TBD . $0.00 .  so.oo 10.00

Sub Total $141,185.00 so.oo S141.185.00

State Fiscei

Year
Class 1 Account Class Tide Job Number Current Arnouni

Increaso

fOecreasoi .
Revised Amount

2019 102-500731 : Coniracts for Proo Svcs . TBO SO.OO $0.00 SO.OO

2020 102-500731 Conlracts for Proo Svo TBO " $109,602.00 SO.OO . $109,802.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svcs TBO $109,802.00 $0.00 $109,802.00

2022 102-500731 Conlracts for Proo Svcs . TBO SO.OO • SO.OO SO.OO

2023 102-5OO731 Conlracts for Proo Svcs TBD $0.00 so.oo $0.00

Sub Total $219,604.00 SO.OO $219,604.00

OvorallTotsI} $6S3.443.dO| Sl4D.474.(X)| $793.9U.00|

Governor and Council Icile^ Attachment

.  . financial Detail

Paje 1 of 2 •
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMEMT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

37 Haxcn Dr.. Concord. NH 03301 .

Fa*-. 603-271O516 TOD Accc»: 1 •600-735-39M

www.nh.gov/doit ;

Denis Coulct

CofiniUsioiier " •

.  - " June )8.2021 .

Lori A. Shibineiie. CommiMioncr
Dcponnieni of Heolih and Humon Services
Sinic of New Hampshire

'  129 Pleasant Slrcei

.Concord, NH 03301. .• ■ .

Dear Commissioner Shibincil.e: ■ . '

This Icitcr rcprcscnis formal noiificailon ihal Ihe Dcparimeni of Infoniiaiion Technology (DolT)
has approved your ageiky's requesi to amend an exisiingicontraci with Insiiiuie for Communiiy Alliances
of, Des Moincs, lA as-described.below and refercnccd.aj DolT No. 20l9r026B. ■

The purpose of this request is to extend the contract with the Insiirutc for Community
Alliances to continue contracted services required for the mainteriance and operation of the
New Hampshire Homeless Informajion Sysiem (HMIS) thrcqgh July 31, 2022.

This omcndmcni increases the Price Limitation by $140,474 from $653,443 to $793,917
and cxicnds thc cortiplciion dale from July 31, 2021 to July 31, 2022 upon GOvemor and
Council opproval.

A copy of this letter should accothpany the Deparimcnt of Health and Human ScfN'ices' submission
10 the Governor nnd Executive Council for approval.

s  . , Sincerely.

■f.-.

>  Denis Goulei
■i-

DG/ik
DolT #2019-0268
ce: Michael Williatm, IT Manager, DolT

N

'innovotivt Tecbnologlet Todoy for NfwHampshire's Tomorfow'
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health.and Human Services

Amendments $•.

This Amendment to the Homeless Managemeni Information System contract is by and between the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Institute for
Community ADiances ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the 'Contracr) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 27,2019. (Item #t1). as amended on March 24. 2021, (item ittS). the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specined: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph id.'and Exhibit C-t. "Section 2.
Renewal the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from (he
Governor and Executive Council; and

whereas, the parties Bgme to extend the term of the agreement, Increase (he price limliation. or modify
the scope of services to support contlnued.delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in corisideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In (he Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

:i. Form P'37 General FTovisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

July3.1.2022. '

. 2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.0. Price Limitation, to read:

$793,917 V .

'  3. Modify Exhibit 8. Amendment 1, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Subsection
1.2.3, to read: " '

1.2.3. Federal Funds

CFDAff: 14.267
i.

Federal Agency: HUD

.  ProgramTitle: Corrtinuum of Care Program,(GoC). HMIS

TolarAmounl HMIS not to exceed Sub Total: $433,128;

July 1, 2019-July31, 2019: noltoexceed $11,706

August 1. 2019-July 31, 2020: r^ottoexceed .$140,474

August.!, 2020-July 31, 2021; notloexceed $140,474

August 1. 2021 -July 31,2022; notloexceed $140,474

..r Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMlS, Manchester:

HMIS: $155,160

Administrative costs: $5.029 .

Total program amount: $160,189 . ' • " 'v

Funds allocation under.thls agreement for CoC, HMIS, Nashua:

HMIS: $37,524

Administrative costs: . $936

Total program amount: $38,460 ' . ■ o
Funds allocation urxter this agreement for CbC. HMIS, Balance of State:
HMIS: $226,466 r

Administrative costs: $6.013

SS-2019-6HHS-03-HMI$O1 •AQ2 Instiluie (or Comrhur^iiy AlUartces Contractor Initials
■  . ^ 6/18/20n

AS-i.O L PaBOlof4 Date

f."
t:«u VI ■
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Total program omounl: $234,479

4.. Modify Exhibii 0. Ameodmeni 1, Methods and Condiiicns Precedeniio Payment. Subsection •
1.2.4. to read:

1.2.4. Total amount HMIS not to exceed Grand Total: $793,917

5. Modify Exhibit 8-1, Amendment 1. Expense Budget Detail, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit
B-1. Amendment 2. Expense Budget Detail which is attached hereto and ir>corpor3ted by reference
herein.

SS-20l9*BHHS*03-HMI5-ei-A02 Inslltuto for Communily ADiencos

AS-1.0 P«9d2of4

Conlrsclor Inilials^^
ETIBTTTJTT

Dale
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All terms and condilions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective August -1. 2021. subject to Governor and
Execullye Council approval. .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
. Department of Heallb and Hunian Services

6/27/2021

Date Namr*^^**^^ Sanianiei 10
Title: Associate comraissicner

6/18/2021

Date

Institute for Community Alliances

Name:'"""' ^
Title: Executive Director

SS-20t9-BHHS-O3HMlS-0i-A02

A-S-1.0

Insliluto for Communily AtHencos

Pegoioia
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The precedir>g Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

6/28/2021

Date
j»jg^0 "CatVreMne Pinos
Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoirvg Amendment was approved by the Goverrtor and Executive Council of
(he State of Now.Hampshlre al the Meeting on: ; (dele of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title;-

./

SS.2019-9HHS-03-HMIS-01-A02

A-S-1.0

Institute lof Comnnunliy Aiiiences

Page 4 ol'4
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New Hampshire Oeparlment of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management |nformaiioh System

Exhibit B'1, Amendment 2

Expense Budget Detail

Fiscal Year 2019; ! 1

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal ■

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Emergency Solutions Grant
One-time ESG award
4/lh9-6/30/19

. $39,570 $0.00 ■  $39,570
. ♦

$9,893

Sub Total . ; -■ $39,570 $0.00 $39,570 .. $9,893 '

State Fiscal Year 2020;

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant .

in Aid Funds
Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Slate Grant in Aid
7/1/19-6/30/20 $0.00 $109,802. $109,802 ,  $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/19-6/30/20

$21,000 'so.oo $21,000 $5,250

Continuum of Care
One-lime CoC award
7/1/19-7/31/19

$11,706 .  - $0.00 $11706 $2,927

Continuum of .Care
8/1/19-6/30/20

■  $128,768 ■$0.00 $128,768 $52,192 .

- Sub Total $16,1.474 . $109,802 $271,276 $67,820

Statft Fiscal Year 2021:

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant-

In Aid Funds'
Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Stale Grant in Aid
7/1/20-6/30/21

$0.00 109.802- - $109,602
V'

$27,451

Ernergency Solutions Grant
7/1/20-6/30/21 ■

*. $80,615 $0.00 $80,615 $20,154

Continuum of Care
7/1/20-.6/30/21 ■

$140,476 . $0.00 . $140,476 $36,010

Sub Total $221,091 $109,802 $330,893 $83,615

State Fiscal Year 2022 .
•

Expense Item Federal Funds
' State Grant
in Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal
Year Budget

Vendor Match

State Grant in Aid
7/1/21-6/30/22

$0..00 $0.00 $0.00 . $0.00

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/21-6/30/22

$0.00 $0.00 ,$0.00 $0.00

Continuum of Care
7/1/21 -6/30/22 . ..r-

$140,474 $0.00 $140>74 $36,090

Sub Total , $140,474. $0.00 $140,474 [ ^.090 .
tntlitute for ConvT)ur^fly Ain^ncei

SS-20ieBH$^3.HMlSei'.A02. Pope left Oflle:
6/18/2021
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B-1, Amendment 2

State Fiscal Year 2023

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal-
Year Budaet

Vendor Match

State Grant'ih Aid
7/1/22-6/30/23

$0.00 $0-.Q0 $0.00 $0.00"

Emergency-Solutions Grant
7/1/22-6/30/23

$0.00 - $0.00 $0.00 "  $0.00

Continuum of Care
7/1/22-7/31/22

$11,704 $0.00 - $11,704 $3,007

Sub Total $11,704 ■  $0.00 $11,704 $3,007

.,

Grand Total $574,313 $219,604 $793,917 ' $200,425 .

tnsUiulo (or Community AlUincet

S&-20)9-6HS^}3-HM1S-01-A02 .

Eititbii 6-1..Amentfmon( 2

Page i ol i

ConlmdorlnlUalt:.

Dale: ■
6/18/2021
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CTATC OF NEW HAMPSHOU:

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DmStON or Ea>NOMtC& housing STABIim

tlfPieASAKT STREET. CONCORD. NH OTMI
My}TI.»474 l-e0D492O)4SEBLMT4

Fai:M3.]7Ml30 TOO Ac«ti: 140&.7iS-2M4 w«w.dbKj.elt.te*

March S, 2021

Cxconertcy, Oovemor Chnsloph«r T. Sununu
end the Honereble Cdundi

State House

Concord. New Ha/tipshire 03.301 ■*

REQUESTEb ACTION

Authortze.the Department of Health end Hurnan Services, Division of Economicend Housing
Stability; to enter Into e Retroectlvo Sole Source amendment to en existing contract wHh Institute
for Community Aliiences (Vendor ■M018d2-B001), Dea Moines. lA. for the operation and
maintenance of the New Hampshire Statewide. Homeless Management Ihformalion System, by
exercising a oontrect renewal o^lon by increasing the pnoe limitation by $20.0.089 from $453,354 to

"$053,443 end extending the completion date from June 30, 2021 to July 31, 2021 upon Governor
and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March ?7.2019. llemDII.
Funds are avalieblo in ihe following accounts^for state Fiscal Year 2021, and are anticipated

to t>e available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon.the availability and continued appfopriatlon of furids
,jn the fuVeoR®ialin9bydoet..jMthjh§euth9i1fy to adiuslbudget.lin^hemswtmin the. price limitation
and encumbrances betsveen state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.
.0&-95^2-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUlVIAN
SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM;

State
Flecal
Year

Class/
Account Class Title

Job i
Number j Currerit

Budget

Increased
(Decreased)

Amount

..Revised
Budget

2019 102-500731
Contracta for
Prograrn
Services

1

42309315 $39,570 $39,570

2020
r;

102-5(W731
Contracts for
Program
Services

42309319, $21,000 ■ so'" $21,000

2021 102-500731
Contracts for
Program
Services

42309324 $21,000 $59,615 580,615

" Subtotel $8f,5ro I59.6f5 Ifdf.tW

TTm DtpoitatnloJHcQl\h and Huntcn Strviett'Miulen tito/oin nrnmunltUi o>>d fomilia
in pnv'dirig ofip^tuiUiti fv (oorAui* and tndtptndtnci.
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OS-9S-42423010-r927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
8VCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS A HOUSINO, HOUSINO- SHELTER PRQQRAM;

Stote
Fiscal
Year

Claas f
Account

ClaaaTHJe
Job

Number

Current

•  Budget

Increaaad

(Oecreaead)
Amount

RSvleed

Budget

2020 ,102-900731 Ccntrects for

Prog 6vc
42307308 $140,474 $0 $140,474

•2021 102-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
42307306 51V.706 V28.770 ■  $140,476

. 2022 162-500731 Contracts for

Prog Svc
42307310 •  $0 $11,704 $11,704

Subtotol sisim $14C,474 $292,654

OS-9B«42<423O10'792r HEALTH ANO SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS. HHS: HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM;

Stata

Flecal
Year

Claee f

Account
CtavB Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

•Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Reviaed

. Budget

2020 102-500731 Conlrects for

■ Prog Svc
42307020 ■-$109,802 $0 sipg.802

2021 •102-500731 Contracts for
Prog Svc 42307020 $109,802 $0 $109,802

2022 102-500731 Contracts foi
Prog Svc

■  — $0 ' so

Subfofo/ $219,654 $0 $219,604

■•••' > ...
Total. $453,354^ .  $200,089 $653,443

Vn-'

EXPLANATION ,
I  " r.;

This request is SoM Source because the co'ntred was onginalty approved as eole uurce
end MOP ISO requires any subsequent amendments to be labeled as sole source. Additionally,
based on the eppilcalion evaluation process, the U.S. Oepartmeni of Housing end Urban
Development (HUD) provides the Oepariment a detailed list of quallficationa required of an HMIS
system. There is a finite number of HMIS egendos that meet those qualifications, and the
Department cHoae from existing vendorB ralher than attempt to create the system internally. Air
Continuum of Care grants are ranKed and ecored through the CoC Program Application competitive
process. Ths HMIS grant wos included In the Tier 1 renldrtg.

This request is Retroactive because the original contract did not include sufficient funding
for Slate Fiscal Year 2.021. This was due to the feet that.the original HUO award included an Incorrect
end date of June 30. 2021. which was Ister corrected by HUO. but only after the Governor end
Council approved the originat DHHS conlract on March 77. 2019 which included.June 30. 2021 as
en end date to align with the Federal award. Con^uenlly, the oHginai conirect only had funding

' available for State Fiscal Years 2019 Snd 2020. The Oepartmeni received fi nal of the three additlona)
award lett.ers for additional funding for Stele Fiscal Years 2021 and 2022 on July 17, 2020. These
awards were delayed bamg released by HUD due. to the Impact of COVlD-19 on that



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5A6113D7-7B97^796-8025-86CE260AEE16

OocuSIgn Envelope ID; 7O05dBF5-1C3d-48F0-6CEC-65EB220O3610

Ki9 Ejcodiency. Covemo/Cfirtstop^er T. Sumrui ,
end the HonoraM Coindl

Pego 5 of J

ogency. Unfortuhetety, the Oeparlment reoe^ed the ewsrds at a point vvtien it was (mmereed In
(helmmedlsteC0VlC^19 etatewide response. Additioneily. It is not atypical for DHHS to recaiye
HUO awards after the grant etert date; wlHich complicates (he contracting process.

The purpose of this request is to continue to secure contracted eervtces required for the
operation of the New Hampshire Homeless Iriformetion Syetem (HMIS) through Juty 31, 2021.

.  The Naw -Hampshlm Department of information Technolopy (OolT].-has reviewed (he.
proposed contract tf2010-026. as posted on July 19. 2018, and has'issu^ a OolT approval letter.
which is included with this agreement'padtage. The wep^ased HMis is regulated through policies
end procedures that ail participating shelters and progrems are requred to fellow. The policies and
procedures define responslbilrties by all system users in actions that Include eystem security, local
system administreilpn. end client confldentlslity. This is the only HMIS project fur>ded by HUO In
New Hampshire and is consistent with the centralized, etatewkle architecture develojped Or>der HUO
guidance and adopted by the New Hampshire Corttinuums in 2002.

There ere limited options forlhis service, which we're vetted end determined tt)'at they would
meet the needs of New Hampshire. The first Is a decentralized approach .would be for each sheller
to do (his Independently. This Is not the preferred method because this decentralized data eystem
would be supported in regions that- have the finandal resources and ability to manage such an

■ Information technology ayelem. The second is ^veloping this eystem in*house using New
Hampshire OolT staff. When considered, it ̂ s determined that the DolT (ached the resources to
create such a eyslem.' . '

As referenced In Exhibit C-1, Section 2. Ren'ewel. of the orrg'inal coritrect. the parlies have •
the option to extend the agreement for up to one ($)|year8. contingent upon satisfactory delivery of '
seArices, available funding, agreement ol the parties end Governor ar)d Counti) approval. The
Department is exercising Ms bpiion lo renew senrices for one (1) month of the ftve (S) years available
for renewal.

Should the Governor and Executive Council'determlne'not to appro^ this request, New
Hampshire, hbrneless ehalters; permanent and supportive housing, end outreach programs, wtvlch
cu.rrently receive federal funding, may nol be able | to utilize the federally mandated HMIS end,
therefore, may r>o longer be eligible to receive that federal funding. This could impact the operstional
capacrty of many community programs supporting the' homeiess as well as possibly enmlnating many
ful^llmejob5.^

Area served: Statewide

Source of. Funds:

CFDA#14.267FAIN:NHP01L1T0019I2

• CFDAff14.267FAIN:NH0023L1T011900

CF0A#14.267 FAIN: NH0035L1T621912

In the eyeni (hat the Federal Funds becorr^e no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shtblnette

Commissionef
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMEf^ OF INFORMAnON TECHNQLOCY

27 Haten Dr., Concord. NH 03307

Fai: 603-271OS16 TDOAixcu:1-aOO-73S-296e
• wwvv.nh.gov/dail

Ocnh Coulet -

Comntiuhntr ; *

.  . Janunry 28,2021 • -

Lori A. Shibineiie, Comirwiiioncf
OepaRn)eni or Heelih end Human Services
Sine of New Harnpshire
129 Pteasam Street , • .

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Shibmctic: ' •
•  ,V

•  This letter represents fonnel noiificaiion that the Ocparimcf>t of Information Technology (OpiT)
has approved your agency's request to amend en existing Sole Source contract with Institute for
Community Alliances of, Dcs Moincs, lA as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2019-026A.

The purpose of this ngrctment is for thc'continucd opcraiions. siippon, and maintenance -
of the web-based Homeless Management Infoniuiion System (HMIS). ' '

The funding amount for this amcodincni is S20P,089, increasing thc-currcm contract from
W53.354 to 5653,443 and by extending the completion date to July 31, 2021 froth the
original completion daicof Jync 30, 2021. This nmcndmcni shall becoirK effective upon
CovemorandCxcculivcCouncilapprovol throughJuly3l.202l. •

A copy of this letter should accompany the Ocparimcni of Health and Human Services'submission
to the Governor end txccuiivc Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Ooulci

OC/kof-

OoIT 02OI9 O26A

RID; N/A ' v '
cc; Michael Wlliipms, IT Manager. DolT

"/nnovor/Ve fechno/opiet To^oy/of New Hompthire'f Tomouow"
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New Hampshire Oepar^ment of Health and Human Services
.  Homeless Management-Information System

Slaio.of New Hampshire . . •
Department of Health end Human Services

Amendment 01 to the Homeless Management Information System

This 1" Amendment to (he Homeless Management Inrormation System contract (hereinafier referred to
as 'Amendment 01') is by and t>etween the State of New Hampshire. Oepartment of Heatlh artd Human
' Services (hereinafter referred to as the *Siate' or 'Oepartmenl') and tnstiiuie for Community Alliance,
(hereinafter referred to as 'the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation.wiih a place of business at 1111 9*^
Street. Suite SaO. Oca Moin'es. lA S0314.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the 'Conlracr) approved by (he Governor arxf Executive Council
on March il, 2019, (item 011). the Contraclor agreed to perform certain senrices based upon the terms
and conditions specined in the Contract and in consideration of cenain sums specined; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P*37, General Prbvislohs..Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-l; Section 2,
Renewal, the Contract may .be a'mended-upon written egreemehi of the parties and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council; and '

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreemenl, tncrease the price limitation Id support ■
continued delivery of these services;'and:

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of (he foregoing and the mutual covenants and cpndit'ions contained
' In the Contract and sei forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follov/s;

1. Form P-37 Ger^eral Provisions, Block t .7. Completion Dale. Id read:

July 31. 2021. ;■

2, Form P-375 (General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limilalion, to read:

■  $653,W3.
' 3. Modify Exhibit B. Methods and Condil'ions Precedent (p Payment; in Its entirety ar^f replace v^Hth

Exhibit B, Amendment l.-Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, which is attached hereto.
and Incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit 8-1, Expense Budget Detail for Slate Fiscal Years'for 2019, 202() & 2021 in Its
' entirety end replace with Exhibit B. Amendment 1, E^xpense Budge.t Detail, which Is dltached hereto

ar>d incorporated by reference herein.

r«adalslInsliiuleforCcmmvnHyAliBnces AmendmcAlfil Conlrsclor

SS-2Ol9BHHS-O3 HMIS-0t A0t PegOoia Daia 7/1/7071
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

All terms end conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment
remain in full force and effect. This amen'dmani shad be'effective upon the date of Governor and Executive
Council approval. •. ^

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set thetr hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
. Oepanment of Health end Human'Services

2/10/2021

Date
Saniaflielrd

Tiiie: Oirtcter

Institute for Community Alliances

2/1/2021

Date

tU'JUd

Title:' £xefotSv« oireccor

OMwUtAMWr.

Irtsiituie for Commvniiy AlDdnccs

SS-2019-BHHS-03HMIS0 >-A01

AmendiDoni 01

Pago 2 ot 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System.'

The preceding Amendment, having t)een^ev}ewed by this office. Is approved as io form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

2/11/2021 Tm-
ftnSTDate , V '' * ' NamBf'

Title: ■ Attorney

I hereby ce/iify that the foregoInQ Amendment was approved by the Governor end Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: : (dale of meeting) .

'  : OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale " Name:

Title:

. 1 Cyl-;.

r.

InsiUulO for Communliy Alliances Amendn>enl 01

SS'20l9-aHHS-03-HMlS-0VA01 t. ' PegoDolS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit B, Amendment 1

Method and Conditions Precedent to PavmenI

1. Homeless Management Information System (HMIS):

1.1. The Slate shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Stock 1.8, Price
Limiialion for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.'

1.2. This contract is funded with 34% general funds and 66% federal funds as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Funds

Program Tille: Slal'e Grant In Aid (SGIA).'HMIS
Total Amount HMlS nol to exceed' Sub Total: . $219,604;

July 1,2019-June 30.2020 not to exceed: S109.802 ■

July 1,2020-June30.2021 nolioexceed:. $109,802 '

1.2.2. Federal Funds

CFDA«; 14.231 .

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Oevelopment (HUD)

;  Program Tide: Emergency Solutions Grant Pr.ograrh (ESG). HMIS

Total Amourit HMIS riol to exceed Sub Total: -.$141,185;

Aprill. 2019-June 30. 2019 nol to exceed: $39,570-

July 1.2019-JuneSO, 2020 noitoexceed: $21,000 '

July 1,2020-June30.2D21 nottoexceed: $80,615

■  I ' T'" ■ ■■ ■ i . ■■ I ■ *' ,

1.2.3. Federal Funds-

CFOA«: ■ 14.267

Federal-^ency: HUD * '

Program Tille: ' Continuum ol Care Program (CoC)/HMlS . . "

Tola) Amount HMIS nol to exceed Sub Total; $292,654;

July 1,2019-July 31,2019: notloexceed $1.1,706

August 1,2019-July 31', 2020; noitoexceed $140,474-

August!. 2020-July 31,2021; nolloexceed $140,474 't
Funds allocation under this agreement for CoC, HMIS. Manchester: > i.., ' * '

HMIS;. ■ $104,838 ■ ./r
Administrative costs: $3.398 •

Total program amount: $108,236

Funds allocatlon'under Ihls agreement for CoC, HMIS. Nashua:

HMIS: $25,354

"Administrative cosis: . $632
Total prograrhamouni: $25,986
Funds allocation under this.agreement for CoC, HMIS, Balance of State:

HMIS: $154,369

Administrative costs; $4.063

Total program amount: $158,432

1.2.4. Total amount HMIS not to exceed Grand Total: p"" $653,443
oe .

IraOhXe lor CcnvnurUy AXUncoi CsNWt Q. A/nondmonI t Contrsclor Irv'tUU.
V

S5.?0J9-BMSO3-HMlSO> -• PipoloT^ . Doio
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services-

Homeless Management Information System

Exhibit 6, Amendment 1

1.3.. The Coniraclor.sgfees 10 provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service rn compliance vwih
funding requirements Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded
Contractor's cunent and/or'future funding.'

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the. Project Acliviiies. the Contractor covenants and agr^s to
"submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Pineneiel Report: The Audited Financifll Report shall be prepared in eccordance wtlh'
2CFRpar1 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of (he audiied financial repon within thirty (30) days ol the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NHDHHS

^  ■ Bureau.of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

2.2. .Conformance to 2 CFR part 200:'Gran( funds are to be used only In accordance with procedures,
requirements, "end principles specified in 2 CFR part'200.

2:3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the requir'emenls of 2 CFR part 200. Ihc Contractor.shell submit
one (1) topy of an audited fmartciai report lo the Oepartmeni utilizing the guidelines set forth by .
' the Comptrotler General of the United Slates in "Standards f.or Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions.* within ninety (90) days after contraci
^completion dale.

3. Project Costs; Payment of Project Costs; ReyleW by the State:

3.1. ■ Project Costs: As used ih this Agreement, the term 'Prt^eci Costs* shall mean" all expenses
directly or Indirectly Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of (he Project-Activities, as

j-'' determined by the Stale lo be eligible end allowable for paymenl in accordance with PubHc t^w
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth In 2 CFR part 200 as revised from lime to
lime and with the rules, regulalions. and guidelines established by (he Stale. Nonprpfii-
subconlractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3-2. Payment of Project Costs: Subject lo the General Provisions of this Agreement and In
consideration of the satisfactory comptelion of the services to be performed ur>der this
Agreement In accordance with the Continuum of Care Program Regulations, published at '24
CFR Part 578. the State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for ectual,.
eligible expenditures Incurred In the fulfillment of this agreement. Eligible axpendllures sKatl be
In accordance wiih the approved line item not to exceed an amount as specified in this Exhibit,
and defined by HUD under the provisions of P.L." 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.3. Match Funds: . ,

3.3.1. The Coniracior shall provide sufficient matching funds, as-required by HUD regulations
■ and policies described in 24 CFR" 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements must bo documented vviih each-payment request. -

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grantJunds. except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or In-kln'd contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart 0 of 24 CFR 578.
The Coniracior shall:

iiim Ih)auior9fConynunlr)rAii*riC0S EiNbn'B,/Vrwtfmon)'f Conl^clo'l/diiU)

ss-jms-BMS-oj-Huis-oi pao»z«I4 dm, 7/1/20U
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New Hampshire Oeparlmerit of Health and Human Services
Homolcss Management Information System

Exhibit B. Amendment 1

' 3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of coniribulions made to eeitsfy the
• matchrequiremeniln"24CFR 578.73;
^  ,

■' 3.3.3.2. Ensure records'indicate the "grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counied;

3.3.3.3. .Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values.of third
party In-kirtd coniributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. _ Ensu(e records iiKiude. to the extent feasible, volunteer, services that, are
supported by (he sbme'methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs. . •

3.4. Schedule of Payments: Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shell be submitted by the
fifteenth (15) of each month for the previous monih and accompanied by an invoice from the
Contracior.for'ihe amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
or required source documentation as designated by the Stale, which shall be completed and
signed by the Contractor. Invoices shan be submined promptly to the address listed above in
scclion 2.1.2. Exhibit 8.

V" ^ •.

3.5. In lieu of hard copies, ell Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature pnd emailed to:
housinQSuQDOf1sihvoiCBS@dhhs.nh.Gov

3.6. The Contractor shall keep records-of Iheir bcliviiies related to Department programs and
services, and shall provide such records and any additional financial informallon if requested by
the State lo veriiy expenses:

3.7. The Stale shall rinake payrnent to the Coniraclor within thirty (30) days of receipl of each Invoice,
subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient funds are available.

3.6. The Cohiractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department programs and
services, and shall provide additional Hnanclat Informallon if requested by the Stale to venfy
expenses. • • •

3.9. Review of the.State Disallowance of Costs; A| any time during the "pertormance of the Services,
and upon receipt of ihe Arytuai Pertormance Report. Terminaiion Rispon or Audiled Finaricial
Report, the Slate may.review all Project Costs'Incurred by the Contractor and all payments
made to date. Upon such review, the Stale shall disallow any Hems of expenses thai are not
determined to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall,
by written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures. Informing the Contractor of any such
disallowance, if the State disallows cosis for which paymeni has not yet been rriade. II shall
refuse to pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement
are subject to recapture. The funds auihorlxed to be experided under this Agreement shall be
used only for services of the Homeless Management (nformaiion System Project and
administration provided by (he Conlrktor for (he projecl period and operalmg years of the'
Continuum of Care Program as approved by HUD and In accordance with the Continuum of

• Care Program Regulations, published 8124 CFR Part 576.
3.10. Payments may be wiihheld pending receipl of required reports or documentation as Ideniiried In

- Exhibit A, Scope of Services and In (his Exhibit 8. '

3.11. NotwHhstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
agreement may be withhejd. In vyhoie or In part, in the event of noh-complianc© with ariy Federal-
or Slate law. rule or regulation .applicable to the services provided, or if the said services or
products have not been satisfactorily compleled in accordance with Ihe terms and conditions of *
this agreement.

D£
lntil(uls lorCcyrmuViy AXbncot CtftldCie. >Vn|/)d^nl'l C^rsctoi

SS-70»9-eMS-03-HMiS-0l Page 3 A 4 '
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New Mampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Hpmeiess Management Information System

Exhibit 6, Amendment 1

4. Use of Grant Funds:

'4.1 . Notv^lhslanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P'37. changes limited'to adjusting
amounts behveen budget line ilerhs. related items, amendments of related budget, exhibits within
the price Gmilallon. and to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by wrinen agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of Ihe
Governor and Executive Couno'i If needed and justified.

4.2 .Conformance to 2 CFP pad 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements. ar>d principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

4.3 Conformance to 24 CFR 576.107: Emergency Solutions Gram funds ore to be used only In
accordanco wiih'HMlS Component Eligible Cosls. .

4.4 Conformance to 24 CFR S78.57: Continuum of Care Grant funds are. to be used only in
accordance with HMIS Component Eligible Costs. ^

5. Contractor Financial Management Systern:

5.1 . Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursemenl of. and accounting for. grarii funds and-any required
npnfederal experiditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
Ihe.ContraciOf. . . .

5.2 The Contractor shall maintain a financial managemeni sysiern that complies with 2 CFR pad
200 Of such, equlvdleni system ias Ihe State may require. -. ;

in»tnvtfirofCofTvnurviyAnianc«> 6*Wb:i 8. Amandmcfa t ConifDClwldiixli,
^  2/1/2021

SS-20I«HS^3HMIS-01 OUft
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Exhibit B-1. AmendmenM

Expehse Budget Detail

State Fiscal Year 2019: '

Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal

Year Budaet
Vendor Match

Emergency Solutions Grant
One-tinne ESG'award S39.570 $0.00 $39,570 -  $9,693

Subtotal S39.570 so.oo $39,570 $9,893

State Fiscal Year 2020: .

Expenseltem Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds

total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Stale Grant In Aid
'7/1/19-6/30/20-.' $6.00 $109,802 $109,602 ■ '■ $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/19-6/30/20.

•  521.000- $0.00 $21,000 ■' $5,250

Conlinuum of Gare
One-lime CoC award
7/1/19-7/31/19

: $11,706 $0.00 $11,706 ■' $2,9.27

Continuum of Care
8/1/19-6/30/20

5128.768 $0.00 $128,768 ■■ $32,192

Subtotal $161,474 5109,802 $271,276 :  $67,620 .

State Fiscal Year 2021: •

• Expense Item Federal Funds
State Grant

In Aid Funds
Total Stale Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Stale Grar>l in Aid
7/1/20-6/30/21 -

$0.00 .  109,802 $109,802 $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grarit
,7/1/20-6/30/21

$80,615 ■  $0.00 $80,615- $20,154

Conlinuum of Care
7/1/20-7/31/21

$140,476 $0.00 .$140,476 $36,010

Subtotal - $221,091 $109,802 . $330;893 $63,615

Stale Fiscal Year 2022

Expense Item ^Federal Funds
Stale Grant

In Aid Funds
Total State Fiscal

Year Budget
Vendor Match

Stale Gram in Aid
7/1/20-'6/30/21. $0.00 i$0.00 ' w.oo $0.00 ■

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/20-6/30/21

$0.00 ,$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 .

Continuum of Care -
7/1/21 -7/31/21

.  $11,704 $0.0.0 ' $11,704 $3,007

■

Grand tola! $433,839 $219,604 ■ $653,443 $164,335

lAsOuio fo/ Ccmnn^oity AOAncoi

SS-ZOlS-SHS-OHMSOi-AOl

EtNMB-I.Amtntfment I

P4{|« 1 ol I

CorUKttH tnliialt

Ooi»:
2/l/20n
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STATE OPNEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiViSION OF ECONOMtC & HOUSING STABILITY

U9 PLEASANT STIiCeT. CONCORD. NH 03)01-385'
60).3'|.94'4 1400452-3345 Ctt 9474

'r4i:e03-]7MnO. too Akm: l400-735rlM4 «r«w.tfKM.nh.|«v

March 6,2019

(I /

His ExceDoncy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council . - • '

State House
Concord. New Hdmpshtre 03301

REQUESTED ACTION ■ ^

Auihorice the Oepartrhent of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stabitity. to enter into a eole source agreerhent with Institute for .Community AlHances
(Vendor #301.842-6001), 1111 - 9th Street. Suite'380, Oes Moines, )A 50314, in an amounl not to
exceed $453,354, for the operation and maintenance of (he New Hampshire Statewide Homeless
Management Information'System to be effective upon the date'of GoverrSor and Executive'Council
approval through June 30, 2021. 52Vi Federal and 48% General Funds.'

. Furids are available in the following accounts In State Fiscal Yeer 2019, end ere anticipated
to be available in Stale Fiscal Years 2020 and, 2021. 'upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds'in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the
phce limilalion and adjust encumbrarices between State Fiscal Years through-the Budget Office,
without further approval from (he Governor end Executive Council, if needed and justified.

0S-9S42-423010-7827 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM;

State Fiscal Year Ciaes/Objecl* Cldds Title Job Number Amount

2019. ■102-500731 Corilracts for Program Services TBO 1 $39^^570,
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services T0D1 - $21,000

2021 102-500731 Conirads for Progr'am Services TBD 1 $21.00Q

Sub Total $81,570.

OS-8542-42)010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS. HHS:
HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM;

State Flacal Year Claas/Object Claeo Title Job Number Amount

'  " 2020 , 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 2 $140,474

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 2 511,708
1 *, Sub Total $152,180

05-9S42423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT CF-HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS;
HUMAN SERVICES. HOMELESS 8 HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM;

State Fiscal Year ClassfObject Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services .160 3 $109,802

-  2021 102-500731 Conirads for Program Services TBD 3 $109,602

Sub Total $219,604
•>

"♦ Grarid Total $453,354
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EXPUNATION

This egreemeni Is aote source because HOD requires HMIS grani funds to be utilized
exclusively through a single', establi^d. Stale Sponsor Agency capable of maintaining consistent,
statevnde services for over thirteen thousand (t3.000) ind'ividuats annually. The knowfedge.
training, and licensing requirad to perform this role are so specialized (hat only this vendor, the sole

- nationwide HMIS lead agency thai offers viiai, in-state support, is capable of serving as the Sponsor
Agency.

The. purpose of this request Is to secure conuacted services required for the operation of the
New Hampshire Homeless Information Syst'em (HMIS) through, June 30. 2021. The previous
conlredor. for the past .eight years, formally announced on June 11. 2016 they wit) no longer
provide HMIS'aerviceo to the State boyond (ha term of their current conlraci. The Bureau Of
Housing Supports (BHS) consulted with the Technical Assistance CoHoborative. U.S. Oepahmeni of
Housing and. Urban Developmeni (HUD) approved technical assi.stance. provider, and found the
proposed new conlraclor. a nationwide non-profit, who is the lead HMIS provider for over, thirty
other Conlirtua of Care across the country and Is the only nalionwide HMIS lead agency thai offers
in-stale aupporl. -The new contractor will use the same HMIS program, hardware and software
platforms as the previous HMIS provider, as weD as having the same contrapt provisions bound by
the same federal and state guidelines.

The New Hampshire Department of Information Technology (OolT) has reviewed (he
proposed con(ract-02O19-O26. as posted on July 19,'2016. and has issued a DolT approval letter
which is included wilh this agreem.eni package.'^ The web-based HMiS is regulated through policies
end procedures thai all participating sheliers and programs are required to follow. The policies and
procedures define responsibllilies by at) syst'em users in actions that include syslem security, focal
eys'lem admlni'stratlon. and client confidentiality. This is the only HMiS project funded by HUO in
New Hampshire and is consistent with the centralized, statewide afchiiecture developed u.nder HUO

..'guidance and.adopted by the New Harripshire Continuums in 2002.

.Alternatives to contracting these services could include utilizing funds from local community -
organizations Such as.emergency homeless shelters, however this would result in a decenlrailzed
data system that could only be supported In'reglons able to. accAje necessary local.funds for
-software and services. Another option' is to build an in-house system using OolT staff. When
considered, it was deiermined-^al OolT lacked the resources to create such a system.

The web-based HMIS provides value to the Department through improved capacity to
' measure end serve homeless populations while ensuring federal regulatory compliance. .Collateral'
project goals are to use HMIS software to Improve housing service resource sharing, automated '
eligibiliiy deterrhinallons, and linkages to mainstream assistance programs. An additional benefit is
improved coordination of essential services and supports that address homeiessriess.

As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the option to extend for up
to five'(5) additional years, conlingeni upon saiislactory delivery of services, available fundir>g,
agreement of the parties and'approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the. contrary, no services shall '
conlinue after June 30. 2019, and the Department aha!) not t>e liable for eny paymenis for services-
-provided after June 30. 2019, unless and until en'appropriation for .these services has been
received from (he state legislature and'funds encumbered for the 5FY-2020-2021 biennium.

Should the Goverr^or end Exe'cut'rve Council, delerrnine not to-approve this request, . Ne'w
Hampshire homeless shelters and perman.enl end supportive housing 'end outreach programs,
which currently receive federal funding, may not be able to utilize the federelly mandated HMIS and,
therefore, may no longer be el'igible to receive that federal funding. This could impact the
operdlional capacity of many community programs supporting, (he homeless as well as possibly
eliminating many full-time job's.

<•>
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Source of Funds; 52H F.edcral Funds from Ihe U.S. Oepartmeni of Housing and Urban
• Ooveiopment, Continuum" of Care and Emergency Solutions Grant Programs. Office of Community
. Planning dr>d Development. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Numbers (CFDA) P14.267
and 1<.231 and 46% General Fufuts.

Area Served: ̂atewide. ' • .

In t.he event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested (6 support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

ey . Meyers
mmissioner

Th$ Dapertm$fti of Hoslih end Human Services'Mission is lo join comrnu/»7/as and femiHes.
in pfovidinQ opportunities for citizens to echieve heelin end Independence.
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STATE OF NfW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Heicn Dr^ Concord. NK 0330)

Fii; 603-27)0316 ibo Accus; 1-eOO-73S-296«
www.rvh. ;Ov/doit

Deni> Coulet

Cofnmhtlonv

March 11, 2019.

Jeffrey A. Mcyc'n, Commijsiortcr
Depanmeni of Heelih end Human Services

• Stale ofNe^v Hampshire

.129 Pleasani Street
Concord. NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letler represents fonnal notiOcation that thd Oepanmeni oF Information technology. (OolTJ
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source agreement with Insiiiute'fqr Co'mmuniry
Alliances (lCA)of-Des.Moines. IA 50314 (Vendor #301 S42-B0bl) as described below and referenced as
DolT No. 2019-026. -

This is B request to enter into a sole source contract to secure services for the'operation of
(he New Harnpshire Homeless Information Sy lem (HMIS). The previous contractor, for
the past eight years, formally announced ihty .will no longer provide the services beyond
(heir prcserti contract. Bureau of Homeless ̂ d Housing Services consulted with the
Technical Assistance Collaboraiivc, US Depif ment.of Housing and Urban -Development
(HUD), found the proposed new contractor, a nationwide non-profit, who is the lead
HMIS provider across (he country and is the only nitionwide KMIS lead agency that
offers in-state support.

The amount of the contract is not-to exceed

upon the date of Governor and.Exeeuiive Co
June 30,2021.

1433,354.00, and shall become effective

mcil approval, whichever is later, through

A copy of (his letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor end Bxecutive Council for

DG/ik/ck

DolT//2019-026

cc: .Bnice Siitith, IT Manager, DolT

■/nnovetiVe TecftnologifS ToOoyfc

approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Coulci

New Hampifir/e'i Tomo/row'
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FORM (VUMBCR P07 (vcnien SA/IS)

Sabjcci: famiwuum of Car* Hawttoii tftfonrnniftn SvuVm. SS-3QI 9.BH&-03-HM1S

This iircemcAi end ell of iu eRifhmcntt ihill bccorK public upon lubntinion lo Governor and
' Cxecutivt Council fo^ ■pprovei.- Any informition ihei Is priveie, conndemioi or ptopntlsry must

bceicolyideniirKdioihci^ency end itrtcd lo in writing prior to'iigni«| the commct.
•  • ■ • - - •

ACRCEMCm-

The Suie of New Ktmpthirc 'end the Contrtctor bereby mutuilly egret is follows;

r. CCNERaLPROVISIONS

I.I SuiB Agtftcy Nawc
NH Oepemmcnt of Heilth end Kwmin Services

1.2 Sieic Agency AdOreii •
129 Pleeuni Street
Concord. NH 0)3010137

1.3 CoernciorNeme
Iniihuif for Commwniry Alliances

1.4. Corurecior Addrcu
1 III - 9ih Suces. Suite 310
Dcs Moincs, lA 50314'

1.5 ConiretlOi Phone
Number

)i5-246-664J

1.6 Account Number

0J.9S-42.42)0I0 7927.
102-306731

1.7 Completion Dale-

June 30.-2021

I.I Prkc Limitaiion'
>

S453.))4

.1.9 COfltreeiing OfTKcr for S^te Agency
Ntthan D. While, Oirteior ■ '

(.10 Stiie Agency Telephone Number
S0)-27|.96)l

1.11 ^Offl^Or Sign^ 1.12 Narhe ind.Tiile of Coniroctot Signitory

David Ebertaeh. Eiccutivc Director

1.1) Acknowledgcmeni; Sreie of 'owe ..Cowniyof P

On ; before the undersigned officer, personil;
proven to be the person whose nime is signed'inblock 1.II, end sc
iftdicitedinblock 1.12.

oik

y eppeirediKe person identified in block l.l2;orseilsfeciotily
cnowlcdgcd that s/br executed this document in the cepscity

I.I

f ̂  4 CommiaionNuniOef yeilco
My Commission £x(4{a

•/e.:i| wtemotr JJ. lOhff:)!

sticeofthc PcKt

I.IJ.7 Neme ertd Title of Noieryo.r Justice of the Peece
Kimbcrly CrendiiBfr. Fiscel Manager

LJ4 Suu Agency Sigoiiure

ri/J/U^>^rWxWADi.3lrl l^
1.15 Name end Title of Sine Agency Signsiory

Chll^nr DCtfS
l.'IS Approvel byinc^H. Oepenment of Admini^niicf. OlV^dft ofPersonncl fi/opp/ifoWeJ , '

By: Oirmof.On:

1.17 App/ovtl^iho|^(omeyCenere)(Form. Subiuncc end C.vcut'iOn}///opp/*eoh/<;J

l.ll Approvet^y theCo/ernor/nd Executive Couricil Ci/oppHcoble) '

By: . On:

PflgcI ofA
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2. CMPLOVMENTOFCOfn-flACTpR/SERVlCESTO
8C PCRfORMCD. The Sieic ofNewKtmpthlfr. eciing
(hmw|h(hi «g<neyidfniiri<8 in block l.li"Sute").<Agag(i
eointnflof idcmified in block I.) ("Conirecior*) to perform,

^ ind (h< CoAincior ihsl) perform, the work or uk of goods, or
both, tdeniined end more pvikulorly described in ibe irucbed
EXHIBIT A which is incorporiied iKtirt bjr rcfcrtace
("ServJees").

3. EffCCTIVE DATCTCOMPLETION Of SERVICES-
3.( Noiwithturtding enr provision of <hti Agreement to the
COAtmry' nnd (ubjeci *0 i>v« ■pprev«l of ihc And
Eiectiiivc Council of the Sine of New Kimpihitt, if
•pplieible. this Agncmcnl. end >11 obli|eiions Of the penitt
rwKunder; shall become crTcciivc on the deic the Governor
and E>cetni«< Courtcii approve ihii Agrremrni u indkaied in
bloek i. I i, unless re such approval Is reouirtd. in which case
(he Agretment shall become effeciive en (he daic-ihe
AgrcenKni is signed by the State Agency u shown in block
i.id (*'£freeiiye Oaic"^

• 3.2 lflhe*Cont/ecto» commences the Servlccj prior lothe
'Effective One, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to (he Effective Date shall Be performed at the sole risk of the
Conirtetoe. ar>d in the event thai this Agreement docs not
become effective, ihe.Suic shall have no liibiliry to the
Conemtor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Coni/Brior for any costs incurrrd or Services performed..
Contrtcior must complete all Services by the Compkiiort Date
specified irt block 1.7.

d. conoitionalnatoreof agreement.
Noiwiihstandini any provisiort.ofthi's Agrtcmem to the
coflirory, all obligai.ipns of thc $tai<.hereundc'. including,
without liffliiiiioA the cOAiinvarKC ofpsymenu hercur^er; are.
cofliingeni upcn the availability and continued appropriation •
ofTunds, and in no event shall the Slate be iilbte for any
payments herturvdcr in e.eces'i of luch available appropriated .
funds. Inthecvcnt ofa redwciloA or lerminiiionof
appropriated furtds, the Stale ihtll have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, end shall
have the right lo ienninatc ihjs Agreement immediately.upon
giving (he Contractor notice of strch termination. The State
Shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Accourti Identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that '
Account are reduced or vrtaveiliblc.-

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE EtWITATlON/ '
pavmcnt.
3.1 The eomraei price, method of paymcni. and terms of •.
piymcnl arc identified and more particuiarly described in
EXHIBIT B.which is irKOrporaied herein by fTrcrrncc.
3.2 The paymeni by the Stele of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete rcimburscmcni to the Coniracipi for all
c.ipenscs.of whatever noturc incuned by the Contractor in the
perfonrtancc hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compcnsationtoihc Contracipr (or (he Services. The State
ihiti have rso liability to the. Co'ninctor other than the eoniraci
price.

3.) The SiiK rctcrvei the right to offset from any amounts
Otherwise payable to the Contractor under this AgrtemcAi
ihoK llguidaicd amounts required or permlncd by N.H. RSA
10:7 ihrough RSA I0:7< or any other provision of law.
5.d Nofwiihstandlng my provliion in (hit Agreement to the,
comriry, and rtoiwiihsianding unevpecicd cirtumiiancei. in
no event shill.iht total of all paymervis authoriacd; or aesually
made herrunder. eiceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

d. COMPLIANCE ev CONTfLACTOR WITH LAWS
AlvO RCCULATtONSr eQUAL EMPtOVMCKT
opportlinitv..
d.l In eonneeiion vrlib the performarKc of the Services, the
Coniracior shall comply with at) siaiulei, laws, rtgulaiions,
and orden of retfcral. itite, county or municipal awihoriiiei
whieh impOH aay obligation O' duty upon the Corilracior.
including, but not limited to, civil rights and Cdual opportunity
laws. This may include the reouiremeni to utilitr auxiliary
aids ahd servires-io ensure that persons with communicaiion
'diubiiiti'cf, including vision; hearing and speech, can
communicsie with, receive informa'tion from, and convey
information to the Controcior. In addition, the Contracioir
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
'6.2 During the ierm,of (his Agicemcni, the Conimcidr iheU
not discrtmineie against employees or eppllcanU-for
employm.en) bcciuu.of race, color, rrliglon, creed, age. sex.
handicap, se.tual orientation, or national origin-and will lekr
affirmativt action to prcvtnt such discrimination.
6.]-ir this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
.United States, the Conirtetor shall comply with all the
provisiQnsorC.iccuiiveOnlerNo. ii2c6("Egasl
Employment Opportur>iry"). as suppjcmcnicd by the .
regulations of the United Suics Ckpirtmcnt ofLaboifdl-
C.F.R. Pan 60). ^d with any rvilcs. regutaiiort} and guidcliaci

' as (he State of New Hampshire or the United Stotet issue to
implcmcBi these regulations. The Contractor furshcr agrees to
permit the Siiie or United Steles access to any ofthc
ContraciOf't books, records and accounts for the purpose of
asceruining compliance with all rules, regulotions and orden.
and the coveneflts,'terms and coisditioruofihls Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel rstceiury to pcrrorm4he Services. The Comrtcior
^rrtnis ihti all personnel engaged in the Strvieet shall be
qualified to j^rfonn the Services, and shall be properly
liccitscd end Otherwise authpritedto do SO under all applicable
laws. .

7.2 Unlcis oiherwise auihoriied in'writing, during the term of
(his AgfTement, end for e period of ski (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Conlncior shell rro> hire,
and shsli rroi permit any subconimctor or-Other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engegcd in a combined cfTor) to
perform the Scrvieei to hire, ^oy person who is a State
employee or ofTiciil, who is materially involved in the
procurcmtni, administration or performance of this

Page 2 of^
Contractor (nilials

D8lc,?-7-/f
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AtrctmcRi. Thil provition (h«11 iurvi«« tcrmlMiion of ihis
Agrtcmcm.
7.) T)i« Conlreeiing OfTicer tpecincd «n block 1.9.0' hi} or
hcf luccctkoc. ihsll bt (he Shu's repfCKnuiivc. In ihe event
of ftfly.dispute cooeeming the inierpuuiion orthls Agreement,
(he ContmiingOrTiccr'tdecision ihsll be final for the SUK.

8. EVEKTOFOCrAULT/RtMCDICS.

8.1 Any one ov more ortht fottowing acts or omissions of the
Conutctor that! ceaiiituic an evcni of default Ncfcw^er
<~£v«AiofDtrauii~);
I.I.I railwretoperfonnthcScrvlcetUtisfactooiyoion
schedule;

I.I J failvre to submit any report required hercundet; and/or
S. I.) failure so perform arty osher covenant, term or condijion
ofihis Agrctmeni.
I.} Upon (he occurrtoce of any Event ofOefisrlt. the Slate
may tike any one. or mere, or all. of the follovnng actions:
1.3.1 give the Contractor i ««rmcnnoike specifying the Event
ofOefault end requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence oragrcaicior lesser ipceificaiionofiimt, ihiny ()0)
days from the date of the noik.e; and if (he Event of Default is
not timely remedied, icrmlnaie this Agreement. cfTecilvc two
<2) days afler giving the Contractor notice of termination;'

• 1.3.3 give the Ccnimcior a written notkc speci^ing the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be rrtade under this
Agrccmcni end ordering that the portion of the conimei price
which would otherwise eccruc to the Contractor during the

'period from the date of such rtotice until such time as the Suic
ddcrmints that the Conirecior has cured the Event of Default

.shall rsever be paid to the Conirectpr
1.3.) set off against any other .bbligiiioru the State may owe to
the Coniracloe any damages iht Slate sufTeri by reaaon of any
Event of-Default; and/or

1.2.4 (real the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies II law or in equity, or both. -

9. oata/access/cowfioentiautv/
.preservation.

9.1 As used inikis A|rcem<ni,'(he word "data" shall rrsean all
information and ihings developed pr obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, sutveyi. maps, ehans, sovnd reeordihgj, video
recordings, pkioriil reproductions, drawingi. analyse},
graphic rtprestnutions. computer progrirns. compuicr

. priniowii. notes, Icncrt. mcmorinda. papers, ark documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.3 All data and any property which has been received from'
(he State or purchased wiih funds provided foi thai purpose
under this Agreemeni. shell be the property of (he State, and,
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreemrni for en/ reason.
9.) Conrkcmielity of date shall be governed by N.H. RSa
chapter 9i-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior wtirttn approval of ihc Sine.

10. TERMINATION. In Ihc event of an early tcrminaiion of •
(his Agreement for any reason other (han the completion of the
Services, the Coniraeior shill deliver (o(he Corstroeting
Officer, net later than fifletn (I» diys afler ihe date of
termlaaiion. a rtpon ("Tcrminiiion RepOA") describing in
detail all Services performed, ia^ ihc contraci price earned, to
and including the date ofterminaiion. The form. sub;cet
miner, content, and number of copies of (he Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
dcKribed in the aitiched EXHIBIT A. •

(1. contractor s relation TO THE STATE. In'
the performance of this A|rccmcni the Controeior is in all
respcc's an irtdependeni contractor, end is neither an ageni nor
an employtt of the State. Neither the Cortiricior rtof ar>y of its
oHiecn. cmptoytcs. agents or rnemOers Shall have authority to'
bind Ihe Stiie or receive any benefiis, workers' eompensaiion
or other emolumcnis provtdc0 by ike State to Its employees.

l3.ASSlCNMENT/D£LeCATlON/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Coniracior shall hot ossign, or otherwise ironsfcr any
interesi in this Agreement without the'prior wrincn notice and
eorucni of the State. None of the Services lhall be '

! subeontraetcd by the Contrieioi without ihe prior writien •
, notice end conscni of the State.

I). INDCMMFlCATlON. The Contractor shall defend.
I indemnify arw} hold harmless the State, itsoffKcri and'
j employees, from and against any end all losses suffered by the
Sine, its ofTiCers and employees, and any and all claims,
liibiliiks or pcnslties aliened against the State, its omcers
andcm'ployees. by or on ̂ halfofany person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise Out oO the acts or omissions of the
Conirocior. Noiwiihiunding the foregoing, nothing herein.

' contained shall be deemed to constitute o waiver of Ihe.

' sovereign immunity of the Siau, which immuniry is hereby
'.rarrvcd to the Siaic. Thiscovenini in paragraph 13 shall
surviyt the termination of this Agrcemcni.

; 14. INSURANCE.
I 14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require ony subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain In force, the following
insurance;

U.I.I rompichcnsivt general liability insurance tgainji all
dairris of bodily injury, death or property domige, in amounis
of not less ihan Sl.OOO.OOOpcr occvnence and t3,000,000 '
eggrcgaic; and.
14.1.3 special cause of (bis coverage form covering ail
propeny subject to subpiragiroph 9.3 herein. In an amoimi not
less th^ 80IK of the whole replacement value of (he property.
14.1 The policies described in lubparagraph M.I herein shall
be on policy forms end endorsements opproved for use in.the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depanmeni of
insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New

Pegt

Hampshire.

3or4
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14.) The CoAtntior thili fumlih lo ihc CoiurtciingOfTiCcr
idemiricd in block 1.9. or hit Or her iuccesior, i ccnirir«ie(>>
of intvrvnce for etliriiursncc required under ih>t Atrccmeni.
ContrKtor thall elso furnish lo (he Coninedng OfHcer
idcndfied in block 1.9, or his or her sueensor. €ertificiie(i) of
iruurenee for ell renewtt(t) of insvnncc rc()ulret5 under ihis
Agretmeni no U(cr ihin (hiny {30] days prior to (he ejeplroiloA
dste ofeoeh ofih< iniunnee policies. The'ccnifrciicfs)of
intureoce ertd eny rcnewolt ihircsf shill be anached and are
irteorponicd herein by reference. Eachccnirmiefijof
insurenec shall conuin a elause reouirvng the insurer (o
pro«itf< (he CorKncilni OfTiccr iOcniiricO In btock (.0.or hit
or her successor, no leu than ihiny ()P) days prior wrinen

. notice of eancellaiiOA or modiricaiion of (he policy.

.15. WORKERS*COMfCMSATlON.
Ik.l By-signing (his agrccmcm, ihc Consr«aor igrees,
ecninet and warronui that the Coniracior is incompliance with
or c.eempi from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapier 211 -A
("iVofUri'Compt/ueiiofi"). ■
li.f To the eatent (he ContrMtorts subject lo the
rtqurrtmentsof N.H. RSA.chapier2ll>A, Comraeior shall
mtiniain. and require any lubcdninteior or assignee to sectire

.ortd ffliinuin. payment of Workers'Compensa(ion in
connection with activiiies which the person proposes to
urtdertikc pursuant to (his Agreement. Coniractor shall
furnish the Contracting QfTicer idcntir<d in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof.of Worken' Compcnuiion in the
manner described in N.H. R$ A.<hapicr 281 -A and any

' oppiitable'rtnewolfsj.ibcrcpf, which shall be anachcd and'are
iricbrponted herein by refc'rence. The Slate shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensaiion
premiums^, for any other claim or benefit,for Conimctor, or
any subcbnirscior or employee of Conimcior, which might
a/iie under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
.Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the ,
Services under this Agreemcni.

16. WAI V'CR or BREACH. No hiiv't by the Sire to -
enforce wy provisions htreofofterany Event ofOcfauti Shall
be deemed e waivcr-of its rights ̂ nih irgard to ihii.Evcnt of
Oefivli, or my aubsequeni Event of Oefauli. No eapress
failure to enforce any Event of Oefauli shall be deemed o ■

waiver of Ihe right of (he Stale lo cnfoice eochand allofthe
provisions hereof upon any funhcr or other Event of Dcfauli
en the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a pan'y hereto lo the other party -
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the-'
lime of (nailing by cenified mail. ̂siige,prepaid, in a United
Siiiu Po'st CfTice addressed to the parties at jhe eddrcsset
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.'

16. AfjlENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an irtstrumeni in writing signtd
by the parties hereto and ordy after approval ofsuch .
amendment, wgivcr or discharge by the Covcmor and
Executive Council of Ihc State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is rcQuired under the circumstances pursuant to
State law. rule orpoltcy.*'.

19. CONSTRUCTION Qf AGREEMENT ANO TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of (he State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon ariii
inures to the benefti of the partita and iheii rupcaivc
fvccessora and assigns. The wording used in Ihis Agreement .
is the wording chosen by the pa^irs-io express ll^ir mutual
intent, and no rule ofconstruciion shall be applied against Of
in favor of any party. . >

26. THIRD Parties. The panics hereto do not-lniend to
benefit any third piniei end this Agreemcni shall not be
construed to eonfe/ any such benefit.

21. HCaDINCS. The headings (Krougheui iKc Agreement.
. arc for reference purposes only, and the tvordj contained
therein shall in no woy be held to explain,'modify, amplify or
aid in the inicrprtteiion. contirxKiionor rrKoniagof the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set.
fonh in the anachcd EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference. ~-

23. SCVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
ihls Agreement arc held by acovrt ofcompeteni jurisdiciion to
be contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining
provisionsofthis Agreement will remairt in full force and .
efTeci.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrccnttni. which may
be executed in • number ofeounierpans, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes (he entire Agreement and ■
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements artd understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. . Provlstone Applicable to All Services: v- ,.

.  1.1. The ConUdclor Shall submit 3 delaiied description ofjhe language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proriciency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or sen/ices within ten (lO) days of the
contract effective date. • .

.  '1.2. The Coniracior agrees to comply with the program narrative; budget detail and
narrative, and 'amendments (hereio, for the Homeless Management lnformalior>

•  System (HMIS) as approved by the| tU.S. Department, of Housing and Urban
■ Development (HUD) and by the New Harripshire Bureau of- Housing Supports (6HS).

iv. Division of Economic er^ Housing Stability (OEMS). Oepa/tmcni of Health arxf Human.
Services (DHHS). hereafter referred toj as the Stale, and any federal requirements
applicable to HMIS under the Conlinuunrt ofCare (CoC) or Smergwcy Solutions Grant
(ESG) programs, or other federal programs requiring HMIS participation.

1.3. The. Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federel or slate court orders may have ar* impact on the.
Services described here'm. the Slate Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.4. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agrcemerii to the contrary,' ell obligattons of the
Stale relative to the CoC program are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under
the CoC Grant. The State has applied for the CoC Granl and vrifl continue to perform
due diligence in the appiicalion process. i However, the Stele makes no rcpresenteilon
that it will receive the funds. In no everti shall the Stele be liable for costs incurred or
paymenl of any scnrices performed by the Contractor prior to, the Slate's receipt of
federal funds applied for In the CoC Grant.

1.5. Not^lhsiandihg any other provisionof the Contract to the contrary, no services shafl
continue after June 30.2019. and the Department shall not be'liable for any payments
ifor services provided after June 30,2019, unless and unlil an appropriation for these
services .has been received from'the stale legislature end funds encumbered for the
'SFY 2020-2021 biennium. ' ' j

1.6. For- the purposes -cf this agreement, the Depaflmeni has identined Insiiiute for

Communify Alliances as 8 'Contraclor" In accordance vrith 2 CFR 200.0- c/sep.

2. Scope of Services: ' '

2.1. the Contractor shall provide data base management services for the HMIS thai is
used lo collect client-level data a.nd data on the provision of housing and services to
homeless individuals and families and persons ai risk of homeiessr>ess.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide database management aclivilies as outlined and
Identified as the "HMiS lead- Org' in. but hot limited to. the NH HMIS Governance
Model June 2018, and as amended, incorporaied by reference to this Agreement

IniOvd lor Convnurfly ASiinut EiK&ll A Cv\ytOO( IaUIiU'
SS-Z0i&-8KSe3-KM>S' P«9eV0/4

Oslo



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5A6113D7-7B97-4796-8025-86CE260AEE16

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 700S8BF5-1C38-48FO-6CEC-65EB22003810

DgoiS^n&Mttepe 10:434AlE77B(NM7^.eOl8-l«C79F2e)F99

*

New HfltnpsNre Oepartment of Health and Human Services
Homeleaa Manapement Information System

Eihibit A

2.3. The Contractor shall use software/inTormat'on system In accordance wiiMhe NH-HMIS
Governance Model in Section 2.2 above, end as approved by the NH HMiS advisory
Committee.

2.4. The Contractor shall implement and mainiain the HMiS final data and technical
standards In a statewide HMIS system.

2.5. The Contractor shall ensure thai the HMIS is an accurate resource for information that
includes, but Is not limited to. fulfillment of federal and stale reporting requirements on
homelessness, irtcluding undupiicai^ counts of pecpte served, use of se^ices.
Coordinated.Ent/y. and the effectiveness of tocai homeless assistance'systems.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide 'artd'coordinate adequate staffing levels, roles and
responsibilities and financial resources needed to. support the technical
capacity, accessibility and function of the HMiS system.

2.7. the Contractor shall comply with the terms and conditions as established in the New
Hampshire HMiS Governance Model. Revision E. dated June 2016. and as amended,.
which Includes, but is not limited lo; .

2.7.1. The review end monitoring of the guidelines and procedures of HMIS security
and confidentiality;

2.7.2. Planning 8r>d Software Selection: HMIS Plahnlng end Strategic Activities.
HMIS Program Milestones Development. Universal Data Elements (UOE).
Prbjett-Specific Data Elements (PSO'E). Unduplicaicd Client Records tUCR).
Anrujial Performance Report (APR) and Consolidated Annual Performance and
Evatoaiion Report (CAPiER) Repohing. HMIS Reports;

.  2.7.3. HMIS Managemenl arvJ Operations - Governance and Managcmenl; HMIS
Governance Sinjcture. HMiS Technical Support. HMiS Software Te^nical
Support. HMIS" Information Technology (IT) Issue Tracking. HMIS IT Issue
Monitoring (Community Level). HMIS Staff Organiiation Chart. HMIS Software
Trflining, HMIS User Feedback. Systern Operation end Maintenance:

2.7.4. .HMIS Management and Gyrations Compliar>co Monitoring: HMIS
Managemenl Issues. HMiS Program Milestone. Monitoring. Agency end
Prograrn HMIS Participation. jParticipation in Notice of Funding Availability
(NOFA). Longitudinal Systems'Analysis (LSA), and Systern Performance
Measures. Client Acknowledgement. Data and System.Security!

2.7.5. HMiS Managemenl and Operations - Data Ouality: Data Qualify Standards.
UOE. PSOE. Data Quality Reports to.be regularly run and provided to
pailidpaiing programs. Dsia Qualify Reports .provided lo the Community
Planning Entity. Pata Ouality Reports compared lo data standards; and

2.7.'6. HMIS Policy-Oevetopment ancJ Oversight: Clienl Conf»dentialify and Privacy
Training. COG System Performance Measurement Training. COC Corhmunify
Planning Goals and Objectives Training. Business Practices Training. Program
Funding Training and Orientation. Participating Agency Documentation.
Partidpaiion Rates. Poiides end Proocdures. Agency Participation

Inib'iutervConvnu/^yAKanocs E^ioliA Ccntreov Wiiih
SS.20ie-eH$O34OAiS . Ptge2ol4
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Agreements, Date Sharing Agreements. HMIS End-User Agreements. Client
.Acknowledgement, Data Release.

2.6. The Contractor shall maintain-a HMiS problem (racKIng system arid colleboralo with
the HMIS ebhwa're conlroctor to manage ell software operations including; supporting

- instanailon. upgrades, and software problems.

2.9. The Contractor shall ensure that eccuraie and timely data are entered into New
Hampshire's HMIS by providing participating egencles of NH-HMIS svith support (hat
Includes, but is rK)t limited to; '

2.9.1. Sohware access; m

■  2.9.2. Technical and reporting assistance;

' 2.9.3. Training; • *
2.9.a. Po.iicy guidance; end

'2.9.5. Security assessments.

2.10. The Contractor shall provide e comprehensive monitoring and data vdiidation process
for all participating agencies, artd wii rep^rtVesuHs of those processes (o the State as
requested. •- i

2.11.The Cpntractor Shell pursue any and ell'eppropridie public sources of funds that are-
applicable to' (he funding of (he servi^s. operations, prevention, acouisiilon. or
rehdbiiitalion..Appropriale records shall !be maintained by the Contractor end mode
avaliabte for review by (he State to document actual funds received or denials of
funding'from such public sources of funds.

3. Program Rqporting Roqulrements ' '

3.1. The Contractor shall provide a report to'(he Department end the COC no less than
seven (7) calendar days prior to the submission dale tdenliried by HUD (hat includes,
but is not limited to. by service modality:

3.1.1. HMIS Annual Progress Reports for each NH Conlinuurn of Care (CoC), as
required by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD):

. 3.1.2.. HMIS data necessary for (he Annual Point-lh-Tlmo Count, as required by HUD;'

3.1.3. Longitudinal System Analysis (ISA) (or each CoC. as defmedby HUD;

3.1.4. HMIS data required lor successful completion of funding apjoticallons by each
CoC, 'as specified in the HUO Notice of Funding Availability: and ■

V- 3.1.5. Annual Reports for Projectsfor Assistance in Transition from Homelessness
per SAMHSA/PATH requiremenls. "

3.1.6. Annual System Perlormance Measures as required by HUD.

3.2. Failure to submit above reports in agreed upon timelines will result (n the delay or
withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received id a manner that is
consistent with (he requirements of Vie Stale.

-
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3.3. The Cont/actctf shaO cooperate fu8y with and answer ati questions, pertaining to this
contract, ol representatives of the Stale or Federal agencies who may cortOuct a
periodic rovi^ of performance.or an Inspection of reCOfds.

Date Sccurl^:

4. t. The Conlraclor shell provide conrmmolion of 0 biannual socurlry assessment of HMIS
eoftware. performed by an independent third-parry security Contractor, to verify that
the environment containirtg the Contrador's project'deia Is secure. Breeder

•  Contractor-wide assessments that include the proiect's systems are accepiable. The
Contractor shall provide confumaliQn of this assessment to OHMS.

4.\.\. Cen'ificalion of this testing wiO be provided to OHMS Information Securlfy..Jhc
objective of said security assessment is to identify design and/or functionality-
issues in infrastructure of systems that could expose Confidential Data, as welj '
as. computer and nerivorh equipment, and systems to risks from.malidoys
activities. Within 30 days efter the biannual assessment has been performed,
(he Contractor vmII provide OHHS Information Security with a report Of security
Issues that were revealed. Within 90 days of the assessment the Coni/actor
will provide OHHS Inlormaiion Security with a remediation plan. The
Contractor and OHHS' wiD mutually agree which, if any, security issuers

■  revealed from.the assessmeni will be remediaiod by the Contracfor.

5. Contract Administration

5. i. The Coriiractor shall have appropr'iate levels of staff to attend ad meetings or trainings
requested by 6HS. including irain'mg in data security and conTidenliality. according to
slate end fedemi laws, to the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Conlraclor of the
need to attend such meetings five jS) workirig days in advance of each meeting.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS or deslgnee may observe perfofmance. activities
and 'documcnls under this Agreement. The Contractor shall Inform BHS of any staffing

? - changes within th'irty (30) days of the change.'

5.3. Cbriiract records shali be retained (or a period of five (5) years, or as required by
applicable slate and federal laws, following completion of (he contract.and receipt of
final payment by the Conlraclor. or until an audit is completed and all questions arising
(here from are resotved. vtrh'tchever is later.

S. Dcllvorable

6.1. The Conlraclor shall provide accurate and llrnely reporl'tng. i.n Section-3 above end in
accordance with the New Hampshire HMtS Governance Model June 2018. end as
amended.

(AiUiv^'l loi Convnurky.Ariiincc*
SS-70iS-eHS4S.HM95 Pi^4oU
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

i. Homeless fManegemont Information Syetem (HMIS):

1.1. The Stale shao pay the Contractor on amount not to exceed the Form POT. Block 1.6. Price
Llmitaliori for tho cervices provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services. •

■  1.2. This conUect Is funded wiih general lurids and 52% federal funds as follows:

VZ.V. NMGeneraLEunOs

Program Tilie; Stole Grant in Alo (SG(A); MMIS
Total Amount HMIS not to exceed Sub Total: $21S.€d4;

JuV 1. 2013-June 30. 2020 nolioexceed: J109.802
July 1.2020-J.une 30. 2021 • rSclloexceed; $109,602

1.2.2." Fed'eralfunds .

CFDAP: 14.231

Federal Agency; U.S. Oepartmeni of Housing & Urban Oevelopmeni'(HUO}

Program Title: Emergency Sotutions Grant Program (6SG), HMiS

Total Amount HMIS nolioexceed Sub Total: $81,570;

ApriM.2010-June 30.2019 nolioexceed: $39,570 •

July 1.2019-June 30.2020. nottoexc^: $21,000
■July 1.2020-June 30.2021 nolioexceed: $2t.000

1.2.3. Federal Funds

CFOAfl: 14.267

FederaiAgency: .H'uO ,
. Program Title: Conlinuum of Care Prograrn (CoC). HMIS

Tolai Amount HMIS nolto exceed Sub Total: $152,160;

•  July 1.2019-July 31. 2019: nolioexceed $11.70$ ,
August 1. 2019-July 31. 2.020: noltoexpecd $140,474
Funds ailocalion under this agreemeni (or CoC. HMiS. Manche'sler:

■■-HMIS: $50,322.
g;. Administreiive costs: $1.631 . j

Total program amount: $51,953 jv,
Funds allocat'ton under this agreemeriil for CoC^ HMIS. Nashua:
HMIS: $12,170 '
Admirvstr.ative costs: $304
Total program amouni: $12,474
Funds anocation under (his agreement for CoC. HMIS. .'Balance of State:

. HMIS: - $74,079 _
Administrative costs: $1.950

• Tola,! program amount: . :$76.047 . . ^

1.2.<. Total amount HMiS not to exceed Grand Total: ^$453,354

WConvt*Xi»ir**r»noo» EcrVblO Ccnirtoy t/tftlin —•

SS-20i9eMSd)XMiS Oaio 7-^9



DocuSign Envelope (D: 5A6113D7-7B97-4796-8025.86CE260AEE16

OocuSign Envelope ID: 70058BF8-1C38^8F0-BCEC-65E822003610

t

OecvSign Envelope lO: O4AeE77•e09M7«A•e0l^t9C7SF2B3f »

New Hfimpshtre Department of Heahh end Humer> ScrvlcM
Homeless Manegement Information System « ■

Exhibit 6

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A. Scope ol Service in compliance with
funding reoulremenls. Faiure to mecl the sco^ of seonces may jeopardize the funded-
Contractor's current end/or future, funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of Ihc performance of the Proje^ Activities, the Conuacior covenants and egrees to
Submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited.Frnancio) Peport; The Audited Tinsncia) Repon aha!) bo prepared In eccordfince with
2CFRp8rt200.

2.!.2. One (i) copy of the audited nnanciai rcport wlihin thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report |6 the. Slate at the following address;

NMDHHS . .

6uf.eau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord.NH03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant, funds are to be used only in accordance with
procedures, requirements, and principles specified in 2CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor Is subject lo the reouiremenis ol 2 CFR pan 200. the Contractor shall
. submit one (1) copy of en audited finerKiai report to the Oepartmcnl utilizing the guidelines sei
. forth by the ComplroDer General of the United Stales In 'Standards lor Audit of Governmehlai '
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions." within ninety (90) days after contract

'• ■ corriplelion date. • , '

3. Project Costs; Payment of Project Costs; Review by the State:

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agrccmcni. the term 'Project Costs* shall mean all expenses
direcUy or indirectly'incofred by.ihe Conlractor In the perform'anc© of Ihe Project Activities, as
determined by the Slate to be eligible end allowable for payment in accordance wiih Public
Lew 102-550 as well as allowable cosi standards set forth In 2 CFR part 200 es revised from
time lo lime and with the rules, regulalions, and guidelines eslabfished by ihe State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. - Payment of Project Costs: Subject lo the General Provisions of this Agreemenl and In
consideraiion of ihe' selisfactory completion of the services lo be pertomned under this.
Agreement In accordance with the Contlnuumjof Care Program Regulations, published at 24
CFR Perl 578. the State agrees lo provide payment on a cost reimburserhent basis for adua);
eligible expendilurcs incurred In the fulfillment of this agreement. Eligible expenditures shall
be in accordance with the approved line iiem' noi lo exceed an amount as spcclfted In this

■  Exhibii. and defined by. HUD under the provisions of P.L. 102-550 and other applicable '
regulatioris.

3.3. Matching Requirements: The Conirador must rrialch all grani funds, except for leasing funds'
with no less Ihan twenty-.five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources
for-ESG. SGIA & COG. For Continuum of Care geographic areas In which there rs more Ihan
one grant agreemenl. the twenty-five (25) percent match must be provided on a grant-by-grent
basis. SGIA funds requjre a fwenty-frve (25) percent coni/actor match of funds or in-kind
co.nlribulioris from other 'sources. Cash match must be used lor the costs of adiviiies that are
eligible under subpan D of 24 CFR 578.

InUJiUetofComniutOjfArtiftti Etfvthe Ctnlnao'1^)1:1,
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Exhibit d

3.3.1. Cash sources. Notwithstanding 2 CFR 200.306(b)(5). the Conlractor may use funds from any
source, including any other federal sources (excluding Conlinuum of Care program funds), as
well as State, focal, and private sources, provided that funds from the source are not

. sjatuicrlty prohibited to be used as a match. The recipient must ensure that any funds used to*
satisfy the matching requiremenls 'of this section are eligible under the laws govpm'ir^ the
funds in order to be used as matching funds for a grant awarded under this prograrn.

3.3.2. lA«kir\d Contributions;

3.3.2.1. The Contractor <T»ay use iho value of any real propeny. egwipmcnt. goods, or eervices
contributed to the p/oject es match., provided lhat If IS© recipient or subrecipiont had to

■pay for.them with granl funds, the costs would heve.bocn eligible under Subpert O or
in the case of MPCs. eligible under 24 CFR 578.71.

3.3.2.2. The requirements of 2 CFR 200.306. with the exception of 2 CFR 200 306(b)(5)
apply. "

3.4. • Schedule of Payments; Reimbursement requests for ail Project Cdsts shaD be submitted by
the tenth (lOlh) of each month for the previous month and accompanied by en Inyoide from
the. Contractor for the emcurii of each requested disbursement along with a payment request
form, as dcsignaied by the- State, which.ahaii be completed end signed by. the .Contractor-.
Invoices shaJI-be submitted promptly to the address Bsted above in section 2.1.2. Exhibit B. •

3.5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to (he-
HMIS Contract Administrator. "

3.6. The Stale shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt .of each
invoice, subsequent to approval ol the submitted invoice and if suffrdent funds are available.

3.7. . The Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department progroms and
services, and shall p/ovide additional financial 'mfofrnation.if requested by the State to vehfy
expenses. ^ .

is.. Rfeview of the State OlSBDowancc of Costs:-At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Repon. Termination Report or Audits
Frnandal Report, the Stale may review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all
payments made to date. Upon such review, the Slate shall disanow any Items of expenses
lhat are not daicrmined fo be allowable or are determined to be In excess of actual
ej^enditures. and shall.'by written notice spcdiying the disallowed expenditures. Informing the •
Cont/adcr of any such disallowance. II the Stale disallows costs for which payment has not
yel been made, it shall r.efuse to pay such costs. 'Any amounts awarded to the Conirador
pursuant to this agreement are subject to'rewpiufc. The fundis authorized to be expended
under this Agreement shall be used only lor services of the Homeless Management
Informallon System Project and administration provided by the Contractor (or the project
period and operailng. years of the Continuum of Care Program as approved by HUD end In
accordance with the Continuum of Care Program Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part 578. '

3.9. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified
.  In Exhibit A. Scope of Services and In this Exhibit 6.

3.10. Notwithstanding anything to the contra^ herein, the Contractor agrees that Jurying under this '
agreement msy be wiihhckf. in whole o» in part, in the event of non-compliance with any '
Federal or Slate law. rule or regulation apjjiicable to (ho seniices provided, or if the said
services or products have nol been satisfactorily completed In accordance with the terms and
coridtllons of this agreement.

IntXtgic iorC«nynwft/AX2jnc9t .. Eifu&a 8 Caurtdoi
V* lO ' '
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4. Use of Grant Funds;

4.1 Notwllhstanding paragraph 18 ot (he General Provisions P-37, changes timited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits
within the price limtiBtion. and to adjusting encumbrances between Stale Fiscel Yeans, may be'
made by wrincn egreement of both parties end may be made without obtaining approval ot the
Governor ervd Executive Council-rf needed and jusliried.

4.2 Contorrnance to 2 CFR part 200: Grani funds are (o be used only in accordance with
procedures, reputrements, end prtodples tpcclfted In 2 CFR part 200.

4.3 Contonrhance to 24 CFR 576.107: Emergency Soiulions Gram lunds are to be used only, in
accordance with kmis Component Eligible Costs.

4.4 Conformartce to 24 CFR 576.57: Continuum.of Cere Grant funds ere to bo usod only in
accordance with HMiS Component Eligible Costs.

5! ContractorFlnariclat Managernont Syatom: -r/7.

5.1 Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall estab5sh fiscal control and [fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement.of. and accounting for. grant funds and any required
nonrederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to fundt'disbursed in direcl operations of
the Conlrectof.

5.2 The Coniraaor shen maintain e financial rpanagement system thai complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.

l/uOvle (orC«<nmurnyACx/«e» . Controaorift)|U»;
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Expense Budget Detail For State Fiscal Years 2019,2020 & 2021

State Fiscal Year 2019: • :<•

Expense Item > - Federal Funds
State Grant

in Aid Funds
Total Slate Fiscal

' Year Budger Vendor Match

^ergency Soluliono Gront
dno-time ESG Oward
4/1/19-6/30/19

$39,570. $0.00 .  $39,570 $9,893

Sub Total 539,570 $0.00 T $39,670 $9,893

State Fiscal Year 2020:

Expense Item FcderalFunds
State Grant

In Aid Funds
■ Total State Fiscal

Year Budget Vendor Match

Slate Grant in Aid
7/1/19-6/30/20' $0.00 $109,802 $109,802 $27,451

Emergency Solutions Grant
7/1/19-6/30/20 ' $21,000 $0.00 $21,000 $5.'250

Cohlinuum of Care
One>time CoC- award
7/1/19-7/31/19

■'$11,706 $0.00 $11,706 - $2,927

Conlinuum of-Care
0/1/19-6/30/2O

$126,766- $0.00 $128,768 $32,192

Sub Total $161,474 $.109,802 $271,276 $67,620

state Fiscal Year 2021:

Expense Item Federal Funds State Grant
jri Aid Funds

Total State Fiscal
Year Budget

Vendor Match

Slate Grant in Aid
7/1/20-6/30/21

■50.00 109.802 $109,802 $27,451

Emergency Solutions Gram
7/1/20-6/30/21 :

$21,000 $0.00 . $21,000 $5,250 „

Continuum of Care H
7/1/20-7/31/20 $l'l.706 $0.00 . ■511.705 $2,927

Sub Total $32,706 $109,802 $142,508 $35,628
.

Grand Total $233,750 $219,604 $453,364' $113,341

uuUUe Iv ConvnunAy Mtircci
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SPEOAlPROVlSiOWS

Conuecto^s. Obligotions:, The Conirscto/ covenants end agrees thai en lundi receivad by (he Conireclof
undeMhe Contract than ba used only espaymem to the Contractor for aervtces provided to eligible- •:<
individuals end. in the fulherance of the eforesoid covenants, the Contractor hereby covtnenis ond'
egiooa OS foiio^:

1. Compllonco with Federal and State Laws: lithe Conirectcr is permined 10 deicrmirw theeiigibiroy
of individuoivsveh ciigibiitiydaiarminBiion shoube made in sccoroanco wiin'oppncabie icdd'oi ond
slate Iffwt. regulations, orders, guiddlirtes. poScies ond procedures:

3. Time and Mannar of Ootermlr^atldri; Eiigit^liTy deierminailorts shall be rnodo on forms provided by
(ho Deperlmeni for that purpose ond shaD be'rnede end rernodd el such times as aro prescribed by
the Oeportmeni.; '

• 3. Oocumente.ilon; In eddilion lo Ihe delermir>aiion forms required by (he OcporVncni. ihe Controctor
■  thai maintain 8 dele file on exh r'ecipicrti of servicoi hereundcr. which Tito (hail incfude OD

informaiion rtecessary lo support en eiigibiliiy deienninaiion ond such other infdrmetion es the
Oepartmoni requests. The Controctor shpu furnish the Depanment wlih eii forms and documontalion
regarding eilgibliiy determinations thai the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Heirlnoe: The Controctor understands that oD applcanli for services hereu^cr. es well as
individuals declared ineligible have o right to o (air hearing regarding that determination. The*
Contractor hereby covciants ond ogrees (Kal eD eppticants for sorvicoi ahal) be permlned to 011 out

'  en epplicalion form and.tnat exh oppiiconi or re-eppircanl shpii be informed of his/her hghi to e feir
hearing (n accordance with Deportment regulations.

5. Oroiuitles or'Kiciibachs: The Contractor ogrees that it is a brexh of this Ccntrxi to occepi or
moke a payment, gralylly or offer of employmeni on bchaV of Ihe Conlnicfor. eny Sub-Coniroctor or
the Stale in order lo influence the perfonmanceof the Scope of Work detolied In Exhibit A of this
Contrect. The.Stoiemey lefminate thbConircclond onysub-conirect or sub-egreemenlil jl is
determined thai payments, g/etuliias or cfle's oi cmploymeni.of any kirxl were offered o* received by

• ony ofTciais. Officers, employees or egents of the Contractor or Sub-Coniroctor.

6. Retroactive Faymenb: NotwQhsianding anything to the contra^ contained in Ihe Contact c in ony
other dxumenl. conirocl or urxfersianding. it is expressly understood end egreed by the parties
hereto, that r>o payments-will be nrtade hereurtder to reirntHirse the Contractor for costs incuned for
enyporposeorforenyacrviceapfOvkledloenyindividuatprtofTolhoEffxtlveOaieoflhoConifXt
and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by (he Controctor tor any services provided
prior to Ihe dele do which the individual applies for services or. (except os otherwise provided by the -v
federal r^uiaiions) prior to o deierminoHon ihoithe indtvldual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions Of Porchose: Notwithstonding anything to Ihe contrary contained in the Controcl. rtolhing
herein contained ̂ hoii be deemed lo obligate or require the Departmeni tp purchase services
harounder et e rale which reimburses the Contractor In excess ol the Cor^iracion costs, at a roie

. which exceeds the arnounts reasonable and r)ecessBry to assure the quality o( such service.' or at a
rate which exceeds Ihe rote cho/gad by the Contrador lo ineligibio individuals or other third parly
funders (or such service. If at any time duririg the term of this ̂ nlract or after rxolpl o( Ihq Final ■ ' /
Eipendiluro Report horoundor. the Oepa/tmont sh^ determine that the Controctor has used

-  paymohls hereunder to reimburse Items of expanab other than such cosis, or has rxervad payrneni
-  in excess of auch costs or in excess of such rales charged by the Contractor lo Ineligible, individuals

or other third party funders. the Oepartmeni may elect to: . ■
7.1. Renegoliolo Ihe rales for paymeni hereunder. in which event new roles shall be established; • •
7.2. . Oeduci from any future paymani to the Conlraclor the omounr of ony prior-reimbufsement in

excess of costs:

CmitihC-SpediiPrvrfiioni C»Ufiav tn'niiu
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7.3.. Demand (epayment of the eiooas payment by the Coniracior in which eveni failure to moke
luch repaymeni shall cohsiiiute en Event of Default hereunder. When the Contrector is
perrm'tt^ (0 determine the eiigtoQity of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Oepanment for ea funds psid by the Oepetment io the Contractor for sorvtces
provided to ony ir^ividuot who is found by the Oepanment to be ineligible for such services at -
any time dunr>g the period of retention of records esleblished herein.

RECORDS: MAtNTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFiDENTlAllTV:

6.' Mointananco of RecorOa; In oddiHort lo lhft.o>igjbiiilv records coecified above. Ihe Coniraetor •
cdvenorye ond ogrMS lo maintain the loUowIng records during the Contract Period: .
6.1. Fiscal Records;'boot(S. records, documerits ond other date ovidoncing and reflecting efl costs

ond other expenses incuaedby the Contractor in the performonce of the Contract. .er>d e'l
income received or coitacted by the Contractor during the Coniraet Period, said records to be

■ mointair^ in accordance with oaounting procedures ond prociices which sufTrcientfy ond
properly reflect oil such costs ond expenses, ond which ore eccepiabte to the Department, artd *
lo include, without Smitaljon. ell ledgers, books, records, and ohginal evidence of costs such es
purchase roguisiions and orders, vouchers, rapuisitions for materials, mvonlorias. vaiuafions of'
' in-kind conlr^otions. labor time cords, payrolls, and other records rcQucslcd or required by the
Ocparimertt.

6.2. Stalislicol Records: Slalisiicai. onrollmont. oltendarice or visit records for each racipleni of ■

services during the Coniroci Period, vmich rec^s shpD include on records.of applicdiion ond
eligibHily (including oH forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records

*' regarding the provision of ser^cas and allinvoices submitted to the Oepartmeni to obtain
paymoni for such services.

6.3. Medcdi Records: Where approprloie ond os proscribed by the Deparimeni roguiations. the
Contractor shall retain medicol records on each poiienl/recipieni of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall subrnii an annualoudii to the Oepartmeni wiihin 60 days otior iho close of the
. agency fiscal year. ii is recommended ihai the report be prepared in occordorve with the provision of
Office of Manogemenl end Budgel Circular A-tsi "Audits of States. Local Govcmmenis. end Non
Profit OrgaAiiotions' and the provisions of Standards for Audii of Govommenlal OrgenlteUons. . l*
Programs. Activities end Functions, issued by the US General Acosunii/tg Office (GAO siendards) es
they pertain to ftrtanclal compEehce oudiis.
9. t. Audit and Review: During the term of this ConUoct and Ihe period for retenlion hercunder^ (he

Departmoni. the LMIied States Oepatmohi of Heaiih end Human Services, and any ol their
• dosignaied rcpresenialives ahaii hove ecccss to all reports and records maintained pumuani to
(he ContracI for purposes ol audit, exemlnallon, excerpls end tronscripla.

9:2. Audit Lisbitilies: In addition to end not in any way in rimiialion of obligations of (he Contract, h Is
undersiood and agreed by (ho Contractor ihai thdCdniracior shall ba he>d liable for any 'stpto '
or federal eudil bxceptionsond ahsll return to the'Oepoitmenl. all payments made under the •
Contract to which exceptior^ has been taken oiiwhich have been d'seDowed because of such on
exception.

to. ConfldcniiBlity of R'ecords: An Inlormoiion. reports, end records meinlo'med hereunder or collected
•  in connection w<th (he perfomnohee of (he services end (he Controci shall ba confideniia) ond shaO r>ol
be disclosed by Ihe Contrector, provided however, (hai pursuant'to stale laws end Iho regulations of •
the Depedmeni regarding (ha use end disclosure of such intormalior^. disciosure/noy be made (o
public otficiali requiring such Inlormarion In connection wUh (hair oKicial duties ond for purposes
dircrclty connected (o Ike admlnlsiraiion of (he services end the Contioct; and provided further, (hot
(he use or disclosure by any pady of ohy informalion concerning a recipient for ony purpose r^ot
direcUy connected with the administrolion of the Department or the Contraclofa responsibilities wiih
rospect lo purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on .wrinen cor^seni of the recipient, his
flttoiriey or guardian.

Etf«bilC-Sp(6xlPro«<itDnt ConUMor UUlpi j

can>»* PijuJolS QJte 3'^'



DocuSign Envelope ID; 5A6113D7-7B97-4796-8025-86CE260AEE16 •

DocuSlgn Envelope ID: 70058BF5-lC38-48FO-BCEC-65EB22p03810

OoCuSlgnemttepC ID: 434A£E77-6O9M70i^.8OtMOCTSF3B3F89

' New Hfimpohlre Oepoflment of Heetlh end Human Service*
•  CihlWiC

NorvMlhslervdino tnyVii'tO to contrery coniained herein the eovenanit ond condil«ns contained in
the Paiagraph shall survive fhe lenninaiion of the Conireci for any reason whatsoever.

11. Repofto: Fiscal end Steiisticai: Tne Contreaor ogroes to submh the lodowing repons at the following
linnet if requested by (he Depertmeni.
11.1. . Interim Financial Re^s; Written interim rmancial reports conlaining a delaSed doscriplon of

all costs end notv-aDowabie expenses Incurred by (he Coniractor (o (he. date oi (ha report end
coniainlng such other iniormaiion as than be deemed sausioctory by ihe'Oepanmeni to
justify the roie ol payment hareunder. Such Financial Hepoti anal) be aubmined on the form
dasignatad by theOepartmani or deemed ulitfactory by Ihe pepartmeni. . ,

11.2. Final Roport. Aftnalrcpon mail be aubmined, within thirty (30) daya after the end of.lho term
Of this Contract' The Final Report chaii bo in s form sstisfectory to (he Oepartmeni ond chaii
contoln 0 iummory siotemeni of progresi toward goals ond objectives stated in the Proposal
ond other nformalion required by (he Oepartrricnl.

12. Completion of Services: Oisatlowance ol Cosis: Upon the purchase by (ho Oepartmeni of (ho
maximum rwmber of unfis.provided (or in the Contract end upon payment of the price limitalion
hsrour^or. the Contract end all the obiigoiions of ihe porties hereynder (except such obligaiionis as.
by the terms of (he Coniraci are (o be performed offer (he end of the term of this Contract ond/or.
survive (he termirvdlion of the Contract) shell lerminste. provided however. Ihot if. upon review of (he
Final Expenditure Report the Department ihol) disallow eny expenses claimed by the Coniracioras
cbsis herounder (he Oeportment shell retain the right,' ai its dacrei'on, to deduct (he errvount of such
expenses as ere disaibwed or to recover euch sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: Andocumcnit. notices, prets releases, research reports ond other materials prepared
.during or resulting from the performance of (he services of Ihe Coniraci shall include (he following
sletemcnl: <

13.1. The preporolion of this (report, document otc!) was finonced under o Conireci with the Slate
of New.Hempshi/e, Oepartmeni of HeaUi anb Human Sorvlcesi with funds provided in pan
by the Stale of New Hempshiro ond/or such other funding sources as were ovoiiable or
required, e.g.. (he UAiied Steles Oepenmani of Heeiiri end Humen Services.

14. Prior Approval ond Copyrtghl Ownonthlp: AD moterials (written, video, audio) produced or
' purchased under (he contract shall have prior epprovol from QHHS before prinilng. production,

distribution or use. The OHHS wfll retain copyrfghlownership (or ony and aD orfginaLmaloriais
produced, includmg, but not limited to. brochures, resourco di/octorie's. prolocoia or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shoo not reproduce any moicrials produced under the contract wiihoul
prior wrinen opprovo) from OHHS.

15. Operation of FaclliHet: Compllenco with l^wc end Regutatlono: In (ho operation of eny focilllies
for providing servicei. the Confractoi shall comply wi|h sH laws, orders ond reguiailons Of fcdcrol.
Glote, county end municipal ouihorilles ond with ony diieciion of ony Public Officer or officers
pursuanl lo laws which shall impose an order or duly upon the cqnlractor with respoct to the
opefoiion of the focrfity or ihe.provlsion of the services ei such facility, (f any govemmentol license or
permit shall be required (or the operaiion of the said (ecHiiy or the performance of (he said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, end will at oll times comply wiih ihe terms end
condit'cins of each such license or permit, (n cormeciion with (he foregoing requlremanis. the
Contractor hereby covenants and egroe's thai, during the term ol this Contreci the facilities shall
comply with oU rules, orders, regutaiions. end requirements ol <ho Stale Office of the F'ue fvlershai end
lha lo«l Tire prelection egency. and shall bo in conformance wtih locei building end zoning codes, by

. lows end regulations. .r:; ;r

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The!Conlroctor wiD provide en Equal Employrnenl.
Opportunity Plan (EEOR) lo the Off<e for Civil Righla, Off<c ol Justice Programs (OCR), if il. has
received e single bward of SSDO.OOO or more. If the recipient receives ̂ 5.000 or tiiore and has 50 or

EeUMC-SMdciPrAtitons Coni/aoonnimb —
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mofa em'pteyoei. h will mainlaln a current 6£0P on Tile end aubmil en EEOP Cortlficalion form to the
■ OCP. certiV'^g (hot b EEOP is on file. For recipients lecerving less than S25.000. or puOBc grantees'
with fewer (hen SO employees, regardless of the smouni.of (he owaid. the recipient will prov^o art
EEOP Certificelion Form toihe OCR cersifyirtg iiis not ret}uired'lo submit or rnaintain en EEOP. noA'
profit organiiations. Indian Tribes, end medical end oducaiionai intiituiions.ore exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but ore required to eubmtl a certifrcaiion form to the OCR to claim the exemption.

. .EEOP C.ertiflcoilon Forms ere available at: hnp:/Awwiv.ojp.usdo^aboui/ocr/pdfs/cen.pd/.

17. Limited Engl'sh Proficiency (LEPj: As c'artriod by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons wnlK limlled English ProTrciency. and resulting agency guidance, nslonel o<(glrt'
discrimination includes discrimination on iho basis of limliod English proficiency (CEP). To ensure
compliance with me Omnibus Crime Control and So'e Streets Act of 1968 end Title VI of the C'nfS
Rlghit Act ol 1064. Conireetom must loKe reasonable steps to ensure met LEP persons have
meehingfyi.eaess to Hs programs.

16. Pilot Program tor Enhancomonl of Ccniractor Employoo Whlstlobtowor Protections: The
following then opply to 00 contracts thai exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold es defined in 46
CFR 2.101 (CWffOAlly. S150.000)

CoyTAACTOP EMPiovee wwistleblower Ricmts aho Reouircmewt To Inform Empiovees of
W>0STi£eiOWEfl RiCMTS (SEP 2013)

(e) This comraci ond employees wodting on mis centred win be subjecl to the whisilebtt>wer righls
and remad'tes In the pilot program on Ccniracto' ompioyee wtiisitebfower protections esiebSshod ei
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the National Defense Authoruotion Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub L
112-239) or>d FAR 3.906.

(b) The Contractor shell inform rts employees in writing, In the predominant language'of ihe wortforce.
.  of emplo)rto whlsiioblower righii and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. os described in eeciron
.  3.906 6f the Fedemi Acguisition Peguloiion.

(cj Tne CeninMor ehotl Insch ihe substence of this cfauso, irKluding mis paragrgph (c). in oil
Bubconiracts over the simplified ocquisiiion threshold.

19. Subcontmctore: OHHS recognizes that mo Contactor rnoy choose to use subconlraclora with
greater expertiso to perform cerlein heoith core torvices or functions for efficiertcy or convenience'.
bul liie Contractor ehal) reiein irte rtsponsibitHir ond ecccuniabUiiy for the funclion(s). Prio/ to
subconirdciing. mo Contractor shaD ovaiuaio the subconi/ector'o ability to perform Ihe detcgatcd
functlon(s). This Is accomplished through a wrinen dgreemenl thai spates octrvllin and reporting ■
reiponsibilitres of the subcontractor ond provides for revoking the delegelioii or Imposing sanctions if
Ihe oubcontrectot'e pedormence b nol adequate. Sui^bniroclors ere subject to the same ccotrectuat
conditions as the Contractor end the Ccniroctorls lesponsiblo to ensure subcontractor com'ptiBnce
with those conditions.

When the Controclor delegates o funclipn to e subcontractor, tho Contractor shot! do the foltovving;
19.1. Evetuolo the prospective aubcontrsctor'i abBiiy to perform (he bci'rviiies. before deiegeiing

the function ■ ' »

19.2. Have o wrinen egreemerit with Ihe subcontractor mat specifies oclivilics ond reporling
responsibilities end how sandtons/revocaiion will be rnaneged if the subcontrector'e
performarvce Is r>oi odequale

19.3. Monitor tho subcontractor's pertormance on on ongoing bosis

EjOYWC- So(d^Proibion> . ContrMai iNtids

eoor/M Pap«4oiS Oxtc
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19.4. Provide to OKHS en onngel schedule idenlitying oQ tubconuodors. deloseled functions and
responsfbiliiies, end wtien the subcontreclofe pedormencc will tc reviewed

19.$. OHHS shell, et tit discretion, review end approve all subconttocls.

If the Conirador identifies deficiencies or sreii for imprpvenneni oit identified, iho Cont/sctor shot)
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the foOowtng terms shsli have the following meanings:
51%

COSTS: Shell mean those direct and indirxi items of eipense determined by the Oepanmeni to 00
ellowBtite and reimbursable'in accordance with cost end accovniing p/fnclpiBs esisbiiihod in ecco/donce
with slate and federal taws, regulations, rviies and ordere.

DEPARTMENT: NH Oepsitmeni of Health and Human Services.

. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean (hBt.seclion of the Contractor Manual which is
entilted 'FinendaiManegoment Guidetinas'and which contains the reguimions governing ihe fmanciai
octrvitics of coniroctor agencies which have contracted with the Stale ol NH to rccoive funds.

PROPOSAL: If eppiicabte. shall rncan the docurnem sut^iitod by the Coniracior on a form or fonns
re<}uired by the Oepanmeni and containing a desc/tpiion of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuols by (ha Cor^lroctor in accordance with the terms end conditions of the Coniraci and sotling forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT; For each service thol the Conirdctor is to provide to cifgibta ind'tviduois hareunder, shall mean that
period of lima or that apecifred octiviiy determined by ihe Ocpanmetti and cpocified in'Exhibil 6.of the
Contrad,

- FEOERAUSfate I^W; Wherever (edorol or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policiea. etc. oro
referred to in the Contraci, the caid neloronco shall be deemed to mean ell such laws..regulations, olc. es
ihoy maybe amondod or'revised from-lhe time to lime.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shell mean that docurnent prepared by the NH Oepartmeni of Administrative
Services containing o compilation of ell regutarons promutgaied pursuant to Iho Now Hampshire
Administrolive Prxedures Ad. NH R$ACh S41-A. for the purpose of tmplemcntirig Slate of NH and
f^ersiregulaiions prornuigeied thereunder.

SUPPLANTING other FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contfactcrguorar^ees thai furxfs provided under this
Contract win not supplant ony existing federal funds ov'oiiebie for these services.

(•.

Wiliu

Edfb'i C - Sped.i) Prc^tons
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Fonn P<S7, Oeneral Provisions

•  1.1. Section 4. Condhionel Nature of Aofeement. is teolaceO as (ollows:

I. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. ,

Notwiihstanding ony prdvistcn 0> this Agreemeni lo (he conirary; otl oOliQOlions.of (he State
he/'eufldef.-loduding viAthoul limiiaiion, (he co'niinvonce of paymenis. in whoio or Ia pert,
under this Agreemeni ore conltngeni upon continued eppropriation or svaliabilily of funds,
including ony eubseouent ehonges lo the appropriation or avoUabillty ot funds otfected by
ony sieio or fe.deroi leglnoiive or oxeeuitve oetiort tnei reduce>..ciiminoies. or, ctherwiae
mt^iTies Ihe approphet'on or evaiiebiiily ot fundog lor this Agreement and the Scope ot
Services provided in ERhibii A. Scope of Services, in wt%olo or in pan. l/^ r« event shall (he
Slate be liabio'for any payments hereunder in excess ol appropKaied or available lunds. In

• i. Ihe event o> a reduction, lerminaliort or modincaiiori ol appropriated or.avaDable funds', (he
' Slate sheD have the right to withhold payment until such funds become dvababte; if ever.
The Slate shall have lhe right to reduce, lerminaie or modify services under this Agreement
immedistely upon. giving (ha Conlracldr-notice of such reduction, lerminalion or
modiTcolion. The Siaie ihen'noi be required (o tronsler funds from any oiher source or
eccduni .irito Ihe Accounife) idemified in blocK i.6 of the Generoi Provisions. Accourii

. Number, or ony other eccounlln the eveni funds fife reduced or unavai^b'a.

.  1.2. Section 10. TffmjnjiliflQ. is amended by edding Ihe foltowing language: ''''

10.1 The Slate may termlnale the Agreement ot any time for any reason, ot (ho solo discretion of
Ihe Slate. 30 days after giving iho Contractor written notice thoi the State is exiro'sing its
opl'ion to terminate the Agreemor^i.

10.2 In (he event of early (ermir^alion. the Contractor shall, within iS days of rtotico 61 early
lerminalion. develop end submit to (he Stale a Transition Plan (or serVces under the
Agreerneni. including bui not llrn'iied lo. 'ident'ifying the presonl ond future needs of clients
receivir>g services urtder (he Agreement andostabCsfics o process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Cdhlrsctor sheD lully cooperate with the State prsl shall promptly provide deloHed
information to support the Tronsiiian Plan including, but not limited to.' ony information or
data requested by the State related to (ho termination of me Agreement and TrqnsHion F^an
end sfiaii provide ongoing ccmmvnicaiioh and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 in the event that sorv'cas under-the Agreemenl. Including but not timiied to clients racofving
so/vices-under the Agreement ere.irarSsilioned to having services delivered by another

• amity (nctuding contracted providers or (ho StdlQ. (ho Conlrecior shall provide o process lor
unlnlorruplbd delivery ol services in Ihe Trans'rtion Plan.

10.5 The Coriiractor shall establish a meihod of notifying cHenis and other affectad individuois
y  about me transition. Tho Coniractor shall Include the proposed commurticaiions In its

Transiiion Plan submlhed lo the Siaie as described ebove.

2. Renewal '

2.1. The Oepartmenl reservos Ihe right to extend this agreement for up to ftve (S) cddiiionoi years.
coniir>geni upon soiisloctory delivery of services, ava'ilable lundlrtg. writtor> egrecmeni of (he
parties end approval of Ihe Governor and Executive Council.

kiinyirprCemvOyMOjwi •Emr&n C-) - Ro^.l>tons/Emp4oro lo S4»ne«<oCont(va l.«ngv»90 Conij-pdy »vU«b <■—
ss-ibtsBHSOVHMis ?_'7/d
5g0*<se6o*ii Pijt'1 el 1 Dale >•> ' '
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CERTIFICATtON REGAROIHG DRUO-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Controcfot Ident'tfied in Section 1.3 oi (he Genem) Provrsions egreea to comply wim the prov^tlons of
Sediona 51S1-SlGOof (he Drug^FrM WoHiptace Aclof 1988 (Pub. L 10(^«90, Tula v. Subihto 0' 41
U.S.C. 701 ei aeq.). end Mhet ogreei tohavo (heCoAiQctorsfeofeeehtatlvd. as ioeniified Ifl Sw«fi»
1.11 and 1.12 of (ho General Provisions oiecuta ihafooowinQ Cerlilicaiion;

ALTERNATIVE!-FOR CRANTCES OTHER THAN INOIVIpUALS * *

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
U3 DEPARTMENT OF agriculture-contractors , .

This cenifiCBtion Is required by (ho re9yl.8iion» Implemenilng Sections $151-S160 ol (he Orug-Free
. WorttpOce Ad of 1988 (Pub. L. 100^.90. TdloV. Svbtille 0:41 u.S.C. 701 e(seo.). TheJ8nuory3l
1989 leguiatlons were ornended and published as Pen n'oi (he May 2S. 1990 Federal Regisier;(po9es
21661-2(691). 8^roqui^eertir<colionbyoran(eas.(and by inference, aub^ttntees andiub-
con(r3Clori).pfie/lo6ward.(hai(heywlnmainiainfldrog-fretwoniplace. Sodion 30i7.63C^c)of(he
re^ulalion provides lhal agiortlee (ond by inference, sub-grantees end ou^ontroctort) (hat is a State
may elect to make one certification to (he Oepartmefti in each federel fiscal year in lieu of ceriifiMies for
each grani dOdng tho.fcdetei fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificaie set bui below is 0 v-:-
maleriel repreienlotlon ol fact upon whict* reliance is pieced when (he agency awards (he grB/ti. FoUe
cartificaliort or vtoiolion cd Ihe cenificaiion shall bo giour^ds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termlr«ti^ of grants, or govemmerti wide Suspension or debarmeni. Contreclors uslr>Q this form should
Mr»dilto:

Commissioner

NH Oepartmeni of Hoailh end Human Services

129 Pleasant Sued.
Concord. NH03301-6505 .

1. The grentae certifies Ihai ii w2J or win continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
•  1.1. Publishing 0 slalement wHfying employees lhai (he unlawful mor»ufacture. disirfbulion,

dispensing, possession or use olb coniroiled substance is prohibiled in the greruee'i
workplace end specifying (he actions thai wOl be taken egainsi employees for violation of euch
prohiblicA; - 'i-

1.2. Establistting an ongoing drug-lree owaieness program to inldnn employees eboui
(.2.1. the dangers at drug obuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The groniee'e policy of mainleining 0 drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any ovailablp drug counseling, rehobiiiteiion. or)d employee assistance programs: end
1.2.4. The pcnaftles that may be imposed upon employaes lor drug abuse violalcns J

occurring in the workplace: ■ '
1.3. • Making ii s requiremeni thai each ornployca lo'bo engaged In the performanca of the grant.be ,

given 0 copy of ihesiaiemeni required byporogroph (a):
1.4; Nolityir>g the crnployee In the Udemeni required by paragraph (a) thai, as 0 c'ondilion of

cmploymeni under lha g/anl, the omptoyea.wHj
1.4.1. Abidcbythelefmsoflhesiaiem«fti:ftnd •

*  1.4.2. Notify the emptoyer In wriiingol his or her conviction for oviotalion of ocr1mir\el drvg '
slolule occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days ofie' such
conviction:

1.5. Notifying Ifie agency in writing, wnlhin tan calendar days ofl'cr reccrvlng notice under
eubpe'egraph V.4.2 from qr> employee or otherwise receiving oclue) notice of such conviction.
Employer* of convicted employees must provide notice, inctuding position iHie. lo every grant
officer on whose greni ocCrvify the convicied employee was working, unless the Federal agency

■yi . Ejtfibb 0 - CcniJiuton rtgtrdlno Drug Fm CcnliaelMlftllsri
>Wflr*(ttoeReqwiJt'neni* t t la

ttvo^OrtioM) Pisit «r2 Diia -V



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5A6113D7-7B97-4796-8025-86CE260AEE16

OocuSign Envelope ID: 70058BF5-1C3M8F0.BCEC-65EB22003810

OooOtgn Cnveiepe 10:4Z4A8£77.e09M70A-eOIM9C78^2B3F99

New'Hampshire Oepartmeni of Heatih and Humsn Services
Eihlbtt D

has tfesionoied e cenifai poini for ihe receipt oi-such notices.' Notice shot) include ine
ieenDTcotion Aumt>er{i)bfeach otfeciedgmni:

1 .S. Tokirtg one of the foOovving bctlons. wtih'n 30'colenbdr of rece'rving notice under
luPperograph 1.4.2. with respect to eny employee who la so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel octbn against such on employee, up to and including

(enncnaiion. consistent with the requirements of the Reh'abiiiieiion Act of 1973, os
'  omcn^ed: or

1.6.2. Requiring' such employee to panicipote idiislacioriiy irt a drug ehuse essisiance or-
rohapniiation'pregrom opprovoo tor swcn purposes Dy o Fcoe'oi. Stole, or local heotih,
low onforccment. or other Appropriate ogenc/.

1.7. Making a good-ffiith eKon to continue io'malnloin o dnig'-free woitptaco through
•  impiameniaOon 0/paragraphs 1.1.1,2.1.3. V4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insen irt the space provided below the «ke(i) tor the performar>ce oi work done in
' connect'on whh Ihe specific groni.

Place of Pedormsnco (slfcoi cddress. city, county, state, zip.code) (fist each location)

Check. □ if ihoro aro wo/kplacos on ftlo thai are not idenilfiod hero.

Oaie

Conlrador Namo:

Nsme: (^dvid Ebctiach
Tib: .EsccuiiveOirQctOf

CuO*eri««)i>

£jMCh 0 - CcnIftciOen rv^rdng OMg'Frt*
wotpjoe PequytrntAU

Pip»7cJ7

CotrvOO) liUlidi
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CERTfFlCATlQM R6CAR0INQ LQHBY|NC

The Contractor identKiod in Sociion t .3 of iho G«ner?i Provisions egreos to comply wlih.iAe provisions of
Secfion 319 of Pubic Low 101.131'. Covemmoni wide Guidance lor NewReiirWtofts on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C. 1332. end tunher egrees (o have (he Conlrector't rcpresenlalivc. es (deniificd In Soclrone 1.11
ond 1.12 of the Generel Provisions execute ihe following CeniTicdlion;

US department OF health AND HUMAN SERVlCeS • contractors
- US OEPAATMENT OF eOUCATtON . CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT.OF AGRICULTURE. CONTRACTORS . -

Progrems (inoicete eppflcobie progrerri covered):
'.Temporery Asilitonco to Needy Pomfiies under Thie IV.A
*ChOd Sup^ EnlorcemerM Progrom under Title IV-O
'Sociel S'crvicos BlocA Grent Progrem under Title XX
'Medicaid Progrom under Tine XIX
'Community Services BlbcA Crenl under TtUo VI . ^
'Child Core OevetDpmerM Block Qront under Title IV

Tho undersigned conirios. toihe bcii of his or hof knowledge and oeiiel.'ihei;

1. No Federal opproprtoted funds have been peid or wio be paid by or on bohaii of the urxiorslgned. to
ony person for influencing or etiempiing loinftvcncd on officer pr-ompbyee of eny agency, a Member-
of Congress, en ofTcpr or employee ci Congreu. or en employee of 0 Member of Cor^gfoss In

• connection with the awarding of eny Federol conlracti conlinuaUon, renewol. emcAdment. or
modirlCOliOf^ of ony Federal conlroct. groni. lofln. or coopcrotivo egreemeni (and by ipecifc mcnibn •.

'  aub-graniaeor aubcontrocior).
•3

2. If eny funds other then Federal appropriated funds have boon paid or win be paid lo any.person for
infboncing or onompiing to innirence on officer or employee of ony ogency. a Member of Congress,
on officer or employee of Congress, or en employoe of a Member of Congress in connection with ihis
Federal contracL gram. ban. or coopereirvo ogroemoni (and by specific menion 6wb.gr8nico p/ aub-
contractor), ihe undersigned shall complete end lubmii Standard Form ILL. (Disclosure Form to
Repon Lobbying, irt'eccordanca with it instruclbr>s. attached and Identified as Slor>dard ExMbrt E •■.)

3. Tho undersigned shot) require that the language of (his cenificaiion bo included in (he award
document for aub-awards at elttiers (including subconiracts. sub-grants, end contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative ogroements) and'thai an sub-recipients ihati certify end disclose accordingly.

This cenificolion Is a maicrlal reprasentation of fact upon; which reliance was placed when this tronsoctidn
was made or entered into. Submission of this cen'ncaiioh Is e prorcduisito for making or enlcrirtg irtio (his
irsnsaclion Im^sed by Secltpn 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person wf« fails lo fdo the repuired
ce/tificelion shall be subject to o cmT penaRy of noi less (han 110.000 and not more than $ 100.000 for
each such failure.

Conlractor Name: '•

w

Dale Name: Dovid Ebcrbach
Tlll^; ExeculrveOirecior

EOii&k E - CeniAu^ Rc^mlne Looe>(ng ComrKtortniibti
cuowviiwo Pipe I ol 1 Oiti ? • 7' f^
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CEf^TlFlCATlOW REGAROING OEBARMENT SUSPENSION '

ANO OTHER RESPQNSlBlUrf MATTEftS

The Controcior Iderutfied In SecilOh 1.3 of Ifte Gentfel ProMSions egreei lo conply with the provisiona of
Exocutiva Off<eof Iho P/oiideni. Ezoeulive Order 12&49 end45CfR Po/1 TBrogording Determent.
Suspension, and Other Retpor^sibilily Manors', and further ogroos to have the Contractor's
represeniotivo. 9i (doniified in Sections 1.11 er>d 1.12 of the-Certerai Provisions execute the fofioiving
Ccrtificotioo: •

instructions FOR CEATlFlCATIGN. '
t. Gy ̂ ning and submining this proposal (cdniraci). (he prospocilvc primary participant is providing tha

'cortifcaiion set out below..

2. The Inability 0' 0 person to provide ihe cettineetion required betow win not necesserliy result in der^iei
of padicipalion in this covered irensaction. li necessary, iha-proipectivt panicipant shag oubmh an
eiplanaiion of why h canrvot provide the ccrtlflcaiton. The cenirrcotloh or erplartaiion will bo
cohsidefed in cortncction wtth (he NH OepartmenI of Health Ohd Humors Services* (DHHS)

' delermir\8tion iMtelher 10 ertler into Ihn (ransact'on. How^e'. foilure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish e certificaiion or an explanation shall drsquatify auch person from partJcipaiioh in
this Ironsoction.

3. The cerirfieeiioh in this clause is a moiariai represonialion of fact upon which reliance was pieced
when OHHS determined to enter into'this Iroruaction. If it is tale' delermined thai the prospoctrvo
phmory participant knowingly rei^ered on erroneous coniTicalion. in addition to olher rem^ics
ovaSabia to the Federal Govemmeni. OHHS may lehnVteie this transaction for cause or doiaub.

4. The prospective primary panicipeni shaO provide bmmediste wrinen notice to the OHHS agency lo
whom this proposal (coriirsct) is submitted H at any time the prospective primary porticipani learns
that bs certification wps erroneous when subrnitted or hos become erroneous by reason ol chonged
circymsiances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.' 'debarred.' 'suspended.* 'ineligible.' .'tower tier covered
Irensaction.* 'parliclpani,* 'person.* 'primary covered l^saciion.' *^neipai.* 'proposal.' end
'voiunlsrky exctuded,' as used in this clause, navo the meanings soi.oui in the Dermhions and
Coverage sect'ions of Iha rules imptemenilng EzrcuCrve Order t2S49; 4S CFR Part 76. See (he
anacheddefinitions. . ... c-

6. The prospecl'ive primary pertcipar^l agrees by submining this proposal (comrgci) (hat. should lha
proposed covered transaction be cntored into, h ihao noi knowingly enter into any towe' tier covered
tronssctlon wtjh s person who is debarred, suspendeil. deda/ad Ineligibla. or voluntarily excluded
frorri partic|palior> tn this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospect'rvo primary participani further ogiees by submining this proposal thai it will include ihe
clause (iUcd 'Cortincation Regarding Oabarmeni. Suspension, ir^el>gib^}lty and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tiei Covered Transactions,' provided by OHHS. wiihoul modificalcn. in all lower tier covered
transactions ond in oD so^ciiaiions for lower tier covered Ironsoctipns.

6. A part'cipani in e covered trensadion may raly upon a ceriiTicsron of e prospectiva parliclpani in a*
• towor tier (^vorod transaction (hat it Is not debanod. auspendad, ineiigitHa. or invoiuniarUy excluded
from the covered transaction, unless li knpivs thai the cartificot'ton is erroneous. A participani moy
decide the method end frequency by which it determines the eiigibiiily of ks prmclpois. Each

.. participani mey. but is'nol requ'tr^ lO; check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

S. Nothing coritained in (he foregqing shoD be conslruod to require cslabiishrheni of a system of records
in order (o render in good faith ihe certificalion required by (his deuse.' The kr^odgo end

EtfiPhF-CcniToiionRcpvCtnQOctuiircn.SuipCAiton Conuiaor Inllttb
VdOiKe'Rct^jibZhyUxnco "y to

CuO*«nimi> P191I.0I2 Data ^'^''1
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in/ormaiion cl e partkipen) b not requirtd to eiceed ihat'which b normoi>7 posseiiecl by o pMdent
-  person In the ordinary course of business deolingi.

10. Except lor ironsbctions eiAhorbcd under porog/eph 6 ol these tftstrudions. 11 e pancJpani in o
covered Irentaclion knowingly cnlfirs Imp a tower itor covered imnsactiori wiih o pen^'v^ b
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or volumarOy excluded from porticipalion in Ihis transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Qovtmment. OHHS may lermtnaie this Iransaciion
lor causo or dclauQ.

PRIMARY COVERED TRAWSACTIONS
11. The prosp'ociivo primary paniciparti ceniTces lo ihe boti of iis knowledge orvd beilel. thai it or^ hi

prir^cipois:
11.1. oro rtoi presently deborred. suspended, proposed lor debermeni. declared Ineligible, or

volumerOy excluded from covered tronsaclions by any Federal deparimeni <y agency:
11.1 hove not wilhin o Ihree-year period preceding Ihb proposal (contrDCI) been ccjnvictod ol or had

0 civil judgment rendered agairisl them for commission of Irsud or a crimihpl offense in
connection whh obtaining, ociempiing to obtain, or porforming a public {Federal. Stale local)
Irensaction-or a coniraci under .a pubfic (rensaclion: violation ol Fbdersi or Slsle enjiirusl
statutes or comrrusston of ombeutomeni. ihef). forgery, brfbory, faliiricaiion or dcstniction of

■ records, molting falsa siatemenis. or receiving stolen property: -
11.3. are not prosoruty indcied tor otherwise criminally or dviity chaiged by a governmental entity

{Federal; Slate or locei) wiiti commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (i)fb)'
of Ihb oenificaiion: end

11.4. have not wiihin o three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
trensociions (Federal. Stale or tocal) terminoled for cause or default.

12. Where the prpspeclfve primory penlcipeni b vnnble lo certify lo.ony ol the stotemenis in this
certincolioA. such prospective (»rticipani shananachen exptarvoiiori to this proposal (contract). <:

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. 6y elgni^ end cubmfnlng this lower Her proposoi (comroci). iho prospocHve lower liar perticlpani. as

defined in 4SCFR Port 76. certifies to the best ol its knowledge and beKeltheili and iis principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suipendcd. proposed for dcbarmam.-declared Ineligiblo. or

votuniarity excluded from participoiton in ihb tronsaeiion by ony loderai department or ogency.
13.3. where the prospective lower tier participant b unable lo certify to ony of ihe above, such

prospeclrve panidpBni shall attach en explarvation lo this proposal (coniracf);

. 14. The prospeclrve towtr tier particlpam further agrees by submitting this proposoi (contract) thai h win
inciuda this Clause entitled'Certification. Regarding Oebannenl. Suspension, tneligibiliiy. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' wHhool rnodlfcalion in oil tower tier covered

„  tronsaclions ond in oU solicitations for lower Her covered Iranseciions. ,.

Corvlre'clor Name:

1-7-/1
Date . Name: D.avid Ebc/tach

Titia: Executive Director

emibil f - CciiCiU'Jon RntiiOVx) Dcbarmcnt. Stopaulon Co<«aaor li^Iab
AndO)<<Rtipcntlbt%Minca • ..■
~  Ptpetoi? Otn
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CCftTlFtCATIONOFCOMPUANCEWTM REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
federal NONOISCRIMINATION. equal TREOrMENT OF FAITH-BASEP ORGANIZATIONS AND

.  • WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Conirector idofltKied In Section 1.3 ol iho Genorol Proviiions egteot by ••gnatute of (be Conireclo''i
representeiiveesideniifiedln Sections 1.11 eno 1.12 oMbcGeAerei P^ovlslona. 10 execute iNe foOowtng
cenihcBiion;

COfllrado/ wiU comply, and will requi/r any lubsreniees ot eubcont/octore lo comply,.wHn any opplcatFa
federal nondisciimirunion requirementv wbicn may include:

\

- (he Omnibve Crfana CoflUof and Safe Sireeia Act of V966 (42 U.S.C. Section 37890) wfilcn prohieiia
reclple'nti of fedcrDLrur>dtng undo/ (M> iieiute Irom Olscdmlnaiing. oHher in empioy/nant proctiee* or In
(he denvery of eorvtcai or benoflti. on iho bosli of qco. color, religion, natcnoi ortgin. and box. The Ac(
reovires certain rectpienla (0 produce an Equal Empioymenl Opportunity Plan;

> Ihe Juvbnile JuUlce Delinquency Prevention Ad of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Seciion SS72(b)} which odopis 6y
ralaronca.'tha clva rlghii obiigaiiofli of (ho Sofa Stroolt M. Rocipianlt of fodorat funding under (hlo
ttalule are prohio'ned from diocnrninoiing. either in empto^eni proctices or in the delivery of eervlcea or
benents. on Ihe basis of race, color, religion, noijor^l origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Chril Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section jOOOd. which prcihiblis recipients of federal rinoncla!
assislance from discriminating on the basis of rttce. color, or national prfgin in any program or actryrty);

• the RehablKifiiton Act of 1973 (20 tj.S.C. Section 794), which prohbiis recipients of Federal Tuiandal -
aas'Stance from discrimlnaling on the basis of disability, in regard to employment end the delivery of

• services or banofdc. In any prograrif) Of OCliviiy:

• Iho Americans whh Oiipbtliiios Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12) )l -34). which prohibits
discrimineiion end ensures t^uel opponJniry for persons wlih disabilities in employmeni. Slate and local
government leivicas, pubEc occommcidalions. commercial facitilies*; end transportation:

• the Education Amendmenli of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections I68.1. 1683,1685-66). which prohibit
discHminalion on Ihe basis of sex in federally assitied education programs;

• the Age Discriminalion Aci of 1975 (42 U.S:C.'Sections 6106-07). wh'ch prohibits discrtminaiion on ihe
basis of age in programs or ectiviiies receiving Federoi rinenciai ossislance. It does not iriciude

.employment discAmir\aiion;

• 28 C.F.R. pi. 31 (U.Sj Oeparimenl of Justice flegutaiions - OJJOP Gront Progroms): 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Oepartmeni of Justice Regulations > Nondiscrtmlno'llon; Equal Employrnent Opportunity; PoGcies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equalproiMtion of the laws (or folth based ersd'community
orgonicellons); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundameniei principles end policy-making
cnierio for partnerships wiih lallh-based and neigh^rhood organUolions;

• 26 C.F.R, pt. 36 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations • Equal Trealmenl lor Fehh-Based
Org3naaliont);endWhistleblower proteciions 41 U.S.C. §4712 ervd TtieNationoi Defense'Aulhorlzalion
Act (NOAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enaaed January 2. 2013) the PiW Progrom for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistieblpwer Protections, which protects employees ogainsi
reprise! for ceriein whistle blowing eclivbies in connection wiih federal grenls end contracts.

The cediricale set out below is a material represenieiion of fad upon wf^ch reliance is placed when (he
egency ewardi Ihe gront. False ceniricatioo or vfoiaiion of (he cohiricetion shell bo grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or lermlrtalion of grants, or goyemment wide suspension or
dobarmcnl.

V7ttu
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lA the event oEederolor Staleceurt or Federol or Slate edminalraiive agency makes a Hnding of
discriminattoh after q due procesi hearing on (he grounds.of race, color, religion. naiiorLai origin.» eex
egalnsi d recipient of funds.■the recipient wiD forward o copy' ol the frnding lo the Off«o for .Civil Rrghia, to
iho oppiltable conirecilr>g egency or division within (he Oeparimeni of Heanh ond Human Services, ar^
to the Deparimeni of Heallh artd Humart Services OfTce of the Ombudsman.

the Cor>lroctor idemhiedln Section i.3ot(heCenetei Provisions agrees by signeiurc of (he Cor^trectoi's.
rcpreseniotive os kfcmineo in Sections i.Vi ond t.t2 of ine Conomi P/ov<tions. to execute trte following
ceriifcaUon; / • '

I. By signing end submlning this proposai(conimct) iheConiracioi ogrces locompfy wiih the provisions
Indicated obovo.

1-7-lf
Oaia

Contractor Name;

Name; Oavid Ebctach
Tida:. Executive Oireclor'

K  ;
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CERTIFICATION REGAftOlHC tNVIftONMENTAl TOBACCO SMOKE

Public lew Pert C • Envt/onmeniel Tot»cco Smoiie. else known es ihe Pro-Children Act o> \99*

(Acl). requires (hel imoking rtot be permiRed in ony potion of dny indoor facility owned or leased or
conlrected for by on entity end used routinely or reguleity fo' the provision-ol heatlh. day core, education,
or libroryeervices to children under the age 0' 16. dihe lennces ere funded by Federal programs either
direciiy or through Siete or iocel goven^nts. by Federal groni. coniract.' loeni or-ioen gueieniee. The .
low doei rtot oppbr lo ehUd/en*# oervicos previood in p^ivaio rosidencot. iae«Eiii«» funded eoieiy by.

Medicore or Medicaid funds, and portions of fecilhies usod for inpotieni diug or olcoho) trcstmenl. Foilure
to comply with the provisions Of the law mey resuD in the imposition of o civil monolery penalty of up to

• $ tOOO per day and/or the impositian ol en edmlnJsueiive compiUnce order on ine responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Seaion t.3 of the Genera) Provtslona egrees. Oy signaiure of the Controcto/'s
represembtive OS ideniiricd in Section t.tt end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to eirecuie the following
certification: .

1. By signing and submltllng mis controci. the Contractor agrees to rnake reasonable efforts lo comply
with all opplicable provisions of Public low 103-227. Part C.' known as Ihe Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Conirectoi Neme:

1-7-lt ■' ______
Date N^e: Odvid Eberbach

Tltlo: Eiecutive Director

EdAii H - CciV>ui)dn PeaiRCng ContrvdO( Miid*
EnvlronmtmpTobscCdSmtM •> 'y /a
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTAetLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT . ^

The Cofltracior identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply viriih the Heal^ insurance PortatMiify and AcMuntabiiity Act, Public Law 104-191 anp
wiih the Standards for Privacy and Securiry ol Individually identifiable Health information. 4S
CFR Pens 160 and 164 epplicable to business essociates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate* shall nican (he ConUactor and subcontractors and agents of (he Contractor that

recefve. use or have access to protected health information under this Aoreement arSd 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Depahment of Health and Human Services..

(1) Oennttlons. - ■

a. 'Breach! shall have the same meaning as (he term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of riiie 4S.
Coda of Federal Regulations.

* b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations, • . ' /

*1. h

c. 'Covered Eniitv* has the meanino oiven such term in section 160.103 of Tiue 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Desionaled Record Set* shall have the same meaninp as the term 'designated record set' ,v..
•in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AQoreofllion' shall hsve the seme meaning as the' term 'data aggregation* in 45 CFR
Section 164.501. ■

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
■. In 45 CFR Seclionl64.501.

g. 'HITECH Art* means the Health information Tc.chnology for Economic and Clinical Health ^ - .
Ad. TiiieXili. Subiiiie 0. Pan 1 6 2 oi the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009..

h. -HIPaA' means the Health insurance Pohabiiity and Accounlabitity Act ol 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards (or Privacy and Security.of Individually idenlifiabie Health '
information. 45 CFR Paris. 160,162 and 164 ar^ amendments thereto.'

'individuar shell havo tho same meaning as the term 'individual* In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and Shalt include a.pe'son who qualifies as a personal represeniaiive in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

j. 'Privacv Rule* shall mean the Standards for Privacy.of Individually Identifiable' Health
information at 45 CFR Parts 160dnd lOf.-promulgeted under HIP^ by theUnlied States
OcpartmenlolHeaithandHumanScrvices.

k. 'Proiecied Health Information* shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information* In 45 CFR Section 160.103. limiied to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

yjou Ej^WJI CcrU/iOW WsIW C/ ̂
HrU^lrUWiOP Pdni&i% AO
euUnott AsteOttt'A^irvnvni -
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I. 'Reouired bv Lflw* shall have Ihe same meaning as the Icrm Veqgirod by law" rn 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Oepanmeni of Heaiih and Human Services or
hlsAier deslgnee.

n. 'Sgeufttv Rula* shaU mean the Security Siandsrds for the Protection of Electronic Protoctod'

Health Information ai 45CFR Part'i64. Subpad C. and amendmenis thereto,
r  • . •

o. "Unsecured Proiecied Heaim intormaiion" means protected health inforrTtaiion that Is nol •
secured by a techrtoiogy stsndord (hei renders protected heaiih Informaiion unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Indivtduats and Is deveio'ped or endorsed by
a standards developing otganUaiiorH thai is accredlied by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terrns not otherwise derined herein shell have (he rrieaning'
established under 45 C.F.R. Pans i60. -i62and 164. as amended from lime to time, end the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Buainesa Associate Use or>d Disclosure of Protected Hgahh Information.

e. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of (he Agreement. Further, Business Associate, Including but not limited to all
lls.direclors. officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain-or transmit
PHI in any manner that would consiilute'a violation of Ihe Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For (he proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
M. As required by law, pursuant to the terms sel forth in paragraph d. below: or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c.'- To the extent Business Associate is pormitied under the. Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obiain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)

*' reasonable assurances from ihe third partyj that such PHI vriii be held conridentially ar>d
used or further disclosed only as required by law ot,for ihe purpose for wtiich It was
disclosed to (he third party; and (ii) an agreemeni from such third party to notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches bl the conridentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtarned
knovHedge of such breach.-

d. The Business Associate shaij not. unless such disciosure is reasonabiy-neqeissary io ■
provide services under Exhibii A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis (hat it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so ihai Covered Entity has an opportunity to ob)ect. to (he disdosi/re end
to seek appropriata relief. If Covered Entity, objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shell refrain from disclosing (he PHI until Covered Entiry has exh'dusied all
rem^ies. •

e. If (he Covered-Entity notirtes (he Business Associate (hai Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above (hose uses or disclosures oi security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to (he Privacy and Security Rule, (he Business Associate
shell be bound by such additiorui restrictions and shaii not disclose PHI In vioiatlon of
Such additional restrictions and shall abida by any addiilonoi security sareguards)

()) Oblloatlona and Actlvltloa of Bualrtpao AaaQciato.

a. ' The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Offtcer'immediatcty
after iho Business Assodate becomes aware of arty use or disclosure of protected

•. health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
•  protected health Information indioi any security inddeni that may have an impact on the

protected health Information of the Covered Entity,

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes. '
aware of any of the 8t>ove situations. Tho risk assessment shall Include, but not be
•iimiiedlor

o The nature er>d extent of the protected health information involved, induding tho'
types of identifiers and the tikelihood of re-idenlification:

o The.unaulhoriied person used the protected health information or to w(wm the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether (he protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to tt)o protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall compteta the risk assessment within 48 hours of the '•
breach and Immediately report the findirigs of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. ' Business Associate shall make available ab of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure ol PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on beKalf ol Covered Emity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require aD of iis business associates that receive, use or have
access to phi under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.-lncluding
tho duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section'3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct ihird 'perty beneficiary .of the Contractor's business associate.

i*. agreemertts with Contractors intended business'asspoates, who will be receiving PHi
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pursueni (o Ihis Aore«menl. wlih righisof enforcement and indemnificaiion from $ucti
business assodaies wbo shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement tor the purpose of use and disdosure of
protected heaithlnformaiion.

f.. Within five (5) business days of receipt of 8 wntten request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shaD make avaliade during normal business hours at its offices an
reeorOs, books, ooreemems. policies end procedures retaiing lo the use sr%d disclosure

of PHI to the Covered Entity.- for purposes of enabfirtg Coverod Entity to delermine
Business Associate's comdiance wiin ihe terms of the Agreement.

g.> Wihin tan<tO) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to phi in a Designated Record Set to iho
Covered Entity, ores directed by Covered Entity, to en individual In order lo meet the
requirements urtdei CFR Section 164.524.

h. Wthin len (10) business days of receiving a written request horn Covered Entity for en
amendment of PHI or e record about an indrvtduai contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such Phi available to Covered Entity for
amendment and'incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CER.SecUon 164.526.

1. - Business Associate shaD document such disclosures of PHi and Intormaiicri related to
'' such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to e request by en

individual for an accounting of diisctosurcs of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
l64-.52fi.'

j. ' Within ten (10) bus'mess days of receiving a written request from Coveted Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill tis obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.526.

k. ' In the event eny individual requests access to, 8mer>dmeni of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)'
business days forvyard such' request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. Hqwever. if .forwarding the.

;  Individual's request to Covered Entity-would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA arid (he Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
Shalt instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and noUfy
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

f.: Wilhin len (tO) business days of lermlnalioh of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Busine'ss Assocjaie shall return or detiroy. as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI

.  received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in conneclion with ihe
Agreement, ar>d shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. ll return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed lo In/
the Ag/eemem, Business Associate shall continue to extend Ihe protections of (he
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disc'osures of such PHI ip those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeaslble. for so long as Business
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Associate maintains sucK PHl. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requir.es (hat (he
Business Assodaie destroy any or at! PHi. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that (he PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covored Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limiiaiion(s) in its
NoticO'Of Privacy Practices provided to ir\d>viduals in oecordonce with 4S CPP Section

"  1&4.S20. (0 (he extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use orOisdosure ofPHl.

b. ■ Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
qI permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHi may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 Of 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c>.;. Covered entity shell promptly notify Business Associaie of any restrictions on (he use or
disclosure of PHI ih'at Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent .that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI. '

(6) Termtnallon for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and. conditions (P-37) of this
Agre'emeni the Covered Entity may immediately term'mato the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of e breach by Business Associate of the Bus'mess Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either Immiediatoty
terminate the Agreement or provide en opportunity for Business Associate to cure the

:•> alleged breach within a tirneframe spcciHed by Covered Eniiiy. if Covered Entity
determines (hat neither terminatipn noi cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6)' Miscellaneous j:.- ;

8. Dermilions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as (hose terms In the privacy and Security Rule, emended
from time to lime. A reference in (he Agreement, as arnendod to include this Exhibit f, to
0 Section-in the Privacy and Security Rule rneans the Section as in effect or as .
amended. .

;b. Amendment. Covered Enlity and Business Assodate agree to lake such'eciion as is
necessary to ernend the Agreement, from ilme toiime as is necessary for Covered '
Enlity to comply with the changes in iherequiremenis of HIPAA. the Privacy er>d
Security Rule, and dpplicat>le federal and state law. .

'

c. * Data Ownership. The Business Assodaie acknowledges thai it has no ownership rights
with respect to Ihb PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Inlefpretatipn. The parties agree thai any ambrguify in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permil Covered Entity to compfy wiih HIPAA, the Privacy end Security Rule,
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SgQrgQfllion.' If Bhy term or condilion of (his Exhibit I or (he epplication (hereof lo erty.
person(€) or cifcumslanco is held invaW. such Irtvalidity shall not affect other icrnis or
condiliorts which can be O'ven effect without ihe invalid term or condilion; lo this end the
terms' end conditions of (his Exhibit I are decJared severebie.

'v'

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit! regarding the use enddisclosureofPHt. return or
tfesiruelion of PHI. einer^sions of the. protections of tho Aorcemeni in section (3) I. (he
defense end indemnirtcelion provisions of section (3) e one! Paragraph 13 of the •
Stenderd terms artd" corrditions (^-37)! shall survive the icrrhlnotlon of the Agrccnior\t.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto hflve duly executed ihis Exhibit i.

Oepannynt of.Heaith'end Human Services

The Stale

Institute for CommuAily.Alilances

the Conl/acior

STgtialure of AulHo/tfed Representative ^"^Ignalure of Authorized Representative

riM,e.hM^:f^anknt/Ml) OavidEberbach
. Name of Authorized Representative

rVf

Name of Authorized Represenlativc

Executive Director

Title of Author'ized Representative

Date

Tiiie of Authorized Representative

Date

y30i* ^oni
HetfiMruurinoe
evUnen AjjoOKc AprM/neni

C

ConVfCtO' NU«rs;
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CCRTlRCATtON REOAf^OINC THE PEOERAt. FUNDING ACCOUHTABIUTY AND TRAWSPARENCV

i  ACT ATAt COMPUANCe

The Federpl Punding AcceoAtobir<tyenO Tronipe^ency Act (FrATA)reQuire9 pn'me ows/deoi ot inOividuol
FeOerslfimnls equst to orgrostof then $25,000 o<^owa<^e<) on or ofter Octobei 1. 20l0.<orepoji on-
data roiatod to cicciAlve compensatiori end esiocUied rm-tier sub-grenti of $25,000 or more, if the
Iniiiel eweid is betowr $25,000 but subaedueni orsni modircaUons reauD (n e total oward equal (6 or.over
$25,000. the ewsrd i» sub)ect to the FFaTA lepoding requiremenia. es of iho dele of the ewsrd.
In oeccrdence whh 2 CFA Pen *70 (Peperiinp 8u&ewa>tf'end Eiecwiive Co.mpentei'on inro<moiien). me
Oepa/tment 6l HooUh and Human Servicea (OHHS) muit report the toDowing Intormoiioo ior ony
tubewsrd or cortl/act eward sub^scl to Iho FFATA reporting requiromentt;
t. Namoo'oniify
2. AmowAi of.oword
3. Fuf*dif>9 agency
4. NAlCS code for conlrscta/CFOA program number for grants ^
5. Program source
6. Award iDle deacrpi^e of Ihb purpose of Ihs funding eclion
7. Location of tho'emiry
6. Principle place o' porformonce
6. Unique idenliTior of the entity (DUNS 0) V;
10. Total compensotion end nomea of iho top five eiccutives if: ■

10.1. More thon'SOV* of onnuol gross revenuci ere from ihe Federal government, ond those
revenues ore graater.lhart $2SM anriuoDyond

10.2. Compeniaiion inlorrhation is not already avaUabfo through reporting to ihe SEC.

Primo gronl recipienis mull submh FFATA required data by the ei^ of tho month, plus 30 doys. in which
the oward or sward omandment is made.

Tha Conlroctor idenlrfied.in Section 1.3 of (he General Provisions egress to comply wiih ihe provisloris-6l
The Federal Fur>ding AccounlablSly end TrensparerKy Act. Public Low 109-262 end Public Low 110*252.
ond.2 CFP.Port 170 (Reporting Subawatd and Eiecutivo Compensollon Informotion). and further agrees .
10 have the Coniroctorfe reprtsentolive. osidenliTied in.Soctiont l.vt end 1.12 of the Gene/ol Prqylslor^s
exc'culcihe follpvring Ceiliricioiton:
The below named Conlroctor ̂ rees to provide needed information as outlined Obovo to tho NH
OepartiTMni of Health ond Human Servfces orid to comply wflh ell eppficabfo provisions of Ihe Federal
Finandal AccoufltobiGly dnd'Tronsparency Acl.

ConlreclorNamo:

3-7-1^ /
Dala Nema: Oavid Ebe/tach

Title: Executive Director

Einrbli J-CcnDcat)onR(gerC2noir«FM«<vFuneuq ConuoctorinkiUt.
Accourv»bbyAndTrwQA«rmcyAa(f^ATA}ComplSAoe ^ 7 tC

cu9wyi>eii> P»fl*»oi 2 ' D«to .3"r"/7.
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FORMA

Ac iho Conirado'. idealir^d in Section 1.3 o1 (he Gene'fll Provisioni, I cedify thai the recpontec (o (he
below licted Qucstionc ore (nje and eccurata.

Tn» niiMS number tar your emftvh: t4-S3*t733

2. in your buainesi or organUation's preceding comploted nscei year, did your tvsinesa or organ'aoiion
receTvo (t) 60 perceni or more of your onnuei gros* rowor^ue in U.S. raoeroi cenir«ai. euoconiroat,
loans, gronis. sub^renta. and/or cooperntrvo ogroemenli: ond (2) S2S.000.000 or more In annual
groit revenuei from'U.S. federal coniraac. cubconuacts, loans, grenis. cubgranis. drtcuor
coo'poroiive egreemems?

NO ves

if the orxawer io 62 above is NO. slop here

.  It iho ens^r to 02 oboye Is YES. please answer ihe foOowir>g;

3. Oocs the public have access to (nformaiion about the eompensolion olihe executives ir> your
butinoss'or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(d\or l S(d) o/ the Securities
Exchange Act ol 1934 (15 U.S.C.7em(a]. 76c(d}) or seci.ion 6104 of the internal Revenue Code o>
19867

NO • ves

-II the enswer (0 03 above is YES, slop here

If (he answer to 03 above is NO. please onswer (he following; .

4. The hamos ond compensation of Iho five most highly compensated offcars in your business or -
.'organization ero as follows;

Nome:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;

Amourii;

Amouhl:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CuOMniojt>

Etfaan J - CtniScittenRtgaallnpUe FeOeo) PunOinO Conuaoor treiils
AcoounlftbChr And Trmipcrtney (FfAtA) C«mpl(nc«
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"  OHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Dermlilons

Tr\e foilbwing terms may be reHected and have Ihe descnbed meaning In this document:

V  'Breach* means the toss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized' acquisition, uneuthorized access, or any similar term refening to
sltuationB where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have-access or poteni'ial access to personally Idenlifiablo informetipn.
whether physical or electronic, regard to Protected Health information. 'Breach*
shell hove the sdme meer\ing'a$ the term 'Breach* in cecfion
1S4.402 of Title 45. Code ol Federal R^ulalions. '

2. 'Computer Security Incident* shall have (ho seme meaning 'Computer'Secu^
Incident* In section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-6.1. Computer Security Incident

''' Handling Guide, National institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Oepartment of
Commerce. - r-.

*3. 'Confidential information* or "Confidential Data* mpens all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to (he other such as all medical, health, ffnancial, public
assistance benefits and personal ihlormallon including without limitation,- Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Healih Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

ir Conriden|ldl Information also includes any and all informatlort owned or managed by
the State of NH • creati^, received from or on behalf of the Department of He.alth end
Human Services (OHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This informdiion includes, but is not limited to Protected.
Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial Information,
(PFl). Federal-Tax Infofmation (FTi).'Sodai Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Cerd
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidentiallnformaiion.

4. 'End User* means any person or entity (e.g.. conlraclor, contractor's employee,
business ossociate. subcontractor, other dovmsiream user, etc.) that receives OHHS
Confidential Data in accordance with the terms ol this Contract.

5. *HIPAA' means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act.ol 1996 andthe
regulaiioris prpmulgajed thereunder. '

6. 'Incidenr means an act that potentiaiiy violates an'explicit or implieid security policy,
which includes successful attests to gain unauthorized access to a system or its data,
unwanted disruption or denial ol service, (he unauthorized use d a system for the'
processing or storage of data; end changes to system hardware, firmware, of software
characteristics vriihout the owner's knowledge. insiArction. or consent. Incidents include
the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, toss of misplacement of hardcopy
documents, end misrouting of phyucal or electronic documents or mail.

vi.uiiLpdiit itfds/ifl CtffbJK ConuiaoiWiuii^^^-
. OMHS Iftlotrrurcn

MwJifieo 10/HMlSCofti/BdApril 2019 $ta9if)fR»qUrc/neriu - .3-
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

7. 'Open Wreiess Network* means any nefworv or segment of a network that is not
desigr^ated. by the Slate of New Hampshire's Oepanmeni of (nfonrnation
Technology or delegate as a protected netwoht (dosigrted. tested, and approved,
by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open network end hot
adequately secure for the transmission 6l unencrypted PI. PFl, PHI orconfidenUar
DHHSdaia. ' .

B. 'Personal Information* for 'PI') means information which can be used to distinguish or
. trace on irtdividual's ideniity. such es their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Harnpshire RSA 359-C:t9. biomeiric records, etc..
alor>e! or when combined wilh:olhet personal or idenlitytng information which is linked

-  or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of bidh, mother's maiden
name. etc. ,

9. 'Privacy Pule* Shall mean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
.Informalion at 4$ C.F.R. Pads 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Slates Oepadmeni of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Informaiioh* (or 'PHI') has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of 'Protected Health Informatidn* in ihe HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. 'Security Rule* shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Iniormat'ion'at 4S C.F.R. Pan 164. Subpad C. and amendments

•  thereto. '

12. 'Unsecured Protected Health informdiion' means Protected Health-Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals, and is.devetoped..

- or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by'lhe Amedun
Naiidnai Standards Institute.

I. RES^PONSIBIUTIES OF OHMS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure ot Conndentiai Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose.; mainiain or transmit Confider^tial Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Fudher. Contractor,
irvciuding but not limited to all its directors,' officers, employees and agents, must not
use. d'scios.e. maintain or transmit PHI in any manner (hat would constiiute ia violation
of ihe Pfivacy and Security Rule. ,

2. The Contractor musinot disclose any Conndential Information in response to a request
for disclosure on .the basis that ii is required l)y la'w. In response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first r>oIifylng DHHS so thai OHMS has an oppodunity to conseni or object to

^  the disclosure.

3. if DHHS nolifies the Cchtractor ihat OHHS' has agreed to be bound by addilional
restrictions over end above those uses or disclosures or-security safeguards of PHI
pursuant ,to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Cor>!reclor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such atfditional
restrictions and must abide by any additional secunry safeguards.

VS.lBiiupdlte lOOVie Eihdlik Condor
OHKSlAlprmi<10A •

Modif««dtO'KMISC»^VWAd^ W19 • Se<x«ttjrR*jwOwieni» - •> 7 /6
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

.  The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or defivati>e there from dlsdosed to an End
' -User must only be.used pursuard lo the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees OHHS Oata'obleined under this Contract may not be used for
. any other pufposes-that are not indicated In (hrs Contrad.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the auihort2ed representatives of
OHHS for the purpose ot irtspecting to conTirm compliance vriih the terms of Ihts
Contraci.

it. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA ■

t. Application Encrypllcn. If End User'ls ironsminlng OHHS data coniatAir>g Confidoniiai
«  Data betvreen ap^ications. (he Contractor attests the 'applications have been -

evaluated by an expert knovtedgcable in cybersecuhty and thai said epplication's
encryption capabllibes ensure secure transmission via theintcmet-

7. Computer Disks end PortaWe Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks or
portable storage devices, such as a it^umb drive, as e method of transmitting ohhs data..

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confideniial Oaia if
email Is egcrvoted and belrtg sent to end being received by-email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

A. Encrypted Web Site. If End Userls employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data,
the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web sita must be secure. SSL
encrypts data transmined via a Website. ^

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Oropbox'or Google Cloud Storage, to l/ansrhit Confidential
Data.

6. Ground Mali Service. ErKi Usermayonly transmit Confideniial Data vla"cert//?edflround
mail within the contineniai-U.S. and when sent lo a namedindivldual. ^

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices lo transmit Confidential
Oats said devices mustbe encrypted andpassword prote.cted.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not trarismit Confidential Data via en open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless netw^.-

9. Remote User Communltalion. If End User is employing remote communlcalion to
access or trartsmil Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed
on the' End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmined or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure Fiie'Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit .Confidential Data. End User v^li struciurc '
the Folder and access privileges lopreyeni.inappropriaio disclosure of inforrffatlon.
SFTP folders end oub-fotders Used for transmitting Confidential Data vwii be coded for
24-hour auto-delelion cycle O.e. Conftdentiai Data wlii bo deleted every 24 houra).

11. Wuetess Devices. If End User Is transmitting ConfxJentlai Oaia via wireless devices, all
date must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Inlormaiion.
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■ ■ ■jjl. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF lOENTiFIABLE RfCOROS ^ ^ ~
The Contractor wit) only/etain (he Oala and any dertvatrve ol (he Oata for (he duration of this

• Contract. After such time, (he Contractor will have 30 days to destroy (he data ahd any
derivative in whatever form h may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under
this Contract. To this end. the parties mull:

A. Reieniion

1. The Conlracior agrees ll wpl not store, transfer or process date collected In
conrVeclion wfth the services rendered under ihis.Conueci outside of-the United
States. This physical-location requirement shall also apply In the Implefnenlallon of
cloud computing, doud service or cloud storage capabilities, and Indudes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security morxtoring capabilities are in pjace
to deted potential security events that can impact State of NH systerns and/or
Department confidential lAformaiion for conuador provided systems.

3. The Contrador agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of proteding-Departmeni corindenlidlinformation.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain aU electronic and hard copies of Confidcrtiiai Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. ' The Contrador agrees Confidcniiai Data stored in a Cioud must be in a
FcdRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicablo statutes and

•v reguiBiions regarding the privacy end. security. All servers end devices must-have
'■ currenity-supported and hardened operating lysiems. the latest anti-viral, anil-

hackc. snii-spam. anii-spyware. and anli-matw'arc utilities. The environment, as a
^  whole, must have aggressive inuusion-delcdion and firewall protedlon. "

'6. The Contrador agrees to and ensures Hs complete cooperation with the Stale's '
Chief InforVnation Offiar In the detedion of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infraslru'dure. • ■

. B.- Disposition

(. If the Contrador will maintain any Confidential Infofmatlor) on Its systems (or its sub-
conlracior system's), the Contrador v^ll.mainlain a docum8f\ied process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and wID obtain written
certification for any State of NewHampshire data destroyed by the Contrador"or"any
subconiredofs as a part of "ongoing, emergency, ond or disaster recovery,
operations. When, no longer In use, eledronic media containing Stale of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe .program In
accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
saniilaetion. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88. Rev t. Guidelines (or Media
Saniiiiation. National Institute ol Standvds and Technology. U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contrador will document and certify In writing at lirhe of the data
destruction, and will provide wrJten certification to the Department upon request.
The written ccrtificaiion will inchidc oH details necessary to demonstrate d^f^s
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been property destroyed aho vaiioaieo. w^e applicable, regulatory end
professional standards for retention requirements win be joirtiiy evatuateo by the
Slate er^ Contractor prior to destruction.

2. tjniess otherwise specified, wimin thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contraa,
Contredor agrees to destroy all hard copies cf Confidential Data usir>g a secure
rheinod such esshreddir>9.

3. Unless otherwise specifted. within thirty (30) days of the terminaiion of this Contreci.
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidentjai Data by rneans
of data erasure, also Known as secure data wiping.
V  *

rV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. 'Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under (his Conuact. and any
derivative data or fdes. as follows;,

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controts to protect Oepanmenl conrider^tiat
information collected, processed, managed. and/o< stored in the delivery of contracted.
services.

2. The Contractor wiD maintain pofides and procedures to protect Oepartmant conHdentiai
ir^formatipn throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from c/ealion,
trensformotion, use. storage and secure destnjction) regardless of the. media used (o
store the data (I.e." tape. disK, paper, etc.).

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor sysieriis that collect, transmit, or store Oepartment confidential information
where applicable."

-• 4. The (^niroctor wfil ensure proper security monitoring capabllilias are In place to detect
potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or Department
confidenlial Information for contractor provided systems.-

5. The Contractor will prov'ida regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in'support of protecting Departmentconfidentialinlormdtion.

6. tf ihe Contractor will be sul>-ccnirac(ing arty core functions ot (he engagement
supporting the services for Stele of New Hampshire, (he Contractor will maintain a

V. program of an-lntemal process or processes (hat defines specific security expiations.
. and rhonttoring compliance to socurity requirerhents that at a.minimum match those for
the Contractor. includtr>g breach notification requirements.

7. The Conlraaof will work with Ihe Department to sign end comply 'with all eppficable
Slate qf New Hampshire ond Oepartment system access and authorization policies end
procedures, system's access forms, end computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Deparlmcrii syslem(s). Agrcemcnis will be complcied
and. signed by the Contractor and any .applicable eub-coniradors.prior to system
access being authorized.
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'6. If (he Department detemiines the Contrectof-is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Coniracior will execute e HiPAA Susiness Assodaie Agreement
(BAA) with the Oepartment and is responsible for mdiniaining compKence with the
egreemcnt.

e. The Conirecior wiO work Unih the Oepanmeni at ite request to complaie a Syst^
' Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is io enable the Department and

Contractor to monitor for ariy changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of me Cor)tr?cior engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or .en aliernate time frame at the Oepartmenis discretion with egrMment by.
me Contractor, or' the Oepartrhenl may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Depariment and the Cont/aclor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowirtgty or unkriowingiy. any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of iho United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Informalion Security Offtco leadership
member wiihir* the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability, in (he event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent
future breach end minimize any damage or loss resuliing from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor oil costs of response and recovery from the breach,
including but not limited to: credit monitorirTg services, mailing costs and costs
associated with website and ieief>hone call center services necessary due to the

.  breach.

.  12. Contractor must, comply wilh all-applicable stalutes and regulations regerding the
privacy and security of ConTidentiai Intormation.-and must In all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of Pi and phi at a level and scope lhal is not (ess than the
level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not
limited to. provtsloris of the Privacy Act,of 1974 (5 U.S.C. §-552e), DHHS Privacy Art
Regulations (45 .C:F.R. §5b), HiPaa Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually idcnlifioblc health

-  information and as applicable under State law.

.  13. Contractor agrees to establish and malniain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confideniiaiity of the Conrtdentlel Data end to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a le^l and scope of
security that is noi less than the level and scope of security r^uiremenls established

.X by the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.- Refer to
Vcrvfor Resources/Procurement al-.httpsy/www.nh.goy/doil/vendor/irvfex.hlm for the
Depariment of rnformaiior) Technology poEcies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement informalion relating, to ver>dor&.

14. Contractor agrees to'm'aintain a dxumenteo breach notification and incident resppnse
process. The Coniractor.wlii noiify the State's Privacy Officer ar>d the Stated Security .
OfTicer of any security breach immediately. a1 (he email addresses provided in Section
VI. This Includes a confideriiial intormation breach, computer security Incident, or
suspected breach which affects or Includes any Stoia of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the Slate of New Hampshire r\etwofV.
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15. Contractor must restrict access to the Conridenb'al Data obtained under this Contract
to only'those authoriied End Users who need such OHHS Data to perform their
offtdal duties in connection with purposes identiried in this Contract.

16. The-Coniractor must ensure that all End Users; •

0. comply wtth such SBfeguaido es referenceO in Section iv ̂  above. Implemented
to protect ConfideniisI Information that it fumithed by OHMS undor.lhit Contract
from toss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard ihis Informarron 61 oil times.'

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing phi. PI. or PPl
are encrypted and pdssword>pfotected.

d. send emails coniaining Cpnridential Informalion only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons aulhofued to reoeh/o such
informalion. • : • .

e. Umli disclosure of the Conridenllal Inrormsilon to the extent pen:nitted bylaw.

•  f. Confidcniial Informalion received under this Contract and individually idenilHabie
data den'ved from OHHS Gala, must be stored in an area that is.physicaiiy end
lechnologicdjly secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys, biomelhc Idenlifiers, elc.). .

g- only authorized End. Users may iransmil ihc. Confidential Data, Including any
dehvaiive Tilos conialnlr^ f^rsonalty identifiable informalion. and in all cases'.

. . such data musi beencrypied ai all limes when In ironsil, al rest, or when stored
on portable rned'd as. required In section iVabove.

h. In all olher instances Confideniial Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using affpropriate Mfeguards. as determined by.a risk-based assessment of Ihc
drournstances invoNed.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone: End Users wiD keep their acdenlial informalion secure. This

'r ^ applies to credentials used lo access the site directly or indirectly through a third
.V party application. • ■

Contractor is responsible lor ovcrsighi and compliance of their End'Users. DHHS
reserves Ihe right to cortduci onsiie inspections lo monitdr.compiiance with this Coniraci.

.  Incfufling the privacy and'securily reouircmenis provided in herein. HIPAA. ahd other-
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time (he Confidential Data is disposed
of In accordance wilh this Contract! ,

V." LOSS REPORTING

The Coniraclor must notify the Siale's Privacy Officer end Security Officer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at ifte email addresses provided in Section Vi.

The Contractor must furlhcf handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance ,with,the agency's documented Incideni Hartdl'ing and Breach Notification
procedures and In. accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contrador's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:
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1.. Identity IrKidents:

2. Determine if personalty identifiebte informattori is involved in incidents; ^

3. Report Suspected or confirmed incidents as required in this Exhibit or P'37;
I

4. Identify-and convene a core rosponse groyp to determine the nsk level of incidents
and determine risk-based responses to lnddenis;and

5. Oetormine whether'Breach nolificalion js required, and. if so. identify epproprletc
Broach notification rriethods. timing, source, and contents from among different options,
end bear costs ossociated with (he Broach rtoiico as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents andfor Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
■ appliMble, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. • PERSONS TO CONTACT .

A. OHMS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues;

•  DHHSrnformation$ecufityOfnce@dhh5.nh.gov

8. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues: • , r

V  OHHSPfivacyOifiCfir@dhhs.nh.gov
C.-DHHS contact for information Security issues:,

OHHSlnfOrmalionSeCUrltyOffiCe@dhhS.nh.9OV

0. OHHS contact for Breach nolificaiions:

-  OHHSInforfnationSecurityOff»ce@dhhs;nh.gov

• DHHSPrlvacy.Officer@dhhs.tth.90v •
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